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FLOOD CONTROL—NEW HOPE DAM, CAPE FEAR RIVER
BASIN, N.C.

FRIDAY, MARCH 15, 1963
U.S. SENATE,

SuscoMMITTEE oF FrLoop ConTrROL—RIVERS AND ITAREBORS,
' oF Tax CompdporTee oN PubLic WoRrEs,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10:10 a.m., in room 4200,
New Senate Office Building, Senstor B. Everett Jordan presiding.

Present : Senators Jordan (chairman), Randolph, Metcalf, Inouye,
Bayh, Nelson, Boggs, and Pearson.

enator JorpaN, The subcommittes will coms to order.

If it is agreeable with the members of the committee, we would like
to take up the agenda this morning in the following fashion: First, 1
would like to say that Senator McNamara, chairman of the commit-
tee, had to be out of the city and he asked me to preside at this sub-
committee hearing this morning. Iam glad to do it and Iam delighted
that there are so many members of the subcommittee present for this
liearing, because it is a very important hearing,

If it is agreeable with the members of the subcommittee we will hear
the Corps of Engineers first, that is, just to present their prepared
statement, and also the Soil Conservation Service, and just let them
read their statements, and then be questioned later on in the hearing,
because there are a number of out-of-town people who would like to
be heard.

Of course any of them who want to stay can stay as long as the
Learing goes on, If that is agreeable with the committee, we will ask
the Corps of Engineers to be heard, just to read their statement and
the Soil Conservation Service, read their statements into the record,
get that in for us and reserve the questioning until later on, after
which we will call the Congressmen, because they are all busy.

If it is agreeable with the cornmittee that is the procedure we will
follow.

The first witness this morning is Gen. Jackson Graham, Director of
Civil Works, Corps of Engineers.

We are glad to have you with us. We understand you are rather
new in this post and we are glad to have you with us,

(General Gramast, Thank you, sir.

Senator Jorpan. You can bring anyone you wish with you to

testify.
1

Ty
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STATEMENT OF BRIG. GEN. JACKSON GRAHAM, OFFICE OF THE
CHILF OF ENGINEERS, CORPS OF ENGINEERS, U.S. ARMY

General Grarast. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, it
is a privilege to appear here today in my first meeting with you. In
accordance with your wishes wo are prepared to discuss projects con-
sidered, but not included in the River and Harbor and Floed Control
Acts of 1962, and such other aspects of the Corps of Engineers civil
works program as youmay care to explore.

During the hearings on the River and Ilarbor and Flood Control
Acts of 1962, the Corps of Engincers civil works program was dis-
cussed with you. Since the present hearings are in oflect a continua-
tion of those of last year, and in the interest of conserving your time,
T will not repeat a deseription of this program.

It is my understanding that you wish to hear from us today con-
cerning the Cape Fear River, N.C. Col. Robert C. Marshall, our
Assistant Director of Civil Works for Eastern Divisions, is prepared
to discuss the project. Weare at your disposal.

Senator Joroax. Thank you.

Colonel Marsuarn, We are glad to huve you with us.

STATEMENT OF COL. ROBERT €. MARSHALL, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR
OF CIVIL WORKS FOR EASTERN DIVISIONS, OFFICE OF THE CHIEF
O0F ERGINEERS, CORPS OF ENGINEERS, U.S. ARMY

Colonel Marsizacr. Thank you, sir. :

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I will be assisted by
Mr. John Murray, a member of our staff.

- Mr. Chairman, this project concerns the Cape Fear River Basin in
North Carolina.

The authority for the Corps of Enginers’ study was provided by a
resolution of the ITouse Committee on Flood Control adopted in 1546.

The Cape Fear River is formed by the confluence of the Deep and
TIaw Rivers which rise in the north central part of North Carolina in
a region of rolling hills known as the Piedmont Plateau.

Tt {lows generally southeast and empties into the Atlantic Ocean
at Cape Fear, N.C., 28 miles below Wilimington. The drainage arca
for the total basin is about 8,500 square miles. The population in the
basin is 849,000 {Greensboro has 119,000, Fayetteville hus 47,000, and
Wilmington, 44,000 ; 1960 census).

Tn this aren timber is an extensive resource and lumber and pulp-
wood are important products. The major industries are farming,
manufacture of textiles, furniture, and tobacce products. Wilmington
is a major seaport {5 million tons of commerce in 1960).

An area of 314,000 acres is subject to flooding, of which 70 percent
is located along the main stem of the Cape Fear River. For example,
flood stages have been exceeded at Fayetteville over 100 times in the
last 70 years. There are no Corps of Engineers flood control projects
in this area specifically authorized by the Congress.
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Local interests desire flood protection along the Cape Fear River,
particularly at Fayetteville, and have suggested the need for water
conservation for the improvement of navigation, pollution abatement,
and other uses.

In the Greensboro aren local interests request development of
the Deep River Basin with a dam at the Randleman site. Other in-
terests, primarily from Chatham County, have organized the New
Iope Valley Association in opposition to the New H()é)e Reservoir,
and in favor of a series of small dams generally in accordance with an
alternate plan presented in a joint Corps-Agriculture report issued on
May 9, 1961,

The recommended plan of the Chief of Engineers consists of a gen-
eral plan for reservoirs at New Hope, Randleman, and Howards Mill,
plus other local {lood control projects and reservoirs that are found
feasible to be constructed as the need develops; and specifically au-
thorization of the New Hope Reservoir for construction in the interest
of flood control, low flow regulation, recreation and other purposes;
and that autherity be granted to continue studies of the (,I;pe Fear
River Basin in order that authorization for other projects may be
prepared.

The total first cost of the New Hope Reservoir is $25,462,000; annual
charges total $365,000; annual benegts, $2,340,000.

The benefit-cost ratio, based on a 100-year period of analysis, is
25 to 1. (If recomputed at the current interest rate and over a 50-
year period, B/C ratio is 1.7.}

Local interests would be required to bear the construction costs
allocated to municipal and industrial water supply in an amount
presently estimated at $319,000; to bear all annua{]costs for operation
and maintenance and major replacements allocated to municipal and
industrial water supply, an amount presently estimated at $8,000 an-
nually; and to protect downstream channel from encroachments and
obstructions. Satisfactory assurances have been received from loeal
interests that they will comply with the foregoing requirements for
local cooperation.

‘We have obtained satisfactory assurances from local interests. The
Federal Power Commission, the Department of the Interior, the De-
partment of Commerce and the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare have offered no major objections to the report.

The Department of Agriculture has indicated that our report does
not conclusively show that the comprehensive plan, recommended by
the Chief of Engineers, will provide the most feasible method for
development of the lands and water resources of this basin.

The State of North Carolina has commented favorably. The Bu-
reau of the Budget has posed no objection to submission of this
report to the Congress at this time.

T'his completes my statement, sir.

Senator Jorpax. Thank you very much, Colonel Marshall.

Mr. Carl Brown of the Soil Conservation Serviee.
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STATEMENT OF HOLLIS R. WILLIAMS, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR
FOR WATERSHEDS, SOIL CONSERVATION SERVICE, READ BY
CARL B. BROWN, DEPUTY ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR, SOLL
CONSERVATION SERVICE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Mr. Browx. Thank you, sir, I was going to introduce our State
conservationist, Mr. Richard M. Dailey, from the State of North
Carolina.

Senator Jorpax. We are glad to have you with us. You may
proceed. ,

Mr. BrownN. Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that the statement
which I am about to present has been cleared in the Oflice of the Secre-
tary of Agriculture and does represent the official position of the
Department of Agriculture. .

é)enator Jorpan. Thank you. .

Mr. Browx. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, we
appreciate this opportunity to appear before your committee in con-

nection with your consideration of the recommendations of the Sec-
retary of the Army for authorization of a program of water resource
development in the Cape Fear River basin, North Carolina, as set
forth in House Document 508, 87th Congress.

The Department of Agriculture has a vital concern with the con-
servation and development of the water and related land resources
of the Nation. The S%cretury of Agriculture together with the Secre-
taries of the Army, Interior, and Health, Education, and Welfare,
would constitute the Water Resources Council of the Federal Gov-
ernment under the Water Resources Act proposed to Congress by the
President in 1961, These Secretaries are now functioning by Presi-
dential directive on an ad hoc basis in the consideration of such na-
tional water and related land resource matters as uniform standards
for the formulation and economic evaluation of river basin projects
and programs; development of standards for evaluation of recreation
benefits; development of more uniform policies for cost sharing on
flood control and flood prevention ; and coordination of budget requests
for carrying out river basin surveys and investigations.

The Secretary of Agriculture has authority under the Watershed
Protection and Flood Prevention Act, Public Law 566, 83d Congress,
as amended, and other acts to cooperate with other Federal agencics,
the States, and local organizations in carrying out investigations and
surveys for water and related land resowrce developments in water-
cheds and river basins, and to assist the States an local organiza-
tions in carrying out such programs within the limitations prescribed
in these acts.

The Secretary has delegated to the Administrator of the Seil Conser-
vation Service the overall responsibility of the Department for water-
shed and river basin activities. We, therefore, appear in behalf of the
Secretary and the Administrator to clarify any aspects of concern to
this commilteo on the Department’s position with respect to the de-
velopment of the water resources of the Cape Fear River basin.

e believe several points concerning our position should be made
clear to the commiltee. :

TTnder the authority of section 6 of Public Law 566 the Soil Con-
corvation Service cooperated with the Corps of Tngineers and the
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State of North Carolina in making a joint survey of the Cape Fear
River Basin that was completed in 1961, ‘

The report of this joint survey set forth two economically feasible
programs for flood control with some added benefits for other pur-
poses such as water supply, irrigation, and recreation. This report
made no recominendation for authorization of either of the programs
referred to in the joint report as plans A and B.

Plan B, consisting of some 232 small reservoirs primarily for flood
prevention, was formulated by a sampling techniquo developed and
used by the Scil Conservation Service over a long period of years.
This technigue is fully adequate to establish the Ieve{)of benefits and
the economic feasibility of a program consisting of many similar units.

In the Cape Fear study detailed field surveys were made of 34 dams
in 5 subwatersheds, and the results wero expanded to the entire basin.
A river basin survey based on sampling techniques, however, does not
provide the basis for moving into construction.

Therefore, the Soil Conservation Service has not recommended at
any time the authorization of the program of 232 small dams described
as plan B in the joint report without further field studies,

It has been alleged in some press reports that the Seil Conservation
Service is opposed to the New Ho eli)am proposed by the Chief of
Engineers. The comments of the Department of Agriculture printed
in ITouse Document 508 liave been listed in the Senate Public Works
Coommittee report as unfaverable to the recommendations of the Chief
of Engineers, We feel that this is an improper interpretation of those
comments. We have not at any time been and are not now opposed to
the authorization of the New Hope Dam. We believe that a careful
reading of our letter of comments on the recommendations of the Chief
of Iingineers will show that we pointed out rather fully the benefits
that would stem from a reservoir constructed at the New Hope site.

We did go on to state, however, that:

In view of these and other factors, the Department of Agriculture belleves that
the data presented in the report do not conclusively show that the comprehensive
plan of improvements recommended by the Chief of Englneers will provide the
most feasible method for the development of the land and water resources of the
Cape Fear River Basin,

We believe the comments of the Department of Agriculture rein-
force the position of the Chief of Engincers who, in his report, in
addition to recommending immediate authorization of the New Haope
Dam, recommended authorization of additional surveys and investi-
gations to determine the total needs and economic justification for
development of all the water resources of the Cape Fear River Basin.

We believe that this committee, tuking cognizance of the position of
the Chief of Engineers that the reservoir at the New Hope site will
only partially meet the development needs of the Cape Fear River
Basin, may want to give emphasis to the urgency of a complete survey
to determine the further needs of the basin.

Wo believe, moreover, that this committee may want to recognize
the importance of developing a coordinated program in which the
interests of rural as well as urban people, who look to the Department
of Agriculture for assistance in flood prevention and water resource
development and management in headwater tributaries and upstream
watersheds, are properly served. We believe that acceleration of
needed land treatment as an integral part of a total program of devel-
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opment is essential to protect all reservoirs, large or small, against
excessive silting which will, in the absence of such protection, inevit-
ably suffer not only substantial losses of total capacity but will be
rendered far less desirable to meet pressing needs for outdoor recrea-
tion, fish and wildlife development, and other purposes.

We would like to make the point with this committee that Public
Law 566 may not be the most expeditious way through which a basin-
wide program of upstreamn watershed protection and development can
be accomplished. Public Law 566 is a program for providing assist-
ance to local people and local organizations to solve local problems in
individual small watersheds. It would require more than 20 Public
Law 566 projects to cover the Cape Fear River Basin.

This committee recognized the need for additional general legisla-
tion when it reported favorably on HLR. 3801, introduced by former
Congressman Frank Smith in the last Congress. This bill went on to
enactment and became Public Law 87-639, when it was approved by
the President on September 5, 1962. This act specifieally provides
for joint surveys of river basins by the Secretary of the Army and the
Secretary of Agriculture, upon receipt of resolutions from the Com-
mittee oni Public Works of either the House or Senate. It provides for
the submission of a joint report of these agencies on a coordinated
program for consideration for authorization by the Congress.

The role of the Department of Agriculture mn such a joint endeavor
should be, as we see it, to develop that part of a basinwide program
that is consistent with the framewark already determined by Congress
in its enactment of, and amendments to Public Law 566,

Specifically, a joint report on a coordinated program should provide
for the Departmment of Agriculture to have responsibility for acceler-
ated Innd treatinent for soil conservation and other purposes, and the
installation of multiple-purpose reservoirs up to a maximum capacity
now provided by law in Public Law 566 of 25,000 acre-feet, and
other structural measures in upstream tributaries. This would be the
upstream complement to such larger reservoirs us ITowards Mill,
Randleman, or others which may be found needed and justified for
construetion by the Corps of Engineers as a part of a coordinated plan.

The Soil Conservation Service is now carrying out the upstream
component of a coordinated river basin program such as we have
described in several river basins under authorization ineluded in the
Flood Control Act of 1944, The Trinity River Basin in Texas, the
Washita River Basin in Oklahoma, the Upper Coosa River Basin in
Georgia and the Upper Potomac River Basin in Virginia and West
Virginia are examples of basins in which upstream watershed work
has been fully coordinated with programs of larger reservoirs of the
Corps of Engincers and Bureau of Reclamation.

The Sotl Conservation Service is this year constructing 153 up-
stream dams within the four river basins T have named. We cite
these fizures to make the point that even though it would take a
minimum of 2 years after funds were made available to carry out
field surveys and submit a report of a joint survey, the accomplish-
ment. of the needed land treatment and the construction of all the
upstream reservoirs could be physically completed within a period
of 5 to 10 years or about as quickly as the detailed planning and con-
struction of larger reservoirs, providing in both cases, of course, that
funds were made available to meet installation schedules,
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Mr. Chairman, we again express our appreciation for this oppor-
tunity to give our views to the committee. We will be pleased to
answer any questions you may have.

Senator Jorpan, Thank you very much, Mr, Brown.

We appreciate your testimony. Thank you, Carl, we are glad to
have you with us. _ '

" If Congressman Lennon will come up, please, sir.

Mr. LEnwon. Thank you.

Senator Jorpan. Mr., Lennon, if you will present any testimony
you wish to give and call up any witnesses you wish to testify and
wntroduce them, we will be glad to hear them at this time.

STATEMENT OF HON. ALTON LENNON, A U.S. REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE SEVENTH DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. Lunwon. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen of the
subcommittee.

The flood control project, gentlemen of ilie subcommittee, that you
are considering today, nctuaﬁy physically embraces the heartland of
North Carolina. We had hoped to have, and may have shortly for
you to see visually a map of the Cape Fear River Basin superimposed
upon the State of North Carolina, and then you will be able to de-
termine for yourself that it actually embraces the heartland of North
Carolina,

History has shown that a wide use of water is essential to progress.
I might say before I go any further that T am a lifelong resident of
the lower Cape Fear Valley. I have waded in the floods that have
been described to have taken place annually over a period of not 100
years, but for a good part of, a substantial part of that time.

I am grateful to you, Mr. Chairman, and the other members of
this subcommittee for an opportunity to appear before you and I
bespeal the grateful appreciation of some 400,000 people whose future
are determined by the actions of this, and the House committee, and
the subsequent actions of the Congress. ,

We are grateful for this opportunity.

Water shortage is creating serious problems in many sections of
North Carolina and of our country today. Fortunately, North Caro-
lina has an abundant rainfall. Our rainfall is ample for our present
and future needs if, and this is a very large if, if we are wise in our
use and conservation of this water,

From the news media recently, I think most of us have been im-
pressed with the fact that Pennsylvania and West Virginia and Ohio
and some other sections of the country have had an overabundance
of water in the last few weeks, ’

The Cape Fear River is our State's largest river. Its basin has
%Itl Erea of 8,570 square miles, more than 17 percent of our entire

ate.

_This Cape Fear Basin has a population, caleulated in recent months
sinco the 1960 census, of almost a million people, which is just a little
less than one-fourth of our State’s entire population.

The fact that wo have experienced disastrous floods and serious
water shortages in the Ca]B)e Fear River Basin attests to the fact
that thus far we have not been wise in the use of our water, but we
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cannot aflord to dwell on mistakes of the past. We must look to the
future with o {irm resolve that wo will now act with wisdom and
courage to see {hat this God-given resource is devoloped in a manner
that will benefit our people today and for many years to come.

The Corps of Engineers have studied the problems of the Cape
Tear Basint on and off for the past 34 years. There is a gentleman
in the hearing room today who was the assistant district engineer
and subsequently the district engineer for North Carolina who made
this first study 34 yearsago. ,

At that time, 34 years ago, they submitted a report which considered
flood control, navigation, and power development. Under the criteria
in use at that time, no improvement could be justified.

Towever, even then, 3¢ years ago, the computed benelits were only
slightly below the cost. The Flood Control Act of 1936 liberalized
anﬁ necessarily so, such participation, and this, together with our
substantial basin dovelopment has radically changed the situation
since that time,

Today, gentlemen, there is no question but that the benefits which
would be derived from, No. 1, flood control, low-flow regulation and
recreation would far exceed this cost.

The question, gentlemen, we are faced today with is: How shall
theso improvements be provided? The Corps of Engineers at every
level, the district engineer, the division engineer, the Chief of the
Corps of Engineers and the Board of Engineers for Rivers and
Harbors and Flood Control, as well as the Bureau of the Budget
have put its stamp of approval both from the engineering and a
financial and economical standpeint, upon the proposal of the Corps
of Engineers to construet, first, and this is an essential keystone in this
project, the New Hope Dam.

The Corps of Engineers have made very definite and specific recom-
mendations as follows:

Number one, for the immediate construction, a 100-foot dam on the
Haw River just below the confluence of the New Hope Creels, which
was described to you and which you see on this scale map here to my
left.

This dam will create o permanent lake of 9,400 acres. Above this
level will be a capacity to store a tremendous volume of flood water,
541,000 acre-feet in times of floods, and which would be retained for a
few days and then spilled out.

At such time the lake could have an area of as much as 30,000 acres.
The dam will have a gated spillway to control and regulate the dis-
charge from the reservoir and downstream flow of the river.

Now, gentlemen, that is important, being able to regulate your down-
stream (10, it is essential to obtain this in order to avoid or certainly
recluce the pollution that we have in all of our streams.

Tn 1051, the Legislature of North Carolina created the stream ollu-
tion commission, and it is—it has done a magnificent job with ill(fustry
and with our municipalities, in trying to get rid of industrial and
chemieal effluent as well as human wastage from our city sewer system.

The dam will have a gated spillway to control and regulate the dis-
charge and downstream flow. The estimated cost is $26 million.
The benefit-cost ratio is 2.5 to 1. .

Small upstream reservoirs, as required by local flord control for irri-
mation. water supply, and allied purposes, are aiso congidiored in thas
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overall projected program. The soil Conservation Service has con-
ceived a plan for o system of 232 so-called small dams, and if I could
digress for just a minute, to say to you gentlemen that in carly 1957 the
district engineer of North Carolina was prepared to send to the divi-
sion engineer, and up through the channels to the Congress, its recom-
mendation with respect to the construction, the immediate construction,
the essential and necessary construction of the New Iope Dam.
There was an agreement, however, made at, that time whereby the Soil
Conservation Service could come in and make a joint study. Thestudy
was not authorized by the Congress. 1t was sort of an informal agree-
ment.

Now that took place in 1957, and that is the reason we had to wait
to come to you today, because it took that long, almost, at least 5 years
beg:].use it 1s truo the report was made last year, to get where we are
today.

The Soil Conservation Service in its report has not officially recom-
mended anything. They have merely stated that it would be possible
to build a system of small dams and that these dams could produce cer-
tain benefits.

Since the dams proposed by the Soil Conservation Service have not—
are not, definitely ]located—-it is more logical T believe to consider their
proposal as a concept rather than a plan.

I am in favor of the Corps of %Jngineers plan because No. 1, the
present policy and existing law permits the construction proposed.

No. 2, the plan provides for both present and future needs and a
logical sequential construction program which can be geared to basin
growth and development.

No. 3, major benefits would accrue with the building of the New
Hope Dam.

T think to we people, of course, who live in the lower Cape Fear
Valley and who are subject to intensive flooding almost annually,
this next statement is significant.

This dam alone, the New Hope Dam, would reduce future flood
damage by 87 percent. It would provide low-flow regulation, 600
cubic feet per second minimmum, which is 30 times the present flow
at Lillington, N. C.—which you see downstream—and provide a large
lake for recreational purposes.

No. 4, the construction of the New Hope Dam according to the
Engineers plan and recommendation would be followed by dams at
Howards Mill and Randleman. These two dams would further reduce
downstream flood damage and provide two additional lakes for
recreational purposes,

Now there is nothing whatever in the corps plan that precludes the
building of small dams under Public Law 566 or Public Law 87-639,
the so-called Smith Act. In fact the corps plan contemplates that
many such dams will be built.

Thus, gentlemen, any need for irrigation or flood control in the
headwater area can be met by the Soil Conservation Service under
the present law.

T cannot in logic or good sense favor the earlier suggestion of the
Soil Conscervation Service that we accept only the smsﬁ -dam concept
of some 232 dams in the upper Cape Fear River Basin, in lieu of the
essential New Hope Dam and Reservoir. I do not favor it for these
reasons: There are no laws in existence today under which such a
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systern could logically bo constructed. Therefore major legislative
changes would be required before the damsites could even be located.

T am talking about the Soil Conservation Service's suggestion.

Such legislative changes, In my opinion, would never be favorably
considered by the Congress. )

In Pittsbore, N.C., which is Chatham County and is the only
county of the 18 which opposes the New IHope Dam, the 18 counties
in the Cape Fear River Basin, naturally where the reservoir 1s pro-
jected to be, there is some objection and it is 11.11dcg'stan(lable on the
part of the people who will be displaced. It is inevitable, wentlemen,
{o have progress to meet the needs of growth of the many, that soms
fow will sufler; that is a tragedy that we have i our way of ife.

But if anyone would read the testimony of this hearing that was
held in Pittsboro, the connty seat of Clhiatham County on February
16, 1961, and particularly male reference to the testimony of Mr.
Pouge of Texas, who is on the Agriculture Committee of the House,
and 1s on the subcommittee pertaining to watersheds protection and
Hood control, it is pretty obvious that the Congress isn't likely to
move into the ficld of general flood control through the acquisition by
the Federnl Government tax money of lands to make these ponds
possible. )

The Soil Conservation Service now builds dams under the authority
of Public Laws 566 and 87-639. IHowever it would be next to mm-
possible to construct sneh n large number of dams under either of these
laws. Even if it could be done local people would have to donate the
land and maintain and operate the dams—fnding more than 200
damsites, and they propose 232. Finding more than 200 damsites
which would flood no farmland, create no controversies, provide both
short-range and long-range henelits comparable to the corps plan,
and yet cost no more money, involves complexities that would try the
ingenuity of a Solomon. ) ‘

Tn the first place the propesed small dam system is not as flexible as
many people think. These are not farm ponds, gentlemen, we are
talling abont. According to the report on the joint study that was
prepared and performed by the Qoil Conservation Service, and the
Corps of Tingineers, the average impoundment—I am talking about
on the Soil Conservation’s concept-——the average impoundment will
exceed 300 acres in area and the total land required will be 78,000
acres, more than twice that required for the New Hope Dam.

Some of these dams will be 60 feet high, and will flood as much as
1,500 acres-—some of these 939 dams we are talking about.

Obviously it will not be pessible to find alternate sites for many
of these larger dams. Thus flexibility is confined largely to the
solection of sites for the smaller dams. L

However even this degree of flexibility of the dam works to its dis-
advantage. Ithas certainly been the experience of the Corps of Engi-
neers, and other private civilian consultant engineers that T hiave talked
to, that where the public is concerned & multiple choice always produces
multiple points of view. o

Thus in trying to please overyone we face the inevitable danger of
pleasing no one. ) )

The point is this, gentlemen: If we should ever give up the idea of
constructing the New Hope Dam and adopt the small-dam approacl

LLUUL LU L ANLANY LA L aaats ..

with the idea of eliminating controversy I am certain we would be
in for dismal disappointment.

Furthermore we must realize that our decisions regarding develop-
ments of the Cape Fear River Basin, the entire basin, will have a
marked influence on future plans for the development of other basins
in North Carolina and in the Nation.

Although a system of small dams could produce flood control benefits
to some degree, such a system would not and could not provide low-flow
yegulation in times of drought. The reason for this 1s obvious. The
small dams as proposed by the Soil Conservation Service operate
automatically, that is, when the water reaches a certain predetermined
Jovel they begin to discharge. As the wuler surface rises the discharge
inereases.  When the reservoir is full the excess water is discharged
¢through an overflow spillway. When flow into the reservoir decreases
water surface is automatically lowered until it reaches the
predetermined level.

Tlere 5s the question: In times of drought the small reservoir has
10 water in storage to augment that low flow. With a large reservoir,
such as New Hope, a large quantity of water is stored and released
gradually over a period of drought to produce a minimum stream
downflow of 600 cubic feet per second, as compared with the figure
that I gave you a few minutes ago.

The low-flow regulation feature is most highly desirable for pollu-
tion abatement and essential, gentlemen, for future development of
tho basin.

To provide this feature in a small dam system would require addi-
tional storage, and manual operation at each small reservoir. This
would make their costs prohibitive.

Tt is true that the construction of the dam at the New Hopo will
displace approximately, and these figures are in dispute, the Corps of
Engineers says it will not displace more than 110 families; the op-
ponents say around 150.

1 sincerely wish that this was not true for I realize these people have
u sentimental attachment for their homes and neighbors that mean 8o
much. I have already commented on that.

In summary, gentlemen, I favor the Corps of Engineers plan. I
think that we have reached the solution in a sense in this matter that
was ab least over in the House a little bit argumentative, with a sug-
gestion that we proceed immediately with the authorization of the con-
Siruction of the New Hope Dam, and then in the same auwthorization
process anthorize a concurrent study under Public Law 87-639 of the
concept of the smaller dams in the area, with the Randleman Reservolr
and the Howard Reservoir.

T favor the Corps of Engineers plan because it is a logical long-
range plan geared to the present and future needs of the Cape Fear
Basin. It is o plan that can be implemented under existing Jaws. Its
benefit will be realized as soon as the first dam, New Ifope, is
constructed.

T apologize for taking so much of the committee’s time, but, gentle-
men, I have waited since iny first appearance at a Corps of Engincers
hearing in February 1957 for this opportunity, and T hope you will

indulge me for taking so much of your valued time.

06610—63—-—2
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Mr. Chairman, if I may have the opportunity to introduce to this
distinguished subcommitiee the people who are here from North
Carolina who support this project, the Corps of Engineers project.

Senator JorpaN. You may proceed, sir. )

Mr. Lenxon. Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen, I would like to say at
the outget that Mr. Robert Butler, the mayor of the city of Fayette-
ville, N.C., who is the president of the Cupe Fear Dasin Development
Association, had to return to North Carolins last evening. Te asked
me to express his regret. He lhad o meeting that he had to keep after
being in Washington vesterday. ITe offere yesterday o resolution of
the City Council of Fayetteville that 1s a current resolution and we
would Jike to ask your permission and the permission of the committee
to insert in the record very shortly a current resolution of the city of
Tuyetteville supporting this proposal.

Senator Jonnan, Soordered.

Mr. Lusyon, Mr. Henry Tyson, chairman of the Board of County
Commissioners of Cumberland County, the lower flood basin we call
it, was here yesterday, had to return to Fayetteville for o meeting of
his board this morning, and he asked me to pay his respects to this
committee and asked for the opportunity to file a resolution of the
board of county commissioners supporting this proposal.

Senator Jorpan. Soordered.

(Tho resolution referred to follows :)

CounNTY OF CUMBEELAND,
Payeitevile, N.C., January 15, 1968.
ITon. IA. BVERETT JORDAN,
U.8. Senate,
Washington, D.C,

Myt DeaR SEnaToR: Enclosed for your information is a reselution adopted by
the board of county commissioners at & meeting held Yanuary 12, 1962,

Plense advise if any other action should be taken by the board which would
help to implement this plan.

With kindest personal regards, Iam

Sincerely yours,
C. L. TWINE,
Clerk to the Board of Cumberland County Commigsioners.
Enclosure.

ExTrRACT FRoM MINUTES OF CoUuNTY COMMIBBIONIRS MEeprING HELD
January 12, 1962

Whereas the Board of Commissioners for Cumberland County has followedl
with keen interest the action of the 1.8, Arny Hngineer Division, South At-
lantic Corps of Engineers, reporting on the Cape Fear River Basin, N.C., for
the immediate and future development and conservation of water resources
authorized by 2 resolution duly adopted by the Committee on Flood Control
of the IIpuse of Representatives, and have particularly moted the favorable
report of the Corps of Engineers proposing reservoir projects at the New
Hope site on the Haw River and at the Howard Mills and Randleman gites on
Decp River; and .

Whereas the Commissioners for Cuamberiand County, fully realizing the past
flood damaoge on the Cape Fear River, feel that the plan of the Corps of Engl-
neers would be of untold benefit to the Cape Fear River basin, in which the
county of Cumberland is situated: Now, therefore, be it .

Regalvod, That the board of county commlssioners {ully gupport the report of
the Corps of Engineers, and call upon the Members of Congress to take such
action as may be necessary to implement the plan as set forth in the report; and
be it further

Resolved, That a copy of this resolution be sent to Senators B. Dverett Jor-
dan and Sam J. Irvin, Jr,, Gov. Terry ganford, Congressman Alton Lennon, the
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U.S. Army Engineer Divislon, South Atlantic Corps of Engineers, the Fayette-
ville Chamber of Commerce, and the Cape Fear Basin Development Association.

The foregoing resolution wam offered by Commlissioner R. L. Blue, seconded
by Commissioner J. McN. Gillis, and unanimously passed.

Mr. Lewwox., Is Mr. Tatum, a member of the Board of County Com-
missioners from Bladen County, in the hearing room?

Ts Mr. Hilburn a member of the board of county commissioners?
Wil you come forward? Mr. Hilburn is a member of the Board of
County Commissioners of Bladen County, N.C,, in the flood basin. He
lives down there where we flood every year. Would you have u seat,
sir, and express yourself to the distinguished members of the com-
mittee?

Senator Jorpan. Will you state your name and residence?

STATEMENT OF W. B. HILBURN, MEMBER, BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIOGNERS, BLADEN COUNTY, N.C.

Mr. Hirourn. W. B. Hilburn, Bladenboro, 2 member of the Board
of Commissioners, Bladen County.

T have lived there all my life, and I am familiar with the problems
that we have been discussing more or less, and I think I can appreciate
that we should go along and take the most feasible and reasonable
solution, that which we call the Corps of Engineers’ plan of a big dam
and two or three other dams. That, in short, is my feeling and my
understanding.

Any questions?

Senator Jorpax. No questions.

Do you have any other witnesses ¢

Mr. LENNox. Yes,thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Col, George W. Gillett, retired.

In presenting this witness to the committee, Mr. Chairman, and
gentlemen of the subcommittee, I would like to state that he is a life-
Tong resident of the Cape Fear River Basin, a former district engineer,
retired, now an engincering consultant to many agencies of the Fed-
eral Government in matters pertaining to water waste, flood control,
and, in my personal knowledge, the man who has walked over every
mile, you might say, from the top of the Cape Fear River Basin to the
Atlantic Ocean where you could walk when we were in drought.

Senator Joroan. Proceed, Colonel Gillette.

STATEMENT OF COL. GEORGE W. GILLEITE, ENGINEERING AND
ECONOMIC CONSULTANT, PORTS, HARBORS, AND WATERWAYS;
CHAIRMAN, WILMINGTON PORT AND WATERWAY DEVELOP-
MENT COMMISSION

Colonel Giusrre. Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen, technical studies
ol the potentinls of the North Carolina’s greatest river system have
heen gong on for more than 30 years.

With your permission, I would like to tell you some of the studies
1 have condueted and which 1 think contributes to my qualifications
to appear before this great body today. ’

I first began seriously to study the Cape Fear River in 1931-32 when
T prepared a thesis based on the potentials for a fully developed sys-
wead of dams Tor navigation, flood control, and power.
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Tror this study, T was awarded 2 professional engineering degree
from my college. . i

During this period of study, I visited and explored the sites of each
of the proposed dams—New Ilope, Randleman, and Howards Mill.
T conducted the initial hearing on the v.‘_ell-conceived' iden for develop-
ing the upper Cape Fear TRiver. This was held in Fayetteville in
Atgust 1946 and was in response to a ITouse resolution which was
spearheaded by that able Member of Congress, the lale J. Byard
Clark.

I have given serious sludy to the effect of adequate flood control of
this lock and dam No, 3, planning it and building it. I mention tluis
to show you that I have serionsly considered tlus projecl, proposed
project, for many, many years. )

I Liave traversed the Cape Fear &iver from ifs source, above Greens-
boro to the ocean and I do feel that T am qualified to have comments
pertaining to this proposed development. T wn not going to dwell
on the controversial subject of large dams versus small dams, nor of
such subjects, technical subjects as the geology and the ground water
and other subjects, but I shall speak only on the effects of flood con-
trol, polution abatement, navigation and the cost to the I*c(}eml Gov-
erninent of maintaining navigation channels on the Cape Fear River
from Fayetteville to the ocean.

My early studies <howed that more than S feet of water could be—
flood height, would be reducect by more thau § feet at Fayetteville,
with a dam at New Ilope. The Corps of Engineers’ report actually
attributed 914 feet saving to that major flood eontrok. )

This reduction of flood heights in the Cape Fear River will e ex-
tonded to Wilmington, and we do have our problems there during ex-
treme conditions when the floodwaters come down and meet high ticles

- cenn. ) )
f“ﬁ}n;gl%(seen & feel of water over the docks at Wilmington and 1t
could happen again and will happen again unless 1t 13 controlled by

he dam. ]

' &*nvigab]e channel depths are ﬂ:uthorized from the ocean to Wil-
mington 84 feet, and from Wilmington to Fayetteville 8 fect. The
anuual cost of maintenance is nearly $G00,000 to maintain not a com-
plete 34-foot channel, but a navigable channel between Wilmington
and the ocean: around $120,000 to maintain the channel between Wil-
mington and Fayetteville. _

Now, Congress has authorized 38 feot, of water from the ocean to
Wilmington, and that will increase the problem. I am not prepared
to give the exact figures in Savings it the annual maintenance of this
important navigational port if floods are controlled from above, but
1 will boldly estimate that tlie maintenance can be cut in half both
below Wilmington and between Wilmington and Tayetteville.

What is more important, the navigation will be greatly improved.
Tt is very dilicult—navigation is very difficult now—in low stages
between Wilmington and Fayettoville, but that will be improved be-
cause you will have a regulating stream flow. )

One of the little problems we have n the Wilminglon arex 13 that
of streum pollution. We think of it, but it is given too little thought,
I think in other areas. 'The water supply of our syslem comes from
the Cape Fear River, taking the water just about lock No. 1, and we
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ore much concerned with maintaining a pure and plentiful supply
of {resh water. :

Tndustries are locating in the rivers above Wilmington today. Qur
fish industry is somewhaf affected by the pollution.

T take time here to read a letter from the vice president of one of
our large industries, the Riegel Paper Corp.:

The low-flow augmentation that will result from the proposed New Hope Dam
will be of great economi¢ value to Riegel I'aper Corp. 'This value les in two
areas: (1) By providing adeguale water resources for future expansion of
Riepel Paper Corp.’s facilities, and for the attraction of related industries, such
os the new causte chlorine plant now being built by the Allied Chemical Corp.
adjucent to the Llegel plant site; and {2) by incrensing the waste agsimilative
capacity of the Cape Fear River, resulting in a lower future econowie burden
for nonproductive waste treatment facilities.

The savings to Ricgel Paper Corp. &8 a result of these factors will do much to
enable our compuny to continue ity economic growth and to provide job oppor-
tunities and economic security to southeastern North Carolina. We heartily
endorse the proposed New Hope Dam.

T would like to add this word to that beeanse it is difficult to treat,
without an adequate flow as extreme low tide, the pollution of this
strean adequately—it is most difiieult and almost impossible.

Now the pollution problem is not only proposed as it virtually
aflects the conditions of today, but it also has a damaging effect on
solicitation of businesses, industries in the future in that area. There
is anly one method, gentlemen, as T see it, and that is a regulated
and coordinnted streamflow that will hold back the floodswaters in
the upper part of the State where they are needed to replenish the
eround supply, and keep them off of the lower part where they are
not needed.

1 think we should, by all means, build the Nesw Hope Dam as early
as possible, and I do not think that any other system-—other than the
one covered in this report and I must say I have reread that with
areat interest and I find little to comnment on adversely.

I think the economic justification is sound. The reason they have
given in there—if anything, they huve been too conservative prob-
ably in some of the savings that will be effected, particularly in the
flood control in the area between Fayetteville and Wilminglon and
in the dredging operations to maintain the channel.

Gentlemen, T thank you very much for the privilege of being here
today to present my views. ' )

(The full statenient of Colonel Giliette follows:)

Prorosep PLAN FOR DEVELOFMENT oF THE CAPE FEar RIVER BASIN

{By George W. Gillette, engineering and economic consultant, ports, harbors,
and waterways: chairman, Wilmington Port and Waterway Idevelopment
Commission)

Technical studies of the potentials of North Carolina's greatest river system
have been going on for more than 30 years. With your permission I propose to
tell you as briefly as possible some phases of this study, and my part in them
that might contribute to my qualifications to appear before you today.

I first hegan seriously to study the Cape Fear River in 1931532 when I pre-
pared a theisis based on the potenlinls for a fully developed system of dams
for navigation, flood eontrol, and power. For this study, I was awarded a pro-
fessional engineering degree from my college. During this period of study, I
vigited and explored the sites of each of the proposed dams—New llope, Randle-
man, and Iowards Mill, T conslucted the initial hearing on the weli-conceived
idea for developing the upper Cape Fear River. This was held In Fayetteville
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{n August 1046, and was in response to a House resolution which was spenr-
headed by that able Member of Congress, the late J. Byard Clark.

I have given serious study to the effect of adequate flood control of this river
gystem on navigation below Fayetteville, It seewms well to mention that I had
active charge, under the district engineer at Wilmington, of the planning and
constructlon of lock and dam No. 3 at Elizabethtown.

QGentlemen, 1 have traversed the Cape Tear River from its source 15 miles
above Greenshoro to the Atlaptie Ocenn, I feel qualified to gpeak to you on the
importance Lo carrying to tulfillment. the ptan outlined in the comprehensive
report oD the Cape Fear River Rasin as submitted and recommended by the
Corps of Epginecrs.

The controversial subject of large dams versus emall dams will not be included
in my remarks. Nor will such subjects a8 geology, ground water, aml other
technical subjects covered by others. I shall speak only on the effects the pro-
posed dams would have on flood control, pollution abatement, navigation, ani
costs to the Federal Government of maintaining navigation channels on the
Cape Fear River from Fayetteville to the ocean.

My early studies revealed that a dam, such as proposed at New ITope, would
reduce the major flood height at Fayetteville by more than & feet. Actually
the plan recommended by the Corps of Engineers will reduce the height of a
major flood by approximately 914, feet. By the same token this dam woulil
reduce flooded areas below, in the Kelly area, and {hereby reduce maintenance
costs of dikes. Health conditions In this area would be improved. This reduc-
tion in flood heights on the Cape Fear above Wilmington will be extended to
Wilmington Harbor where, under certain conditions of high orean tides, com-
bined with Soodwaters above, ¢an and does cauge serious damuge at Wilming-
ton with a possible disruption of river traffic and an increase in the hazards of
navigation due to swift currents.

Navigable channel depths are authorized at 34 feet from the ocean to Wilining-
ton, 25 feet to Navassa, and 8 feet to Fayetteville. The annual cost of main-
taining the scanty 34 feet to Wilmington is pearly $600,000 annually. To main-
tain 8 feet to Fayetteville costs approximately $120,000 annually.

Congress has authorized 38 feet from the ocean fo Wilmington. Now I am
not prepared to give an exact figure of the savings in annual maintenance of
these important navigation courses if floods are controlled above, but I will
boldly estimate that, with the proposed three-dam system under coordinated
control, the maintenance cost for dredging can be cut in balf. What is more
important pavlgation to Wilmington and to Fayetteville, which is now difficuit
during low stages, will be greatly improved.

One of the little-thought-of problems we in Wilmington experience ig stream
pollution. The water sunply of our city comes from the Cape lear River above
lock and dam No. 1. We are much concerned with maintaining a pure and
plentiful supply of fresh water. Industries are locating on the rivers abave
Wilmington, Our fish industry is today affected by pollution, 1 take time here
to read an cxtract from 2 letter from the viee president of one of our largest
jndustries, Riegel Taper Corp. :

“The low-flow angmentation that will resualt from the proposed New Hope
Dam will be of great economic value to Riegel Paper Corp. his value lies in
two areas: (1) By providing adequate water resources for future expansion of
Riegel Paper Gorp.'s facilities, and for the attraction of related industries, such
as the new caustic chlorine plant now belng built by the Allied Chemieul Corp.
adjacent to the Riegel plant site; and (2} by increasing the waste assimilative
eapacity of the Cape Tear River, resulling in 2 lower future geonoinic burden
for nonproductive waste treatment facililics.

“The gavings to Riegel Paper Corp. 48 4 result of these fuctors will do much
to engble our company to continue its economic growth and to provide job
apportunities and economic security to southeastern North Carolina. We heart-
ily endorse the proposed New Hope Dam."”

Now this poilution problem not only is presently adversely affecting this
large corporation, but it is damaging in our efforts in soliciting new jndustries.

There is one answer to all of the above—a regulated nod coordinated stream-
flow. Hold back the floodwaters in the uplands where they are needed badly for
supplying gubsurface storoge. Keep the floods off the lower river where we have

a surpius, Let us build these proposed dams as quickly a8 possible. Regulate
the flow as can only be done with such dams. That will increase the flow s0
badly needed inddry weather. Thig in turn will reduce stream pollution and aid
: e Temenltarille as well aw making Tnvetteville o better inland
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port. And, in so dUi{lg, thousands of dollars will be saved gnoually in mainte-
nance wox:k for dredging and diking. All of which will make for a much grester
port of Wilmington, for a better State and country.

Gentlemen, it has been nearly 16 years since the first hearing was held on this
proposed development. I have followed it ever since. I have recently reviewed
this comprehensive report of the Corps of Engineers and find nothing wrong with
it, In general, tl_le savings to be effected are congervative. In the name of
progress, health, improved water transportation, and econcmy in maintenance
of navigation channels, I strongly recommend the New Hope project for early
construction.

Senator Jorpax. Thanlk you very much, Colonel Gillette.

Congressman Ltrannqn, do you have another witness ¢

Mr. Lennow. Yes, if the committee will indulge me. I want to call
the former mayor of the city of Fayetteville to the committee's at-
tention.

TGeor re, will you come around please, sir, I am so glad you are here.
We had three mayors of Fayelteville at the hearing yesterday, two
of them had to return.

George, I didn't file your statement.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE B. HERNDON, FORMER MAYOR OF THE
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, K.C.

Mr. Herxpon. T am the former mayor of the city of Fayetteville,
and too, it gives me great pleasure, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of
the committce, to be hére with you this morning.

I might say that during the 12 years that I served with the city of
Fayelteville I cooperated 1n working very hard with the local citizens
chamber of commerce, in getting something done about our flood areq
in the Fayetteville and Cape Fear Basin, and I am here today and
would like to go on record as appreciating anything that you as a
subcommittee of the Senate of the United States will help us to do.

Senator JoRDAN, Thank you very much, Mr. Herndon. We are
mighty glad to have you with usalso.

Mr. TLunwon. Will you state your full name and position with
Braden County, please, sir ¢

STATEMENT OF W. @ FUSSELL, INDUSTRIAL REPRESERTATIVE,
BLADEN COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

~ Mr. Fossee. 1 am W. G. Fussell. I hold the position now as
industrial representative of the Bladen County Industrial Develop-
ment Commission. 1 have been for some time familiar with the situa-
tion, Mr. Chairman, as it affects Bladen County. It affects it very
seriously, it has over a number of years. I have read the comprehen-
sive study of the Corps of Lngineers, and on behalf of my Industrial
Development Commission 1 heartily recommend its approval by this
committee and ultimately by Congress itself.

Senator JorvaN. Thank you very much.

Mr. Lennon. Mayor O, O. Allsbrook, Mr. Charles Clark, the secre-
tary of the Cape Fear River Basin Association of Fayetteville.
bo%ls I\rhfr. J .dI\;ID-'I II:LAII, chairman of the Board of County Commnissioners,
bot X1 I\ ;?dltno M ‘1;0 lsbrook were in here a few minutes ago. 1 guess

Come back, Mr, Clark, and identify yourself, please, sir.

SenatorJownsy . Weare plad to have you with us. Have a seat, sir.
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STATEMENT OF CHARLES C. CLARK, SECRETARY, CAPE FEAR
RIVER BASIN ASSOCIATION

Mr. Crare. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I do
appreciate the privilege of appearing here. As secrefary-treasurer
of the Cape Fear Basin Development Association we regretted that
some of our officials and some of our spokesmen who have made 2
definite study of this situation did have to return. To meet with the
approval of the group I would like to have the remarks of Mr. J. 0.
Tally, who presented a very comprehensive report on this proposal
yesterday before the House committeo for your consideration.

Senator Jorpax. You would like to have that put in the record?

Mr. Cnaxk. Yes. It iscalled A New Hope. '

Senator Joroan. It will follow your remarks.

Mr. Crark. Gentlemen, it is a privilege especially for me to appear
before this group because it happens that I am a displaced Okla-
homan now living in North Carolina. I have seen what could be done
with rivers. We have in Cumberland County approximately 170,000

eople. )
P We have the distinction, or the problem, right now of being classi-
fied as a surplus labor area. One of the principal problems that we
encounter in working toward industrial development is the fact we
have water running out of our cars, but we do not have it under
control so that it can be used.

Within the last 2 years we had one of America’s leading industries
that was quite interested in loeating just south of the city of Fayelte-
ville. It would have provided employment that in some 10 years’ time
would have provided a payroll the size of that now provided by Fort
Bragg. They were interested to the point that they waited to make
their decision on the location of this industry 10 months while we
were trying to find out whether there could be a happy compromise
reached befween the two programs that have been presented.

‘After that time due to the fact they needed minimum of 50 million
aallons of water o day they did have to go elsewhere to another State.
This would have helped solve our problem, and as you know heing one
of these areas that Js identified as being a surplus labor arca offers
plenty of problems, and we feel that the development of the Engineers
program would certainly be of great assistance to us in developine
our portion of it.

(The article “A New Hope” referred to follows:)

A New IIorE

We are deeply sensibie of the honor we have to appear before you today.
Tlowever we know that you are not tere to give honor or to receive homage.
You arc here, as you have been for more than threescore years, to give unselfish
and intensgive attention to the water resource needs of our country and to receive
all the objeetive information you cnn obtnin to support sound Judgment anil
effective action to plan and provide for those needs.

1t is obedient to this spirit and for this opportunity that we come to you
now. We bespeak your concern for and consideration of a projeet for our State
that will benefit our State and your and our epuntry., We call it New Ilope.
It iz not just a general project; itis a specific propesal. It has been transmitted
to the Congress of the United States for aunthorization and subsequent appropria-
tion and cxecution,

e
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LEGAL AUTHORITY

Pursuant to the nuthority of a resclution of the House of Representatives,
Committee on Flood Centrol, adopted in May 1946, the Corps of Engineers, to-
gether With_other interested groups, has, since that time, conducted a series of
comprehensive surveys and studies of flopd control and other aspects of the
Cape Fear River Bagin in North Carolina.

' EXTENBIVE BTUDY

It should therefore be noted, first, that the recommendations growing from that
study which have been submitted to the U.8. Congress for action, and are being
gubmitted now to you for support of that action, are pot hastily conceived
recommendations. ‘They have been born of years of surveys, studies, hearings,
and mature consideration and judgment.

ENDORBEMENTE

These recommendations have been suecessfully derived and reconsidered and
endorsed by an ascending line of the appropriate and responsible officials—
the district engineer, the Corps of Engineers, the Chief of the Corps of Engineers.

These recommendations, together with the full data of the studies supporting
them, have been filed with you in the two volumes issued by the Corps of Engi.
neers under original date of October 30, 1061, entitled “Comprehensive Report
on Cape I'ear River Basin, N.C."”

SUPPORT OF PUBLIO OFFICIALS

The recommenilations have been further and duly considered by the responsible
and affected elected public officinls. The Governor of North Carolina, both U.&
Senators from North Carolina, ond every Congressman from North Carolina
whose district is related to the project, save one, urges the Congress to enact into
law, fact, and progresa these recommendations,

It s_lmuld therefore be noted, second, that perhaps never before has a project
of this magnitude been brought before you for consideration and approval
attended by so nearly unanimeus and thoughtful approval of the highest public
oflicials concerned.

o serve your purpose of consideration of this matter during this hearing
apd before and after your study of the cited volumes of data, this report (some-
times in the words of the district engineer, sometlines in edited form) will
geelz briefly to summarize and emphasize the major polnts of this project—to
tell you what New Hope i3, why it is, amd why it is new hope for so many of us.

MAR

Let us, then, draw your atteution to the attached general map—it illustrates
the first specific proposal which needs action now. This is the construaction of
the I\}ew Hope Dam on the Haw River, a principal tributary of the Cape Fear.
Looking at this map you will see that the Cape Fear River Basin has a drainage
area of nbout 8570 square miles. There are 22 counties of North Carolina
wholly or partly in this basin.

CAPE FEAR BASIN

Although largely rural, this basin is the most highly industrialized basin in
thlc State. The basin’s greatest width is about 60 miles, its length is about 200
rmles._ In 1959 the waterborne commerce between Wilmington and Fayettevilie,
in a river commerce situation that is still almost completely unexploited, was
434,000 tons. The Cape Fear River area income, from $2.1 billion in 1958, is ex-
pected to reach $28.1 billlon by 2010. Its population then will be 2 million ¢om-
parcd with less than 850,000 in 1060,

FLOODE

_Let s now consider the tragic, wasteful flood history of this basin. In my

city, Fayetteville, and its surrounding area, the most populous andd economically

important part of the basin, floed stage on the Cape Fear River has been reached

or exceeded 119 times during the period 1888-1957. Many of these foods have

Illgsl‘t: damaging. Some bave been devastating. Of these the worst occurred in
L1
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The September 1945 storm generally caused the highest flood stages of record
throughout the Cape Fear River Basin, except in the headwaters. A flood of
this magnitude has an estimated oceurrence (requency of about once In 67 years
at Pittsboro, once in 70 years at Moncure, once in €7 years at Lillington, once in
37 years at Fayetteville, and once in about 21 years at lock No. 2. The Sep-
tember 1945 flood stages in Fayetteville exceeded the J}ngst 1908 flood stages by
0.2 foot, which was the previous record flood. :

Tloods on the headwaters of the Cape Fear River in the upper reaches atre
flashy and usually bave a duration of 2 to 4 days. On lower reaches of the
river the flood plain widens to geveral miles, which results in slowly rlsing and
falling stages. In this area floods usually lnst from 5 to 14 days,

Above the confluence of the Deep and Haw Rivers the hasin is hilly, with
narrow flood plalns. Below the coniluenece the basin generally flattens and the
flond plaing become much wider. "hig aren §g devoted primarily to farming and
contalus some of the most produetive agrlcultural land in ihe State. In gen-
eral, all the main highways and railroads that cross the flood plaing through-
out the hasin have been elevated so that they are flooded only by extreme
stages, However wmany miles of sccondary roads are flooded frequently.

Many small couununities loeated on tributaries througzhout the basin are sub-
ject to infrequent flood damage of varying severity. Several industrial plants
and mill villages loeated on or adjacent to the main-stream flood plain of the Haw
and Deep Rivers have suffered severe damages in the past.

About one-fourth of the commercial and residential area in and about Fay-
ctteville and the community of East Tayetteville across the river are in the
flood plain and were scverely damaged by ficodwaters in 1946. The area inun-
dated by tbe 1945 Hood west of the river at Fayettevllle averaged about 1 mile
in width and terminated at the edge of the main business and residential sections
of Fayetteville; slightly higher flond stages would have caused considerably
more damage. If the 1945 flood should occur again, a totel of about 3,000
howes, 200 commercial and industrial establishments, schools, churches, and
other public buildings which are now located in the 1945 flood zome would be
affected. The commercial estabiishments are primarily retail stores and the in-
dustries affected consist of large oil and asphalt planis, textile factories, a chem-
fcal plant, a steel fabrication shop, cotton gins, and bottling plants. Many in-
dustrigl tracts readily accessible to the navigable channel and water supply
of the river have not been developed becuuse of the risk of floods.

The flood plains of the minor tributaries are generally well developed, pri-
marily because of the heavier, more fertile soils on the flood plains as compared
to the adjacent uplands. While the flood plains of the main stems of the Haw
and Deep Rivers are generally narrow and in some areas relatively inaccessible
for farming, the soils are fertile and are farmed to some extent. The flood
plains below the confluence of the IIaw and Deep Rilvers are very wide and gen-
erally more fertile and better adapted to more diversified farming than other
farmlands throughout the basin.

The flood plaing in the Cape Tear River Basin produce excellent crops of ecorm,
tobaceo, hay, and cotton. In addition many acres of truck, peanut, and soybeans
are grown in the lower basin flood plains. The extensive timberlands supply
many logs for lumber and pulpwood.

About 70 percent of the total 314,000 acres of flood plain in the Cape ¥ear River
Rasin is loeated along the main stem of the Cape Fear River, beginning about 13
miles upstream from Wilmington and extending upstream some 157 miles to the
conflucnce of the Deep and Haw Rivers. Of 210,100 acres of flood plain in this
reach, 48,000 acres have been cleared primarily for agriculture uses. Much of
the woodland, which make up about 60 percent of the flood-plain area, has soila
that would make good cropland if it were not for the floods. The cleared land
nsed for farming has 41 percent of its acreage in corn, 20 percent in pasture,
24 percent in small grains and hay, 2 percent in truck crops, 8 percent in cotton,
and 2 percent in tebaceo. Only o small part of the land 18 used for growing
winter crops. Stock rising is rather extensive, with 20 percent of the cleared
land being used for pasture.

A considerable amount of flood damage occurs annually throughout the Cape
Fear River Basin. Most of the flood damage occurs on the broad flood plaing
below the confluence of the Deep and Haw Rivers. The preatest loss in rural
area results from tangible physical damage to agricultural property, crops, and
to public roads, Nonrural losses ure suffered predominately at the Fayetteville
nrea and result from tangible physical and business damage to urban and in-
dustrinl properties.

e BT A
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With the present ogricultural development of the flood plains it is estimated
that a recurrence of the September 1945 flood would cause rural damages amount-
ing to about 33 million throughout the basin, Approximately 93 percent of these
damages or $2.8 milllon worth, would occur on the flood plains along the main
stem of the Cape Fear River below the confluence of the Deep and Haw Rivers.
The average annual damages to the same properties are estimated to be $5621,000
for the basin. About B2 percent of these average annual damages occur on the
flood plains below the confluence of the Deep and Haw Rivers.

Nonrural flood losses are the tangible physical and business losses lnflicted
on urban and industrial properties, utilities, and transportation facilities, and
{he additionnl expenses lncurred in providing emergency and precautionary
mensures. With the present nonrural flood-plain development in the Cape Fear
Tiver DBasin It is estimaled that o recurrence of the September 1945 flood would
cause noorurnl flood damages amounting to about $8 milllon, of which 82 percent
would occur on the main-stem flood plains of the Cape Fear River below the con-
fitence of the Deep and Haw Rivers. The average annual damage to nonrural
properties in the basin is estimated to be $996,350. Approximately 85 percent of
these domages oceur on the lower Cape Fear River flood plains.

The greatest portion of the floel plains in the Cape Fear River Basin cannot be
put to optimum use, largely due to the existing flood hazard. This applies partic-
ularly to the main-stem flocd plaing of the Cape Fear River. Assurances of
reduced river stages are necessary to stimulate changes in current farming prac-
tices and urban development growth so that greater net returns may be realized
from the lands 1ying in the flood plains.

WATER BUIPLY

_Although the Cape Fear River Basin is located in one of the most favored
climatic reglons, where rainfanll is generally well distributed and relatively
abundant, water shortages have been experienced in some years by a number of
munieipalities,

EXISTING WATER SUPPLT PROJECTS

Practically all of the cities in the Cape Fear River DBasin are continually
expanding their watcr-supply systems to meet demands gttendant upon popula-
fion and industrial growth. In 1960 there were approximately 569,000 people
being served by municipal or publicly owned water-supply systems located in the
Cape Fear River Basin, About 83 percent of the users were served by systema
utlizing impounded surface water which was used at an average rate of
approximately 55 millien gallons per day. The total design capacity of these
gystems is estimated at about 81 million gallons per day. Some 76 industrial
plants used water at the average rate of about 45 million gallons per day, with
26 of the plants accounting for 97 percent of the average daily rate from surface-
water supplies. The above industrial water-use rate does not include an average
561 million gallons per day required by two large thermopower generating p]anks
for cooling water. This cooling-water requirement at times exceeds the daily
flow at the intakes, and recirculation hecomes mandatory-

EXPECIED

Municipal and Industrial process water usage from all sources is expected to
about double in the Cape Fear River Basin within the next 20 years. Therefore,
byl the year 1980 an estimated total of approximately 200 willion gallons per day
will be needed. Future water requirements are based on the population growth
and anticipated percent rate of industrial growth. A rigid interpretation of
historical records has, in the past, almost always resulted in an underdesigned
water system. The Helect Committee on National Water Resources estimates
thint the present 147 gallons per capita per day of average municipal water nse
cm}ld conceivably increase to about 185 gallons per caplta per day in 1880 and
295 gallons per capita per day in the year 2000, with a possible leveling oft
thereafter,

Based on an annual population growth of 2 percent, the projected municipal
demands veill surpass the availabte supply by 1970.
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BUMMARY, PLROBLEMS, SOLUTIONB, BENEFITE
The problems ' .

Flood control.—The need for protection of the fiood plains of the Cape Iear
River Basin from disastrous floods has long been recognized. The general cco-
nomie improvement, the development of new or enlarged industrial plants, and
the topographic limltations of areas guitable for development have increased
property values within the flood plains. The major flood of 1945, which eaused
extensive damage, focused attention sharply on the Cape Fear River Basin and
emphasized the urgent need for flond protectlon, Recurrence of a storm equal
in magnitude to that which produced the maximum fivod stages of record would
subject the area to damages estimated to range between §§ and $15 million, de-
peoding upon rainfall-intensity distribution and season of the year., The average
annual damages in the basin under present conditions amount to $1,445,000 {1060
price level). Developments withln the ftood-plain area during {he last deende in-
dicate that further industrial and sgricultural growth ean he expected even if
flood control is not provided. Taking this growth into consideration, average
annual damages are estimated to be $1,736,000 over the next 100 years.

Water supply—In several areas the dependable flow of the Cape I'ear River
and its tributarics is barely adequate to meet the present water-supply needs of
jndustries and wunicipalities. Expansion of industry now under construction or
plauned will require either additional minimum dependable flow or pxpensive re-
circulation equipment. While the water supply for domestic consmnption is
fairly adequate at present, these local sources will be [uily developed by the
end of ihe next decade. After then, water must be taken in ever-increasing
quantities to meet growing domestic needs. When these needs are considered it
must be concluded that a higher dependable streamtlow iy cssential if serious
water shortages are to be avelded in the future. While the use of water for irri-
gation has not developed to any great extent at the present in the Cape Fear
Ttiver Basip, it is anticipated that in the foreseeable future irrigation storage
Incilities will be a primary and urgent need throughout the hasin.

Water quality control—The pollution of the streams in the Cape Fear River
Basin hy industrial effluents and domestic sewage is of serious concern te the
aren beeause of its effect on the suitability of the stream for water supply and
recreation and because of its public health implications. Treatment by known
methods will not alene suffice to bring the streams to acceptable standards of
quality. Therefore, dilution of industrial and domestic wastes is a necessary
factor in maintaining aeceptable standards of water quality. The amount of
water flowing during dry periods is insufficient to provide adquate dilution under
present conditions.

Recreation——The growtih in the population in the basin, especially in the in-
dustrial and metropolitan centers near the upper portion of the buasin, has in-
creased the need for recreational development. Such developinent rernuires fa-
cllities for water sports, fishing, and for activities such as camping, picnicking,
and sightseeing. kxisting recreational facilities are inadequate and incapable
of being expanded to meet the needs.

The selution—The comprebensive plan of development of water resources
presented in this report is designed to provide a basis for solution of most of
the water problems in the basin for the next 100 years. Cognizance wag taken
of views and desires of local interests and other agencies of the State amd
Federal Governments; however, the plan was not based on the opinions of any
one group, but envisions the needs of the basin as a whele and how those needs
may be best met in the future with n balanced system of improvements. It is
contemplated that all interested agencies will be working cooperatively on the
different phases of development during the life of the plan. The inunedinte
needs are for flood protection, low-flow regulation, and recreation. Construction
of the New Hope project would be the most efficiont way to fulfill the immediate
needs. (Precise data on the New Hope Dam are shown on exhibit A.} The
Randelman and Howardy Mill projects as well as several small reservoir projects
would be completed by 1975 and would provide additional flood protection, water

supply, and recreational facilities which would meet the basin’s growing needs.

o m————
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Additional reserveirs throughout the basin would be phased inte the plan to
provide sofutions to the anticipated future water conservation needs. This
arrangement provides suflicient flexibility scheduling of the latter projects to
offset any inaccuracies in the projections of anticipated needs. - : -

Immediate solulion.~—Approximately 87 percent of the average annual flood
dnmage in the basin occurs on the flcod plains below the New Hope damsite, aud
the New Ilope project is capable of reducing the flood damages on the flood plains
below that point by about 80 percent, which ig equivalent to about 70 percent of all
basin damage. The immediate low-flow regulation needs occur primarily on the
mnin stem of the Cape Fear River below the New Hope project site, The low-
flow augmentation from the New Hope project, which would assure a dependable
minimum flow of GO0 cubic feet per second at Lillington, would meet these im-
mediate needs. The immedinte recceation needs for the basin are primarily
centered in the more heavily pepulated upper basin area.

Benefils, gpeneral—Benefits which would acerue from the comprehensive plan
of development result from flood control, pravisions for immediate and future
water-supply storage, water-quality improvement, provision of recreational
facilities, fish and wildlife conservation measures, and increased flows for
downstream water users. These benefits, as discussed in the following para-
graphs, were determined in accordance with their exnected rate of acerual over
the time as established by the estimated sequence of construction. All future
benefits for each project were discountied to the present worth at the time of
project completion and were distributesd over the 100-year evaluation period in
an equivalent annual series.

Flood control—These result from the reduction of flood damages and the
enhancement of food-plain lands due to the protection afforded by the plan of
improvewent., Tlood-lamage-reduction benefits were determined as the differ-
ence between the estimated average anunl damages with and without the projects.
Tand-enhancement benefils, expressed in average annual values, were based on
the projected changes in flood-plain utilization resulting in higher type uses.
The ugricultural enhancement benefits were determined as the difference in net
returns {rom pretected and unprotected agricultural lands. The average annoal
ngnagricultural enhancement benefit per acre was computed as 5 percent of the
difference in net market value of protected and unprotected land. The food
control benefits were adjusted to reflect normal development of the area in the
absence of the projeets. The total average annual flood control benefits credited
to Ithe comprehensive plan of development are estimated to be $2,152,000, of
which $1,580,000 are fload damage reduction benecfits and $563,000 are land-
erhancement benefits, These benefits are based on 1960 price levels.

Water supply bencfits.—These would accrue to the comprehensive plan of
developnent from the provision for immediate and future water-supply storage
for rpumcipal, industrial, and agricultural water uses. These storages would
Provide reservoir supplics for upstream needs as well as low-flow reguiation for
dgwustreum water-supply needs. Water-supply benefits were estimates as the
rmrfzrcnce of cost in Tulfilling the present and future water-supply needs of the
basn_1 by the proposed comprehensive plan of development and the most eco-
nowmical alternative method. The total average annual water-supply benefits
crcditcc_l to the comprehensive plan of development of the Cape Fear River Basin
are cstimated to be $1,200,000, of which 50 percent is municipal water-supply
benefits, 33 percent is industrial water-supply benefits, and 17 percent is agri-
cultural water-supply (irrigation) benefits.

Water qual}'ty contrel.—The Iow-flow regulation afforded by the plan will dilute
wiagtes, thus jmproving the quality of water in the streams affected. In aceord-
ance w:th.l"u'blic Law 87—88, 87th Congress, July 20, 1961, the estimated benefit
produced is considered to be the benefit from water-quality improvement after
‘adcqpatc treatment is provided at the source by loecal inferests. The water
quahty-cor_ltrol benefit from the comprehensive plan is estimated to be $255,000.

Recreation.—Recreation benefits are expected to accrue from the proposed
wab_er—resources—development plan in the to caterories of general recreation and
fishing and hunting, The average annual recreation benefits attributable to the
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proposed project are estimated to be $1,137,000. These benefits were based on
estima;gs of projected apnual attendance and use of recreational facilities
provided. '

Other benefiis—In additior to the previously evaluated benefits attribulable
to the water-resources-development plan for the Cape Fear River Basin, certain
intangible beneflts which are not susceptible to direct monetary evaluation would
be realized. The flood control provided by the plan wonld result in prevention
of loss of human life in addition to the prevention of monetary damages. Filash
floods which ocecur in the upper reaches of the basin, often with little or no warn-
ing, would be retarded and considerably reduced in magnitude by the proposed
reservoirs. The relatively abundant supply of water in the Cape Trenr River
Basin has been a major factor in promoting the expansion of industry in the
aren, with investments in plants amounting to hundreds of millions of dollars.
Other factors, such as the navigable portion of the river, the deepwater port of
Wilmlngton, adequate labor supply, climate, and a wide variety of available sites,
provide strong stimulation for continuing industrial growth, Industrial demuand
is now dangerously close to equaling the dependable water supply, and it is
logical to assume that an |ncrease in this supply will result in further industriai
expansion in the basin. Improved water guality, in addition to lts monetary
value, would reduce local nuisauces gueh as scum and odor and would provide an
gverall improveinent in general sanitation and appearance of the streains. Navi-
gation benefits, while not evaluated wonetarily in this report, would resuit from
the flood control features which would reduce navigation hazards prevalent dur-
ing flood stages and reduce mainienance costs at the existing locks and dams.
Land-treatment measures s well ag the upstream reservoirs would tend to re-
duce the sediment load of the giream, resulting in decreased cost for maintenance
dredging in the navigable channels. Additional benefits to the asin would result
from the recreational facilities provided under the proposed plan. Bporting
goods stores, meotels, restaurants, and other commercial activities waould develop
to support the recrealional activities of both the resident and nonresident pepu-
lation; however, these benefits would be secondary and have not been evaluated.
Benefits to the general welfare, economy, and gecurity of the people in the Cape
Fear River Basin cannot be predetermined nor evaluated in monetary terms.

CONCLUSION

1t is submitted that all these facts, plug all data in the two volumes of the
Corps of Engineers report, fully support the summary findings and recommenda-
tiong of the district enginecr, whicli summary ig reproduced on the sceond page

following. . )
And it is further, and finally, submitted that if construction of this projected

dam ig authorized and executed there will be a future day of unew hope for
millions of Americans in Morth Carolina.
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BUMMARY

The District Engineer finds that there is an immediate and urgent need for
improvemgnts to provide flood protection, water-quality control, and recreation
in the basin of the Cape Fear River, N.¢. He also finds a strong need to provide
stor_a;';e for future municipal and industrial water supply and irrigation, and
additional storage for flood control, water-quality control, and recreational :’meds
to keep abreast of economie growth in this region. Without projects he estimates
tha’_ average annual flood damages in the area over the mext 100 years to be
$1,736,000; bhe finds that the present minimumn streamflow of 19 cubic feet per
second at Lillington, N.C., is inadequate for present-day water-quality contrel
and that by the year 2005 the storage needs are estimated to be 1,54 000 aCre:
feet., H_e _has determined that the most practical, feasible, and eco'nmf]ic nieans
for providing gor‘ the needs of the Cape Fear River Basin over the next 100 yearé
is a plan consisting of reservoeirs, local flood protection projects, and watershed-
treatment mensures. IHe has developed & general plan of improvemenut and
sequence of construction which would include reservoirs on major and minor
tnlmtanqs of the Cape Fear River above Fayetteville, N.C., and cowplementary
cons_er_vgmon programs by other Federal and State agencies. Accordingly, as
tlTle initial step of development, he recommends construction at this time of’the
I\pw Hope Dam loeated on the Haw River below the mouth of the New Hope
River; c_md I_:hat. further studies be made of the Randleman and IIowards Miil
Reser\'rmrs sites and o_f other local flood control and water-supply reservoir sites
to verify n_nd/or nmodify the sequence of construction of the future projects so
as to ?rovule. for the progressive development of the water resources of the
Qupe Ben‘r River Basin. He further recommends continucus and vigorous ac-
tion hy Federal and _non-Federal agencies in prosecution of programs for land
management, controlling and regulating the vze and development of flood plains
preservation and development of recreational and fish and wildiife resourceq,
Improvement of water quality, conservation of ground and surface waters anld'
selection and preservation of sites for the projects that comprise the ultfmate
plan. ¥e notes that the recommended New Hope preoject would fit into any
plan of development for the Cape Fear River Basin and should be the iui‘tial
project to be constructed, and that it would prevent 72 percent of the average
annual fleed damages qccurring in the Cape Fear River Basin and furnish
beneflis f;om water-quality control and recreation. He estimates that the total
co_ustructmn cost, at 1060 priees, of the New Hope project will be $25,612,000
;‘frt:‘lhtﬁggléile co'sts of $100,000 for operaticn, maintenance, and replac'eménts:
178 poreunt average annual benefits will exceed the average anoual costs by
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Summary of pertinent data for New Hope pro;‘col‘-—c‘oncrcte and carth dam,
goted spilhwey

General: : "
Milles above Wilmington_____-..__.__________________; ____________ 173
Drainage ared at damsite, square L IS Pt 1, 690
Streamflow: o
_ Average annual flow (estimated), X o IO S 1, 580
Mipimum monthly flow (estimated}, R PR L bl 17
Regulated flow, P S 600
Maximum flow of rocord (estimated), P X Dl 99, 000
Spillway design 008, €8 mummmmmmmmmmm e mSmm =TT 511, 000
gtandard project flood, c.t.s___.-______-..__-_,_..-..__._____.‘ _________ 258, 000
Reservoir : ‘
Maxzimum pool elevation (spillway design fio0d) ——— e meemmmmmmmmm 250
standard project flood elevation, feet e R S Lty 245
Maximum flood-storage pool elevation, feet MLHdo e 240
Fee-taking line elevation, feet P R Pl by 240
Ares at flood-storage pool elevation, ACTeS.o———mmo—w-—--=om=mmmms 30, 000
Ares to be acquired:
FC.. o mmmmmmemmmammimmmmmSTSESTmSTTIm T 33, 000
B ety Sy 2, 000
Total storage volume to standard project pool elevation, acre-feet - 820, 000
Flood control storage volume, acre-fect - ——wmo——w-—mmm—ummT 541, 000
Conservation pool (top of paol 212 feet m.8.1.), acre-feet ——c-——um-- 119, 00K
Normal tail-water elevation, feet m.8lom—emm—wmmmmmmmm=mm T 159
Minimum tail-water elevation, feet M.Bl mo—eoemmmmmomm=moTmmm 158
Tail-water elevation for spillway design 000 o mmmm e ===
Dam:
Tength overall, fet _———amm——=m—mmmo=om=—==m==T"T=TTTTTTT 1,220
Length overall of spillway, feet —— - 340
Top elevation of dam, feet M81 ocmmemm oo mmm e mmmm s 255
Spillway crest clevation, feet MBIommamremrmmewmmmm o 200
Sluice eaPACIty, CfS o ammmmmmmmr oo m T T 1, 900
Sluice diameter, £EOL. o mmm e ammo—mm———mmmmmem——=S T mmTo ST 8
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Mr. Lexyon. J. R, Powell, come around, please.

%ﬁ' I(’;};L?r(:rlfanJand gent-ler’nen, J. R. Towell of Bladen County rep-
resenting the Rural Electric Co-ops. .

Senator Jordan. Weare glad to hear from you. ) A

Mr. Lenwnon. And speaking for across the State, T believe, Mr.

Powell.

STATEMENT OF J. R. POWELL, BLADEN COUNTY, REPRESENTING
FOUR COUNTY ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP COOPERATIVE

Mr. Powert. T am J. R. Powell from Bladen County, and I speak
for the Four County Electric Membership Association. Ll

We have over 10,000 members, and this organization whole-

artedly endorses the full New Hope Dam. .
hex}m t:;m Star Telephone Membership Association located at (_}\]rm
ton, N.C., having a membership of over 2,300 also endorses the New
171?1]‘1?01?1:‘1:{2‘]'[%1 Eleetric Association representing 33 e]ectl'i(;, cnnp{cm-
tives of North Carolina endorses the construction of the New IHope
Damn.

Senutor Joxpan. Thank you very much, we are glad to have you
“'1;‘21.115,1&1;1;1{0}:. Mayor O. O. Allsbrook, mayor of the city of

Wilmington. ) o
', We are d ave with us.
Senator Jorpax. Mayor, weare delighted to have you wit

We will be glad to hear from you.

STATEMENT OF 0. 0. ALLSBROOK, MAYOR, WILMINGTON, N.C.

\ - bers of the sub-
. sproos. Thank you, Mr. Jordan, and mem ‘
mﬁgniééf;. As mayor of the (,:1ty of Wilmington we heartily endorse

oject that you are hearing. r _
lhpi};:rfggca currgnt resolution dated March 12, 1963, that T would like

to file. ) o
fr Lennon. Of the city of Wilmington.
Iéggz{tgsggnmm. That g‘ill he.inclu(i:zd after your remarks

AMr, Arseroox. Thank you, SIT.
(The resolution referred to follows:)

/B 10 NEW
ResoLvTioN oF THE COUNCIL OF TiE CITY OF \V‘;[LMINGTON, N.C., RELATIVE TO
Hope Dam oN Care FEAR RIVER

Whereas the District Engineer, Corps of Enginc_ers, g:l;:]l].ngfl(&n, N.C., bhas
ared a comprehensive report on the Cape Fear River basi 'd 1 ation of

Dr%%rhereas the Congress of the United Stotes l‘ms before _1t the ghgl‘elf inatien of
the meed lcont?)l o Ehiei z%i(tlhg ?:ll)a’ I;Ea‘;villlnll‘;:rg’toﬁongcs the Co'ngr.es.q

Roesolved, That the city counc ¥ L s the Congres

i states ke fauvorable action relative to the alore :

?f)mu;ll?e}lxj;:;sffvde i:g;;:, :)r;ergned by the District Engineer, Corps of Engincers, U.8.
Arlm};ifltr thi(t:of (;‘}}Sn\(}l-l:]{imggf({:}fs l'nonns of a dnm at New Hore, at Randlclrtx_mnn:}:;l
]{cm\‘vn.rd"gliillé‘. with a possible series of small dams, w1}1 faow;(;ra\lglﬁlﬁgg;mfa i
tion by way of pollution control of the Cape Fear Rlllvm ﬂ'rjovc i, $04 i'n the

o Tavorabie action on the 'New Hope ‘Dam “l'l]. l'mp
Cape Fear River between wilmington and Fayetteviile;

oot np e mm—— s

e A

e 5 an it

o b T
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8. Favorable action on the NMew Iope Dam will immprove navigation of ocean-
going ships between Wilmington and the ocean; be it further
Resolved, That the city council of the city of Wilmington helieves that con-
struction of the New Ilope Dam and other dams will so reduce flooding that silta-
tion will be reduced between the city of Fayetteville and the ocean; be it further
Rosolued, That the eity eouncil of the city of Wilmington believes that this
flood control measure will favorably affect shipping in the harbor of Wilmington
by reducing the river flond stages, thereby increasing safety for ships at anchor
mud at dock.
Trone this 12th day of March 1963,
Q. 0. ALLSBROOK, Mayor,
MArY B. SUTHERLAND, City Clerk.
Attest:

Senator Jorpan. T would like to say to these members of the com-
mittee and members of the staff, if you haven’t been to Wilmington
during the azalea festival you ought to go down. It is one of the most.
beautiful sights in America. It isbeautiful all the time.

Mr. Luv~on. We extend an invitation from April 6 to 8, as of this
moment, don’t we, Mayor?

Mr. Arrserook. Yes, siv; and I am sure you would enjoy it.

Senator Jorpax. Thank you.

Mr. Lexwow. Mr. J. I\ﬁ Hall, president of the board of county
commissioners, this is Mr. J. M. Hall, chairman of the Board of New

1I)-I:myen County Commissioners of onc of the counties in the flood
asin.

STATEMENT OF J. M. HALL, JR., CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF NEW HANOVER COUNTY

Mr. Ilarr. Thank you, Senator. I am J. M. Hall, chairman of the
Board of Commissioners of New Hanover County and on belalf of
the Board of New Hanover County Commissioners I have a resolu-
tion to offer that wholeheariedly endorses this New Ilope project.

Senator Jorpaw., Thank yvou very much.

Mr. Have. I would like to have it included in the record.

Senator Jorpax. It will be included in the record at the conclusion
of your remarks.

My, Hav., Thank you, sir.

(The resolution referred to follows:)

RESOLUTION

STATE OF NorTH CAROLINA,
County of New Hanover.

_Whereus the Board of Commissioners of New IHanover County have followed
wilh interest the lepislation pending before the Congress of the United States
relative to flood control on the Cape Fear River and are desirous of expressing
themselvey with regard thereto ; and

Whereas the connnissioners are cognizant of the favorable effect which this
[n'oject _will have, not only upon flood control, but alse upon stream sanitation
navigation of the upper Cape Iear, navigation of the lower Cape Fear ami
prevenlion of excess siltation : Now, therefore, be it

Iterolved, That the Hoard of Commissioners of New Hanover County urges
the Congress of the United States to take faverable action on thiz project, in

accordance with the plans and recommmendations of the .8, Corps of Engineers;
and be it further
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! i 3 i E d upon the official minutes

Les 4. That a copy of this resolution be sprea ! \ !
ofht(l,lsiﬁz?yfm‘rd and rhﬂtp copics lieceof be delivered to the lIr_nwl._lhlehB.C Lulxlre;';:‘t;
Jordan and to the Ilonoralle Alton A. Lennon for presentation to the gress

{ the Uniled States.
? Done at Wilmington, N.C., this 11th day of h-[arcl;;fﬁg.w CoMAIESIONERS OF
New Haxovik COUNTY,
J. M. HaLy, Jr., Chairmen.
Attest:
[sBaL]
[r. Lunyon, Thank yow. . ' -
Il\\h_Iéhaimnnn, and gentlemen of the subcogufnttoxs',} Iw ?:llllglt{l)l};g
to state that the substantial number of others pleaen‘_t. W 13 plllb \ (o be
identified—they made a several hundred mile bus trip, ufuc‘: }[}( won-
strates their interest and through the years their rlutsuc] ];)1 t‘hm E‘mp
mittee's approval and the subsequent ultimate approvi ry ‘. t(;ni;a
oross of the New FTope Dam, but I shan’t trespass 111')‘01.13(1)111 Jime.
®'I think I should call to the attention of t;,he members o -t-lle(‘huv cl o1
mittec that this project is endorsed by the (J'OVBI'IIQY l())f Nort th -mo(jf 1{11.]18
Tle made an appearance yesterday before the b:{? cotl]mélx 1efin-1 ho
Touse, but he had to hurry back for a meeting m . {ir h 1}1}; Oof i\forth
is endorsed by the Board of Conservation and Deve ](:)gn.nc o by
Carolina, a statewide public service (31‘g:}1119:_:1t1()1(1‘. 1s en wsed by
the North Carolina State Stream Surmt.atlon ,-o'mn‘n(r:smn,_ 1other
State acency. It is endorsed by the Water Resources SOMnLISS 0
"\"01111 Carolina, another State agency. And we want you to KLOW
Zlmt Wwe are gra’haful for this opportunity to make this S]ll()l_‘t. p1:e§€ni
tation here—the other Members of Congress who are equally interestec
a5 1 am in this m:lLtl.cr.
T ¢ you, rentlemer. ) )
étla]lill“ll.ltl(:l) ?I ORDAN. Congressinan Lennon, for your 11%fr])rnla£tlloll,ca'31:f1:
at the conclusion of your rcu:larlﬁs {thl}d t-l(l_j(r: 1'&2:11?(1:(5‘% stte :.((al'(:‘] 1(:\1:‘1“, n
atement made by the (overnor yesterdi) :
ﬁfSﬁ?:{]L?,}lf ]t]l(iesl?z‘zcm-d as well us 1:1)1y statement, the stz_lfmncntlof Sw;z]n
ator Brvin, and other documents, they will all be included in the
record. .
Mr. Lrn~ox. Fine, thank you very much.
(‘Ihe statements referred to Tollow:)

AL G, Houck, Beecutive Secretary.

STATEMENT BY TERRY SAKFORD, GOYERNOR OF TIIE SrATE 0F NORTII CAROLINA
Thank von for the chance in appear before this conunitt(_\e.. I am_f llu:u 1:{
qupp(lth of o 100-year jHan for the comprehensive development of the water an
Ilaml resources of the Cape Fear River I‘-’}a:iu\m l\o(x}th Cag?li;ll?&inoeru for dovelop-
is i H i 8. Army Corps g (e )

g ig a plan recommended by the ' ! 8 £ velo
ing?lllis Kll'e:llt river and tributaries for flogd control, v‘;ltelr huplply fﬁgﬂ:;{::::L(_1'1;‘];]!"‘
itic i stri iculture, water quality conirol and recve . g
ities, industries, and agrieun . Wil ntrol A e What you

i i i w ITope Reservolr. an arking 1
ndation stone of this plan in the Ne L am asking that ¥
i?:horire this project so that development of the Cape Fear River Dasin cun

proseed. in i Nt 4 Wil ong Lime Lo develop
The need of the basin is great. Its 1‘:‘;)1"]1?11)1'?:lfl::);::::t:{ilq? loug
H el = g . 1o, .l . l‘\ . - H .

A wie (e Tl add wader resourees il : ; ]
1m’l‘]li\' projeet was sinrled by Sonator Kerr Seotl il i= holug enr ied mll {1_\ 'u‘
nnmbi‘r of 'm(mle under the able lewdership of Svluntnll" lu\'v:;'utt,n.zlnttrllgn(.}ovm.a].:(\ucl,.

i res i i iect sinee the daoyps when Kerr Hceott was .
been interested in this pro_]@('t sine S o jeatl was,
in 1° evi o 2 r overnor Scott said:
speaking in Pavetteville on Beptember 2o, 1390, )
mmu:“’:hwith the entire Cape Fear Valley pulling together for (.].10 dlev Ellulln]“m-t
3 River A8 oW fit of all, the voice would have
ape Fenr River as a whole for the bene £ \ ! Ly
“f' e Crl’%:(lmu]l-r + & x T say, hore and now, that it we do not look frtrw:lu_],
been :1}\1(‘ L e e et Thpes pogonreers whiel e now wasling, we
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will not only be breuking fuith with future generations, but also cheating
ourselves. o )

“The valley of the Cape Fear, stretching as 1t does more than 150 miles from
the Piedmont to the seq, is potentially one of the richest regions of our State.
1t is rich in agricultural possibilities and offers great opportunities to diversi-
tied industry. All that is needed is vision and a singlencss of purpose to bring
about ils development,”

The truth of that is more apparent today than ever before.

Fhis long broad valley reaching froin the Piedmont area of our State down to
the Atlantie Ocean lias contribmted greatly to the progress of North Carolina
fron colouial days to modern times. In this pleasant land lve 922,500 people,
20 percent of our populalion. They have built up considerable industries, a strong
agricnlture, and aitractive tourist facilities that are all known far beyond our
burdery.

The people of the Cape Fear River Basin has achieved these things despite &
great handicap. Too many times destruetive floods have hurt the area. These
can eccur at any season of the year and in a large part of the basin. The threat
of floods is hiudering the greater ecouomic development which is the right of
its people.

We are told that the Corps of Engineers plan will protect culy the lower part
of the basin and do nothing for the upper area. Yet the corps plan would permit
the building of these smaller dams for leeal benefit; in fact, the corps recom-
mends that ils own project be supplemented by upstream improvements and
land treatwent measures, as provided by Pablic Law 566, 83d Congress.

I am in favor of building themn ail because in the future, we will need all
the water we can get. This is oue of the best Investments we can make in the
future. We should impound all the water we can at every feasible place. It
will serve us well over the years. In Nerth Carolina we are stepping up our
soil conservation and small watershed program. The State legislature doubled
the survey teams so we might accelerate the whole program. We are deter-
mined to save our water resources,

The alternative plan of nothing but small dams of and by itself cannot control
flooding throughait the bagin, Exisling Federal legisiation, in any event, is
nol adequate to put sueh an undertaking into effect.

Foml protection is necded now. We have waited too long. The Corps of
Engineers ptan, keyed by the New Hope Reservoir, can come into being almost
at once.

Unforlunately, dislocations will occur to some extent each time a publie
works program is placed in effect, and I regret this, However, we cannot con-
Linua to progress ns o nation unless we utilize our natural resources to their
Tullest extent and in the best interest of the greatest number of cur citizens,

I concnr in the recommendations contained in the repori of the U.8. Army
Corps of Engineers. As the initial step in the development of the basin, I strongly
urge that authorization for the immediate construction of the New Hope Dam
be given favorable consideration hy vour committee.

1 assure the commitiee that the State administration will do everything within
its capability to meet any non-Federal participation and cooperation that may
be required in the constraction of the New Hope Dam,

Thank you very much.

STATEMENT Y SENATOR Say J. ErviN, JR., ow THE CAPE FEAR RIVER BasiN, N.C.,
WaTER IROJECT

Mr, Chnirman, during the 8§7th Congress, the sum of $100,000 was approprinted
for o flood-control project in the Cape Fear River Basin in North Carolina. The
appropriation wag made contingent, however, on authorization by this Congress
for such a project. It ia for this reason that I appear before your subcominiitee.
Because of the merits of this projeet, I sirongly recommend that it be included in
any public works authorization bill which your committoe may report this session.

Rurveys, studies, and the doemmentary reports made by the Army Corps of
Tugineers over a period of years have stated the need for this project. Thesa
decuments are available to the subeommittee for ity information in a report
entitled “Comprehensive Report on Cape Fear River Basin, North Carolina,”
originally dated October 30, 10G1.

In essence, the Ariny Corpz of Engineers in ihis renort and in more recent
stntements has recommended the construetion of three high dams for the control
of walers in the Cape 1%ear River Basin. These dams would be Ioeated at ITow-
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ards Mill, Randleman, and New Hope, N.C., as & part of a comprehensive floodl-
control project. Currently, the initial appropriation of $100,000 and the authori-
zation sought from this subcormmitliee concern only the New Hope Dam. This
authorization and appropriution would allow the beginuing of advance engineer-
ing and design work on the New Hope Dam. The approval of this project would
represent the first step toward the construction of the New Hope Dam at un
cstimated cost of 825,612,00K)

The controversy which exists over the approval of this project arises in the
main over rival plans subwitted by the Army Corps of Kogineers, plan A, embrac-
ing bigh-rise dams, and the U.S, Soil Conservation Service, plan B, gmbricing
low-clevation dams.

After a full stndy of all the factors involved, I bave renched the conclugion
that the long-range interest of North Carolina will be best promoted by lhaple-
menting the recommendation of the Ariny Corps of Kngincers under plan A cail-
ing for a large dam to be erected on the New Jiope Creel, a tribulary of the Ilaw
River.

In my judgment, the Army Corps of Engineers' plan provides the most practi-
cal approach to the Jong-range prablems of flood control, water supply, andd indus-
trial development of a region recogpized for its vast potential for economic
growth,

The ever-present danger of floods in this area poses 4 problem which can no
longer be leisurely debnted. BMoreover, the imwense importance of fresh raw
water for the nearby cities of Greenshora, Haleigh, Durham, Burlington, and
Chapet IIill has brenght a demand for fresh waler supplies unknown guly a dec-
ade ago. With respect to flood control and water supply, the Corps of Engineers
has presented a sound, practical, workable, and economically feasible galution.
In my opinion, it is strongly supported by the vast majority of North Carolinians.

For these reasons, I urge this gnheommittee with all the emphasgis at my coimn-
mand to take faverable action on this project.

STATEMENT OF JENATOR . EvERETT JORDAXN

Mr. Chairman amd members of the subcommitiee: T want you to kuow that
1 mmn grateful for the opportuanity to appear before yvou today in support of the
recommendations of the Corps of Tngineers in conneclion with the Cape Fear
Rtiver Basin.

1 know that many people Nave come here from North Carolina to offer testi-
mony, and I will therefore miake my remarks as brief as possible. With the
approval of the subeommittee, T will file for the record along with my gtatement
certain documents which I think will give the gubcommittee a picture of the
history of this project and of the widespread suppert it enjoys in our State.

The problem of controltivg floods in the Cape Fear River Basin and develop-
ing e water resouraes of thix vast area of North Carolina has been the subject
of numerous studies dating as far back ns 1927,

The program which is now before this subenmmiittee for congideration was
recommendded by the Corps of Bogineers and the Bureaun of the Budget, and it can
be divided inio three major parta: (1) The construetion of the New Hopc Dam
as the key flood control siructnre for the overall busin: (2) the construction of
intermuliate size dams at Raudleman and Tlowards Mill on the lower tributaries
of the Cape Fear River to supplewent the New Hope Dam; and (3) the con-
struction of a network of small dams in the vpper arens of {he basin to suppe-

ment the New Hope Dani and {o assist the fast-growing comrmunities in those
areix in meeting fulure witer needs.

[ think it needs to be emphagized iv this hearing teday that many alternate
proposnis, and combinations of proposals, Tuve been explored and discussed over
the vears by the Gorps of Iingincers. In each case the New Iope Dam has been
found to he the keystoue 1L (leveloping an effective flond control program for
{he busin. At one time, {he Fagineers siudied the possibility of bullding a net-
work of seven dawsg in the basin, amd again the New Iope Dam was the key
structure. It was found that it was impossible to get favorable benefit-cost ratios
{or the geven dams, 80 this combination approach was dropped.

As n result of the devastating flood in 1545 the Corps of Engineers initiated
0 pew survey of the hasin in 1046, hut this survey was interrupted by the Korenn
war and wag never completed,  Shortly after he came to the fenate, my prede-
cessor, the ITonorable W, Kerr Scott, resurrected the Cape Fear survey in 1955,
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Both as Governor of North Carolina aod
ag a wember of the Senate, Benator
§thtfh was a strong supporter of the New Ilope project and all of us aré grateful
?r e tremendous qnount of work he put into it. I would like to submit for
the record a copy of a speech he made on September 7, 1935, at Corinth, N.C
only .xrflg\y miles frm‘u the proposed site of the New Hope Daw. e
‘IILlJ-J() Senaffo; Scott brought together representatives of the Corps of Engi-
neuers and the Soil Cc‘mscrvutwn &orvice and asked these two agencies to beyin
211]01'11‘:' s‘tudy of t_ht_: Cape Fear Basin. The record will show that he did this in
'Iell'mmcSt of giving all p_ossible alternate suggestions full opportunity to be
;, .uc{ ied unq ut_ the same time aveid a long und drawn-out countroversy which
olﬁ t]iegp llai\!'e?l(?med 1}1 c;:umeci,ion with the flood contrel din near Wilkesboro
; v Yadkin River, which incidentally, was fittingly named i
Heott lust year by the Congress. &Y el b honor of Senator
. Between 1957 and 1961 the Corps of Engineers and Soil Conservation Service
figgﬁzﬁﬁl ul]umt study ofhth%busin. Apain, the Engineers found that an effective
-ontrol program in the Cape Fear Basin hinges aj :
e AT g i n hinged on a major structure at the
The Soil Conservation Service concluded, i i
L , on the basis of detailed study in
szfl_mple areas, that it would l?e theoretically possibie to get a comparahli de@?r::z
of floodd control by gons-tructmg n system of small and intermediate size dams
thr?ug_hout‘ thq basin. Ilowever, after these 4 years of study, the Soil Coil-
so_r*iatlon Service rcgortcd that although it might be possible to approach the
pu(;nl_cm.l)y construcl{.mg the 232 dwns, Turther surveys costing at least $200,000
ru_l Lalfmg.; ol l'east 2 mare years of time would be required before a reali‘etic
e»?)iunuon of this approach could be made. }
uring the past year there las been extensive di i
Du L has scussion of the -
p]‘}:i.s(:\; {lllucl B Olf the Corps of Eugineers and Soil Conservation Servicgo catted
sgsence, we have n situation where 1 Ypossible” plan by the Soil Co ' i
I esser Lve ; oS » £ nECrvat
%cr‘nf,e lm.? h?en weighed agalpst a specific and definite recommendation ltyarht?ll‘;
nrl.)l]\'}%lolilh(lllglll;{ﬂl‘s amilthe Bureau of the Budget, and supported by the State
Nor Caroiina and every Htale agency having jurisdiction over
resources, in addition Eo \\:‘idcspreﬂd local support throughout the basiri water
Dsg}?} %}ﬁig%{'ﬁs o‘fu}mgmeers we have an estimate of cost of the New Hope
i $24 million as against an estimate b i i
of about $35 million for the 232 dams. ¢ by the Soil Conservation Service
The New 1Tope Dam would inundate a
) pproximately 30,000
thg f.{.: (la{nsfw;?uld inundate approximately 72,000 acre{a of hlmlacres of land and
The rost of the 232 dams is based only on flood contrel and irri i i
+ cost . irrigatio -
mf\ntﬁ,, while the dam at New ITope is based on flood control recré,atizl:l il‘;i%u;g:i
\&'L;d‘l;fe,l:mdstreumpollutiun nbatement requirements ' T
hink it can be concluded from these facts alon'
. ; 4 e that we have n
gglt]ﬁeeftlr{u;tcloﬁ th(;‘{;ost of the plan of 232 dams, nor do we have agteg?illgf:::g
‘st and benefits on requirements the ssenti b i
Ot o eselaptent, q s that are essential for a comprehensive
1lowever I think the joint preliminary study
we . ¥ S v made by the Corpe Tngi
and b(‘)ll Congervation Hervice hiag served a very gr)odr pu?‘pgg;m of Fiogineors
; l]?m‘mg the time I hnve_ heen in the Senate T have enguged in. numerous con-
ti%ﬁn:e“ \ylth I'Q[]ll'(’;-;t‘:;l}tl_ai'.].vﬁs of the Corps of Engineers and the Soil Conserva
Service. and ink these two agencies should be r the
dliligent work they hove done in seekin . i e o o
iligent 1 3 wking out all possible alternati -
bu{iltmns .of ‘pmlmsuls for a really effective program for the ll;a.faill‘:es and com
. Sven \_V‘l!,hl.'ﬂ th,e past .5 weeks I have rereviewad the reports of-th'es:e agencies
l’]l;l'lt cﬁ?g“\fﬁ? Eth LiIl)mr representatives, and there is no doubt in my mind
i » New Iope Damn is absolutcly essential to any feasil 1
flood control in the basis. On th A8 of t scussiona. b B KT o
: : Tie basis. e basis of these discussions, however, i
come 1o t].le ‘conclusion that it would be wise to make one atljuqt?mv:::t I‘nh%l‘le
CO’F“;S Olf Engineers recommendations. ) ! ¢
ie Bngineers recommend that current studies i
l : } should continue o -
1{1{::(,:\]“;151;115 at ]l:fmidle;:tmfn and Howards Mill as construction work prl'lo;l]eeds? [;?n
Tope Dam. urther recommends that at a later 4 ] '
e made of the upper tributaries, looki ' l e SiL daane
g aries, looking tow r i
e e o o i, ing toward a network of small dams in
I weould like to urge the subcommitie 1j
ol : 5 ee fo adjust the recommended ti
Elerl\!}:}e]'{‘l;g:‘lflc:'s raépnrt: ‘ﬂn‘d direct the Engineers and the Sail‘é:mf:::\(:?il:)ls
& ! Arry out a joint survey of {he upper tributari ol s
taneously with the construction of the New IIn}\E} Daml. taries to proceed simul-
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I strongly urge tlhe gubcominittee to spell out in the authorizntion measuare
authority for carrying on the three phanses of the overnll Cape Tear program
at the same time, I think the joint survey of the upper tributaries eould be
carried on by the Corps of Engineers and the S0il Conservation Bervice with
w1 specifie authorization under the general provisions of I*ublic Law 87-639..
I has been established Leyond any doubt that it is not feasible to atliempt
to carry out o Program of {lood control in the overnll basin through the Boil
Conservation Service under existing law. To approach the entire basin de-
velopment from the slandpoint of small dnms would reguire not only many
more years of studies and surveys, but would also first require basic changes
in our IFederal water resource policies and laws, which in my opinion would
be impossible to have enacted by the Congress.

I sincerely hope that both the Soil Conscrvation Service and the Corps of
Engincers, ag well as many sincere and dedicated people who have honest dif-
forences on the approaches to this problem, will endorse the suggestion I have
tade about developing the upper tributaries.

During the time I have poen in the Sennte I bave spent more iime and effort
on trying to bring about {the accomplishment of the Cape Fear project than on
any otlicr one single problem or project involving my state.

I have done this beciuse I sincerely feel that the Cape Fear project will in
large measure determine the future economic growth of North Carotina. In my
opinion implementing thig program recommended by the Corps of Engincers will
hring about a period of economic growth in our State unmatched in our history.
The very fact that ihe preject has a benefit-cost ratio of $2.50 in henelits for every
%1 in cost shows beyond any doublt that it will return to our economy many
times over its cost. I fuily appreciate the feelings of those whose homes and
farms will be inundated as a result of the construction of the New IHope Dam.
I have every sympathy with how they feel, but T think the cconomic fulure of onr
State is at stalke, amd T am certain that if 72,000 acres of land is inundated by
232 small dams, mnore people and more farms would be adversely affected than
would he with only 30,000 acres affected by the New Hope Dam.

e huave a sound, reasonable, and realistic recommendation before us. We
can approve it and get on with the pusiness of bhuilding the New Hope Ilam, or
we can argue and debate alternate proposals [rom now on.

In wy opinion the greatest faiture of all would be to let thig project die and
therehy let o great part of North Carolina’s fuure die with it.

Thank you very much.

JEES————

QpEEcH BY SENATOR W. KERR ScoTT AT CiATHAM-LEE CountTy WILVLIFE CLURS,
CorintTil, N.C., BEPTEMBER 7, 19950

Mr. Chairman and fellow gportmen : Therce is no problem facing the Amcrican
people more irpportant than water conservation and flood control. These prob-
lems are universal throughout the Natien, as a1l areas have either {00 much or too
little water, sometimes one and at other times the other. We nlternate betwesr
droughts and floods, with both leaving devastation in their wake.

Right here where we stand today—in the heart of the Cape Fear River Basin—
both of these extremes have been experienced from Lime to time. The most dam-
aging Cape Feur fAood was experlenced in 1945, when damiges estimated at close
to $5 million, Official figures show that a flood erest of GB.0 feet was reached at
Tavetteville, with at leasl 25 percent of the eity under water, including some
1,500 homes.

Ag n result of this flood, the public water supplies of the cities of Burlington,
Dunn, Brwin, and Rundieman were cut off complelely for several days. A total
of 150,000 acres of rich farmland was innndated in the basin between tbhe cop-
fluence of the Deep and Haw Rivers and the city of Wiimington. None of these
figures inclnde the damages snffered along the tributaries of the Cape Fear. A
floodd of like proportions today would cost may millions of dollars more than of
1915, becanse there has been 4 great expansion of industrial development and an
{ncrease in population as well ns a general increase in property valuations in the
Inst 10 years.

o became tame aud hard warking for the benefit of mankind, the Cape Fear
and ity tributaries await only 1he harnessing hand of man and hiy modern techni-
eal knowledge,  We have the know-how. What we need is to pul the know-how
into action.

Now, thern are inany sides of thre problem and clhallenge of conservation and
’ ' o And {he benefits ronge from transporiation Lo
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irrigation, from flood control to industrial expansion, and from plenty of pure
drinking water to recreation, to mention only & few.

Everyone, whether he lives in country, town, or city, hasa vital stake in water
conservation and development. Water-—and plenty of it—Is8 a necessary ingre-
dient of life and of almost every activity in which a human being engages.
Ilealth, sanitation, and production of food and clothing are all dependent upon
adequate supplies of unpolluted water,

Those of us who live along or near rivers—such as the Caype Fear—are prone
to necept without guestion the words of the poet when he sang of all rivers:
“Men nay Come, and men may go, but I go on forever.” DBut let's remember
that this poet wrote in an earlier age—in an age before man had invented power-
saws and bulldozers capable of leaving naked and bare, in o few hours or days,
huge hillsides that are robbed of the springs they once cradled and fed into
the mighty river to keep it going.

The destructive and despoiling hand of man, ripping away trees and other
blankets of vegelation on many of our watersheds, is drying up the mean or
average flow of our streams and, just as bad, creating flood hazards of
unbelievable fury.

Slowly but surely we are turning our rivers—including the mighty Cape
Trear—into liabilities of savage extremes, low water at one time and devastating
floods at other times, And, in this connection, engineers of the U.B. Army
have said that one dam—just one flood control dam—located on New Hope
Creek near Moncure, would have the positive effect of reducing the Cape Fear
flond heights at Fayettevilie by 10 feet in a flood such as that of 1945

We are heginning to pay the penalty of not having a sound and dynamic water
conservation and development program, on the local, State, and Federal levels
Q(Jygl'nmellt—alt all levels—has a direct and compelling interest and respon-
sibility in the problem both as it relates to adequate supplies of unpolluted
water and {lood control.

Private industry alse has o regpongibility in some phases, and when the solving
of a partieular problem does not fall within the limits of what is proper or
'llOSSlb?nc for private industry to undertake, it should be undertaken and solved
in the overall public interest by the appropriate governmental ngeney. The
ever-present problem of water pollution is largely the responsibility of the
State, and the pollution problem should in every instance be regulatéd at the
‘.'lowest possible governmental level adeguate to meet the individual situation
involved.

I firmly believe that while fuil development of the water resources of the
United States ag to agriculinral needs, urban domestic use, and industrial use
are in the national security interest, they must not, become srolely the functions

Qf the Federal Government. The Federal Government should do those things
in t.he field of water development and conservation which are essential to the
patlonal defense and security and which are beyond the resources of private
jndustry and lesser Government agencies.

Recen‘tly,. under my sponsorship, the sum of $21,400 was appropriated to the
Army Huogineers to complete its survey starled in 1946 of the Cape Fear to
determine speps which should be taken to bring about the construction of the
three dams in the Cape Fear River Basin. The largest of these propesed dams
}muld he on New IIope Creek with the dam near Moncure in Chatham County
just below the point where New Hope Creek runs into Haw River, The secomd
would be on Deep River with the dam near Randleman in Randolpli County ;
ﬂl’l:l t}le third on Deep River with the dam at Howards Mill in Moore Gount\;.'

This pr?posed project would be of incaleulable value to the State in terms
of increasing sources for municipal water supplies, in terms of irrigation for
Iurmlcrs in Llie bagin, and in terms of pubiie recreation. ’

This last n}ajor benefit which wonld arise from construction of these reservoirs
!s the most intangible one. and the hardest to measure—public recreatioﬁ—hut
its 1mportapce to the health and welfare of our peeple has been increasingly
recopmized in the last few decades. The recreation benefits of the reservoirs
in the' Gape Tear project, because of the heavy population in the areas sur-
roundmg the lowlands and swamplands of New Ilope Creek and the Deep }md
Haw Rivers, would be particularly important. The western and mountain
areas of North Cur.olina bave Foniana and other lakes close by and, of course,
;r::ggeé::qlfir:ll_popuflfnmoré has thle beaches and waters of the Atlantic Ocean, but thé

portion of ecast-central and Pi hy i i r
L D rastione, Piedmont North Carolina is too far removed
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Any discussion of flood control at this time would be lacking if mention were
not made of the terrible havoe recently visiled upou New England by torrential
rains and swolien rivers. All of us have been distressed to learm of the wide-
spread damage and loss of life caused by the New Ingland tragedy. All Amerien
is extending its sympathy and offering emergency assistance in the affected
areas. This is as it should be, but I think we cught to learn a lesson from what
has happened.

In this conpection, I have been impressced by reading of the lack of vision
of the political and business leadership of New England back In 1936 when it
was proposed by President Roosevelt that a series of flood control reserveirs be
constroeted to prevent just what has recently happened,

In 1936, anether yeur in which the Conneecticut and Merrimack Rivers of New
England floodesl, and inflicted direct property datage in excess of $53 million,
Congress, at the urging of Dresident Roosevelt, passed the Flood Conlrol Act
of that year authorizing the expendilure of $315 milllen for flood control dams
in 40 States.

Included in the measure was $7,725,000 for the construction of a system of
floodd control reservoirs in the Merrimack River basin, and $10,028000 for the
consiruction of a system of flood control reservoirs in the Connecticut River
watershed basin.

Tut the six New England States would have no part in flood conirol unless
Congress agreed Lo give them special rights not enjoyed by the people of the
other 42 States. An interstute compact was entersd into and the president of
{he New Eagland Council, representing the dominant banking, industrial and
utility interests of the six $tates, waruned, and I quote him:

"he Federal Governinent may rest assured that New England will sacrifice
the benefits of flond control” * * * unless given full control over any waterpower
whiech might be generated incident thereto.

Both President Roosevelt and the Congress refused to bow to the demands
of the New England compact States for special privileges not allowed in other
parts of the Nation.

Conservative estimates of the total damage done by the recent floods in New
Tngland nre about $134 billlon—damage that might well have been avoided
had New lingland leadership not taken a dog-in-the-manger attitwide some 20
Fears ago by refusing to permit the construction of less than §20 million worth
of flood control dams.

Already the Federal Government In Washinglon has allecated $100 million
to help repair damage and the end is not yet in sight.

I hope that when Congress reconvenes in January, and the question of ade-
quately meeting the recent flood emergency in New 12ngtand arlses, there will be
no haggling attempts made to tear down the structure ihat bas worked so well
in the rest of the Nation.

In the days ahead I shall be found in the ranks of those supporting any and
all measures for providing adenquate fdoud control of all our great river basins.

Here in North Carolina, the Cape Fear River 1s our No. 1 water problem and
c¢hallenge. We can let it degenerate us, or we can let it heip make our lives
fuller and more productive.

Regardless of the tangible benefits we get from it ourselves, let's see to it that
future generations can never say we were sitting on the sidelines.

And in the final analysis, T feel certain that this river's greaiest contribution
to man can be found in the following quotation that carries a message for all of

9
*“When vou take a boy fishing, you don’t bave to go hunting for him.”

HrATE oF NORTII CARODLYNA,
DEPARTMENT 0F WATER RESQUERCES,
Raleigh, N.C., February 1 1962,

Senator 13. I2VERETT JORDAN,
U.8. Senafce,
Washington, DLC.

DEAR SrNATOR Jorpan : A meeting of the North Carolina Doar<d of Water Re-
sources was held at Raleigh, N,C., January 31, 1062,

Mr. Glenn M. Tucker, a member of the board, asked the director of the de-
partment of water resources to comment on the comprehensive teport on the
Cape Fear River hasin, prepared by the Digtriet Engincoer, 1.8, Army Engineer

T
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The director and Mr. Henry O. Wolfe, chief of the division of navigable water-
ways, explained the report in detail. :

After considerable discussion by various members of the board, Mr. Tucker
moved, and the motion was unanimously adopted, that the board of water re-
sources support the report submitted by the U.8, Army Corps of Engineers, and

%Jeciﬂcany the recommendation for lmmedinte congtruction of the New Hope
am.

‘With all good wishes, I am,
Sincerely yours,

Harry F, Brown, DHrector,

STATE oF NORTI CAROLINA,
WiLDLIFE REBOURCES COMMISBION,
Raletgh, N.C,
Mewmorandum to; The Honorable Members of Congress from North Carolina.
Frow : The North Carolina Outdoor Writers Association.

At its annual spring meeting on April 20, 1962, the North Carolina Outdoor
Writers Association passed the following resolution :

Whereas it is the considered opinion of the members of this organization that
the New IHope River flood control plan proposed by the U.8. Corps of Engineers
would better serve the interests of the people of North Carolina than the plan
proposcd by the U.S. Soil Conservation Service: Be it

Eesotved, That, the North Carolina Oubdeor Writers Association endorse the

plan of the U.8, Corps of BEngineers and urge itg early activation by the U.S.
Congress.

Dicr PIERCE,
President, North Caroling Quldoor Writers Association.
Senator Jorpan. Thank you very much.
Will Congressman Henderson come up
Congressman IHenderson is from the Third Distriet. Tf yvou have
some witnesses we will be glad to Lear your witnesses following, you,
sir.

STATEMENT OF HON. DAVID N. HENDERSON, A REPRESENTATIVE
0F THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 0F THE THIRD DISTRICT
OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. Ilexprrson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, T have a brief state-
ment. T do not believe there ure any witnesses from my district that
were able to remain over for your session today.

Mzr. Chairman and distinguished tnembers of the subcommittee, I am
Congressun David N. Henderson representing the Third Congres-
sional District of North Carolina, Four of the counties that I repre-
sent; namely Harnett, FPender, Sampson, and Duplin, Iie within the
Cape Fear River Basin downsiream from the proposed New Hope
Dam project. The county of Harmett is to the north of Cumberland
County and the city of Fayetteville. The other three counties lie to
the south, but north of New Hanover County and the city of
Wilmington, )

The damages from the flood conditions on the Cape Fear River as
explained by the Corps of IEngineers have been most extensive in these
four counties. None of these counties has any great industrial devel-
opment, but rather are leading agriculiural counties of North Carolina,
and the frequent floods in the great Cape Fear River Basin have re-
sulted in severe crop losges over the years.

As a member of the House IPublic Works Committee, T was much

impressed by the suggestion of your distinguished chairman and our
collearne from North Carvoling, when voctordayv T sreeed 1he Hoanen
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Flood Control Subcommittee to “direct the Engineers and the Soil
Conservation Service to carry out & joint survey of the upper tr1l)u—
taries to proceed simulianeously with the construction of the New
Hope Dam.” )

Mr. Chairman, as I understand your recommendation, you suggest
that the Congress authorize the construction of the New Hope Dam
during this session, and simultaneously, that such authorization
measure spell out that the Corps of Linginecrs and Soil Conservation
Service proceed with a joint survey and carly construction in the
upper tributaries. ) ’ o

Vitness after witness yesterday, in response to ihe guestion of tho
acting chairman of the ITouse Tlood Control Subcommittee, vigor-
ously supported what we understood was your recommendation.

1 would like to make my position crystal clear. We in ihis session
should authorize the Corps of Engineers to construct New Hope Dam
as Tast as appropriations are made for this project. Secondly, we
<hould take simultaneous action to direct the development of the tribu-
taries of the Cape Fear River by the Soil Conservation Service with
the greatest speed possible under their authority and within their
appropriations. o

P})n cgmclusion, 1 would like to point out to this distinguished sub-
committee that 1t seems to me that the major opponents to the Iingl-
neers’ plan are now somewhat reluctant to express their opposilion n
clewr terms. They now seem to say that they arein favor of compre-
hensive development of the Cape Fear River basin, that everything
should be done at once, that everything should be done to make overy-
body happy, but finally propesed that this matter should be further
studied and further delayed. o

Gentlemen, I must say that in my opinion anyoue who contends that
the New Hope Dam should not be built at the earliest possible date,
that anvone who now contends further study and delay should be
undertaken. is opposed to do anything to alleviate the flood control
problems of the Cape Fear basin. We are not being fair to the people
of North Carolina who now recognize we cannot longer delay a frontal
attack on the flooding conditions that not only exist on this Cape Fear
River, but on the other great streams of our State such as the Neuse
River.

T would conclude by pointing out to the members of the subcom-
mittee that this basin Ties on the west side of my congressional district,
and the Neuse River lies to the east. )

Gientlemen, for the last 2 years in an area that is between these two
great river basins, it has been my sad experience to have gone through
thousands of acres of tobaceo fand that weve completely inundated.
T realize the great tragedy of people who are displaced by large reser-
voirs and large dams, _ .

Gentlemen, on July 4 of last year, after a 14-inch rain in 73 hours, T
can tell you that many of my people were temporarily displaced and
they are suffering at. this time because they were not able to make a
crop, and this is not only our livelihood but it is our way of life.

Thank you, Mr, Chairman, for the opportunity to present my views
at this time, .

Senator Jorpax. Thank you very mueh, Mr. Ilenderson. We ap-
preciate your coming over. Do you have anyone you wish to testify

- LRI
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I know you had a number of people here yesterday. Anyone you
would like to introduce ?

Mr. Hennerson. Mr. Reams, would you come up, sir?

Frank W. Reams. Mr. Reams, would you identify yourself for the
committee, sir?

STATEMENT OF FRANK W. REAMS, CHAIRMAN, NORTH CAROLINA
DELEGATION, NATIONAL RIVERS AND HARBORS CONGRESS

Mr. Reams. T am Frank W. Reams, chairman of the North Carolina
delegntion of the National Rivers and Harbors Congress.

Mr. Huwpenson. Mr. Reams, would you like to present any testi-
mony to the subcommitiee this morning ?

Mr. Reams. Yes, sir, I will be glad to. For a long time with our
delegation I worked for river development in North Carolina, Tt has
been my privilege to have been serving on this committee about 10
years, close to it. At the present time, I am living with the Cape
Fear River Basin Associution, maybe I should not go too far afield,
but I might say this, that we have Jived through similar problems like
this in the Roanoke River Buasin Assoclation,

We have had friction between two groups, upper and Jower. Tt
was terrific at that time, and I might say at the present thne that the
chairman of the Water Resources and the Lﬂ.nf{) Resources program
or the Basin Association of Roanoke River, and those two groups in
Virginia and North Carolina, ure now very, very friendly.

At one _time they had considerable friction similar to what is hap-
pening—I say friction, differcnce of opinion—and they are now all in
harmony and they get along fine.  As yourecall, we had a similar situ-
ation existing up m (he Wilkesboro Reservoir which is now the Scott
Reservoir. That situation was solved here without going loo, too
much to do about that thing, solved by a conforence, and a 10t of
other folks got together, and we worked over that considerably and
in cooperation with the members of Congress here and the people
of North Carolina that situation was solved.

Now, the program is in full effect, and I was mighty prond to attend
a dedication of that program some months ago. Those people are
happy with the situation. Where friction existed in that situation
which was terrific. I understand the situation down in New Hope
valley, I was born right close to it, I know the people there very well
some of them are my friends, and my home is still located close to
this area and will almost be affected by this project.

I am saying these things to give you a little history about these
things. I am speaking extemporaneously with no prepared talk. I
want to say this that the Corps of Engineers program is a recommenda-
tion of our delegation to the National Rivers und Harbors Congress.
We have discussed this thoroughly on numerous occasions, and we are
in hearty accord, we will heartily cooperate with the Corps of Engi-
neers,

I want to say this, too, that the Soil Conservation Service is o fine
organization. They have a part {o play in this program also. Their
part will be to take care of the tributaries and it is a great field there
for them. At the present time in the Roanoke River Association we
are now asking the cooperation of the Soil Consgervation and other
agencies to help with the tributaries in fhe Toanake and 1he s hos
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been prepared in Reanoke to show all the watershed pmgru;usl t:hlil(tl
are available and potential programs that could be instigated and
started. o _ P
I want to say this at this timne. ",1"1mt1 \_\'el 'ut e f(t)]r l.lcle_(Joil())sd?)f E'lf‘ﬁ;s
5 Pr : tionis. Wethinlkit is the Lung . _
neers program, our delega i bodo
i cpedl r. to wet tlie cooperation of pecple 1
s 1 way to expedite the matter, 0 g ‘ ation of peopre 1
123‘2 qmn?ll :u'eal,éj would be terrific. T w:{nt to sa)tf t]lns a{fftt,lt ggstﬁi((ll tghz
ti i sre in the area to he atfected,
meeting—I talked to six farme U oo affected, and oy
) : :ed these people, “Iave you been ncted ?
Jand to be covered. T asked thes , you been confielec
; ou?  Ias anyone come to see you to ind ot 1l y
ITas anyone seen you: as any ' > you to ! \ you
woulld be willing to continue under TPublic Law 366 and cooper
- )
vith tho watershed programs" ‘ B e e
) And nei‘thcr one of them said that a sxlngle e bondl}c‘lldi;(fl?oi}:ﬂtq’
act. wi - no one has surveyed their thoughts.
had not made contact. with them; yed their thousve
i i s and people from various areas bt
They only had public meetings a . ous areas (A0
1 a sl <son had contacted them. “lhal was a =
about it. Not a single person Tha ur-
prising sitnation to lﬁe, to find if they would coqpemtg, W 1L1;,1\vli?rto’51}1]1(1
program, when those surveys had been made actually upon the g ,
AR NELAIN ] woval : it wagsurprising
1 atur rnl il was surprising. _ .
vitl their sienature of approval; i . Wi
) May I sa}? {his: 1t is a great thing that you folks ure (h)ltl']g h&l- L( -1,}m
cooperating with the watorshed programs, nnd \\‘11;1} the eé\ ‘1111((3) :(, ..m_
1 trol programs. 1t is the future of us. We need those pr
e, {V llwea the cooperation of everyone, and a large dam [110-
"aIms. 16 1 . i Gl M . o A o
ﬁlr-l:rlx in my opinion, and n the opinion of our delegation, 18 the key
- t

to the whole situation. o
Mr. Hewpeusox, Thank you, Mr. Reams.
Mr. Chairman, thank you so much.

H AN. "hs Ik you. . - .
szxl'utl-ﬁggxﬁustj}; r]i ]1‘:(13111(9?\’:6 Mr. Whitfield was here yosterday and

testified yesterday. And with the permission of the committee 1

q ik 3 it his statement. . o
A 0%23’33): t})os;::)b&}. Ve have his statement and we will include 1t 1

cord.
th{z 'Ef: ;mte.ment referred to follows:) .

3 . H L by AMMIUTER
A AN ANLTA )

RESOLUTIO OF TR NoRrrIf CAROLINA STATE STREAM DANLL TION Co IVUTEE

Con CERNT‘ING TIIE PROPOSED NEW Hore JRESERVOIR ProJECE IN TIIE CArE FEaR

Hiver BAsIN

. .
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involves the construction of a systemn of 232 small- and intermedinte-size reser-
voirs, withiout recommending the adoplion of either plan in the interest of fioed
control; and ’ '
\Wheread the U.8. Army Corps of Engineers in & comprehensive report, issuned
QOctober 3, 1¥il, found there is immediate and urgent need for improvewents to
provide flood protection, water quality control, and recreation in the basin, and
that such project should include storage for future municipal and industrial
water supplies, low-flow regulation, irrigation, and recreational uses in order
to lkeep abreast of expected population and economic growth in the region; and
Whereus the low-flow regulation features of the proposed New Hope project
would provide 72,000 acre-feet of storage and would result in tangible benefits
totaling $108,300 annuully ; and
Whereas the eomprehensive report has been reviewed and adoption recom-
mended by the Doard of Rivers and Harbors, and counstruction of the New
Hope project can begin as soon as funds are appropriated by the Congress, while
it is obvious that changes would have to be made in the Federal law to enable
the construction of the 232 small- and intermediate-size dams proposed in plan
B of the joint study, which legal changes would, in the aepinion of qualified ob-
servers, require several yeurs, if feasible at all; and
Whereas the Honorable Terry Sanford, Governor of the State of North Care-
lina, in a public statement on December 26, 1941, stated lie had reviewed the
comprehensive report of the Cape Fear River Basin, prepared by the U.S, Army
Corps of Mngineers, and had concluded that the imediate construction of the
Wew Llope Damn is economically feasible and iu the best interest of the region,
State and Nation : Xow, therefore, be it
HResolved, That the State Stream Sanitation Commiitee of Nerth Caroling,
mecting in Baleigh, on April G, 1142, concurs in the proposed plan for the develop-
moend of the Cape Fear River Basin as presented by the U.8. Army Corps of Engi-
neers, including the immediate conustruction of the New Ilape Dam on Iaw River,
and recommends that Congress authorize its construction together with {he as-
sociated projects at Randleman and Howards Mill on Deep River: and be it
Turthoer
Resulved, That a ecopy of this resolution be forwarded to the Governor of the
‘State of North Carolina and to all Members of Congress from Norih Carolina.

J. Y. WIITFIELD,
Chairman.
MRrs, KanL DIsHoOPRIC,
Vice Chairman,
W. L. Cognix,
H. Grapy FarTHING,
P. GrEER JUHNSON,
W. GBADY STEVENS,
T. B. Urcnurcy, Jr.,
Committee Members.

Senator Boges. Mr. Chairman, before we proceed, I have an ap-
pointment at 11:30 and T want to say T will have to excuse myself. I
want to compliment you on the fine manner in which you have pre-
sided at this hearing and certainly say I have been impressed with
the fine testimony of the witnesses I have heard. T am very much in-
terested in this watershed work, as you know, and there 13 much to
he done, I am sure, throughout our Nation on it.

One of the points of interest that I hiave in all of these watershed
programs, and not only in this one, but I shall endeavor to press it on
every other project that comes up that may be appropriate for iis
consideration, is to ask the Corps of Ingineers, and I would like {0
ask now, if they would, Colonel Marshall, if they would under-
take to submit your views and costs, having in mind some modern tech-
niques and materials that might fit, I don't say that it does fit this
project, but that might fit this project.

You rveeall this commitiee had some liearings last year on new
materials and techniques that would kind of point the way, I believe,
il they conld he nsed in approprinte proiecta—and is considerntion be-
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ing given to them—to accomplish & great, deal more in our watershed.

ancl conservation work at great reduction in costs. _ .
T would like, I will be glad to talk to you personally in snore glgtml
about it, and geb it in writing to you, but 1 would like to see if we.
couldn’t come up with o study showing these modern materials :m_d‘
techniques, new teehniques couldn’t be used in such a propect as this.
or show why they aren’t suitable for sach a proj ect as this.

Do I make myself clear on that, sir?

Colonel MARSHALL. Y5, Senator Boggs. i )

During the preconstruchion planning phase of the New Tlope project.
as with all our projects we wake a general design nmllm)rmulun_\ and
make specific cost estimates and studies of construction techniques..
You and the committee may be assured that in this detailed design
period we will take advantage of whatever knowledge is available at.
that tume. ) o

Further, I will provide for the commiltee a statement to this eflect,
SIT. _
(The information referred {ois as follows:)

The Corps of Lngineers carries on a countinuing prograim of iuvcstig:_ltirn;l of
new aterials, new devices, and new designs. Resnlts of these investigalions
are put to use ‘in the planuing, design, eonstruaction. :End O]Iel'flt'l(ln pf civil works
projects.  As planning aud design of the Cape Fear River Bus:p projecls progess,
we will make [ullest possible wse of new developments which apply to these
projects.

Senator Boges. Very good. Thanl you.

AMr. Chairman, may L make one othier request before Lgo?

Senator Joupax. Yes, indeed. .

Senator Boces. Mr. Williams, Mr. Iollis Williams or Mr. Curl
Brown. ] )

Mr. Brown. Senator, I should have said at the opening of my re-
marks that Mr. Willinms was unavoidably delained today atud
presented the remarks for hi. ‘

Senator Boaes. Thank you, Mr. Brown. I wanted to ask if you
could file with the committee—1 am interested in this, because 1
recognize the great job throughout the country that 1s being done in
coil eonservation work—in the statement whicl you read you men-
tioned on page 5 specifically o joini report on a coordinated program
should provide for the Department of Agriculture to have responsi-

bility for accelerated land Lreatment for soil conservation and other
purposes. _ ' '

T was wondering for my owi in formation and maybe it wonld bo
helpful to the committee, 1f at your convenmence you could provide a
statement amplifving what you really have in mind about that?

Mr. Browx. I would be very happy to do that. '

Sonator Boaes. That would be very helpful to me, Mr. Chairman.

{'The statemeut referred to is as follows 1}

ST oF SENATOR Lioaey WITII

STATEMENT OF CARL T Brown 1N REsroNsE 10 REQUE
NT D’roggrams IN RIVER

[ESPECT TO TIIE NEERD FOR AccErsraTED LAND TREATME
1BASIN DEVELGIMENT

The sediment Ivad of many of our principal rivers and thelr tributaries is
cxcessive beeause of aceelerated soil erogsion on upstream watershed areas.
This sediment lead frequently impairs the use of the waters for municipal
and industrial needs, It reqiires the use of costly processes for its removal,

A

-

FLOOD CONTROL—NEW FHOPE DAM 43

Tt also reduces the value of the waters for fish and wildlife and for recreational
use. A major part of this sedlment settles in costly reservoirs reducing their
capacities to store water for the purposes for which they are intended.

Soil nnd water conservailon practices applied on individual farms and
ranches and other rural lands within the river basin are essential to protect
reservoirs and other water resource developments. Land development, use,
and conservation are directly reinted to water management. A comprehensive
plan for the development of the water resources of a river basin should there-
fore provide for the eoncurrent applications of land treatment measures as the
waterlresource developments are construeted.

Leginning in 1937 the States possed laws that authorize landowners and
ope}r:}turs to organize and govern soil eonservation districts. These local sub-
divisions of State government are dedicated to planning and applying gpoil and
wuter conservation measures on watershed lands, The Departmeut of Agricul-
ture provides technical assistance to these districts to help them carry out t'his
program. These districts provide a ready means to apply the needed conservat'ion
pructices which wil protect the reservoirs whieh would be constructed to mect
th(;.‘ water 1'esou;c{e development needs of & river basin.

ol o guccessful witter resource development project the land i i
arca must. be used within its capability lzmd solijl :1]11(1 \f'u(teerqcgu;%rtwl'l;ti%gm;?r%gc?
tices .npphed according to its needs for protection and development., These
practices may include terracing, strip eropplug, waterways, aml the managL&
ment. o.f crops and pastures to reduce sheet erosion. Other practices such as
115‘}1110 building n}" (liverslt_mS, lining channels, stabilization of road banks an&
florsgsgrgi‘;;]'.mtmg, and improvements te reduce and control the damages from

Senator Jerpan. I am sorry Senator Boggs from Delaware has
toleave. ITe s one of my good friends and one of the finest Senators in
the Congrress, and I appreclate your coming,

Senator Boaas, ‘Lhank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

You mentioned Wilmington and azaleas. It reminded me of my
own hometown in Wilmington, Del.  We are getting a few azileas
up there. T think we are getting them from your home State. We
are all very prowl indeed of our presiding chairman this morning who
d‘oes a wonderful job and both of the great T.5. Senators from North
Carelina. Tt is a privilege to serve with him. T have served with
him on several conumittees since I have been here and proud to do it

Senator Jownan. Thank you very much. .

Senator Dogas. T apologize for having to leave.

Senator Joroax. That isall right.

Congressman Kornegny, from the sixth district—and any witnesses
1710:511 have—we will be glad to hear you and we will be glad to hear

1e1n.

STATEMENT OF HON. HORACE R. EORNEGAY, A U.S. REPRESENTA-
TIVE FROM THE SIXTH CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE
OF NORTH CAROLINA

My, Korxeear. T have a prepared statement which I will not take
the‘l.lme of the subcommittee to rexd.

Senator Joroan. It will be placed in the record following your
remarks, °
; BII‘.I%\ORNE(II;L\Y]LBII‘. Cha lxr',man, and members of the subcommittee,

am Horace R. Kornegay, Representative from the Si istri
North Carolina. s, B ¢ Sisth Distriet of

My district is composed of four eounties. It is the smallest in area
that you huve in the State—it has « population of over 500,000 people
though—iund is in the head, at the hiead, or the top of the Cape Fear

HBT0— 63-- -
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River Dasin, of the two major tributories that wmake ap the Cape
Tear River head up in within wbout 15 miles of my home, that 1s the
Deep River, and the Haw River. ) )

Now we arve a rather thirsty district up there 1n that we have over
500,000 people, we have a heavy and varied industrial complex, und
frankly, sit, our water resources certainly are not abreast to the
tremendons population and industrial-cominercial explosion that we

re experiencing.
* (i ‘En"} heve l;od:y to endorse wholeheartedly and olfer my support to
the plan, or plan A as advanced by the U.8. Corps of Engineers, and
feel that it would provide flood conirol and vital water resources and
to some extent recreation for that avea of the State. o

Now, Mr. Clairman, all of the civic and commercial or civic and
aovernmental bodies of the sixth district who have formally com-
Taunicated with me about this project favor plan A. Thave had o few
and a very few letiers from individuals opposing the plan; candor an
honesty compels me to stale that 1 have hiad an_expression of op-
position from one county grange in my district. That county grunge
endorses plan B. o ) )

Otherwise the consensus of opiion as it has been conveyed to me 1s
overwhelmingly i favor of plan A.

T would just like to say, Mr. Chairman, as has been stated by my
other colleagnes, who have testified here today, that 1 am 1 no mat-
ner callons or indifferent to the fact that there will be a displacement
of persons with the construction of the large dam, 1 am very much
distressed over that fact, and have great sympathy for those who, 1f
the dam is constructed must, of course, be displaced and leave their
homes. ) i ] ] )

But, unfortunately, this is the sort of situation that is ever true in
the achievement of progress. ) )

Of course we would have no railroads or airports, highways, and
things of that sort, which have brought us great advancement if it
didn't inconvenience some of the people.

Now plan A is available and it is feasible. Here we have a full
dress report from the Engineers. We know the land to be inundated.
Tt is about 30,000 ncres. We know how many people will be displaced.
We know the cost-benefit ratio or cost-benefit factors for flood control,
industrial and municipal water supply, gt.rea,m-pollutlon control, and
recreation. Also, we would he conforming to the ordevly pattern of
development of our large rivers, and the further developments of the
river basin complexes in our State. ) ) )

T would like to point out at at this time wilh emphasis and underline
the fact that plan A and plan B, that these two plans are in NOWlse
mutually exclusive. . ]

Tnder present authorities, and as sugpested by the lionorable chair-
man of this conunittee yestevduy who Lustified before the House, the
series of small watersiied dams may also be built, anl I heartily urge
that such construction be umdertalken througl Jocal nitiative with
aviiluble Federal assistance us complementing the New TLope, Randle-
man, and Tlowards Ml daus. ]

The combination of three dams recommended by the Tongineers,
and sories of small watershed dlums recommended by the Soil Con-
corvation Serviee would be eminently desirable and would represent

LT i o Taenl, State, and Tederal cooperation and offort.

P
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But, of course, we must keep first things fivst, and the New Hope
Dam is the foundation stone of the deminant need on which all other
construction must hinge. .

Mr. Chairman, after experiencing the hearings yesterday and hear-
ing and listening to most of the witnesses, I concluded that the propo-
sition sort of boils down and everybody seemed to be almost in agree-
ment that it was, that the combination of the two plans, was probably
desirable. We need them at this time, and T urge upon the subcommit-
tes the authorization of the New Hope Dam. That project, as planned
by the Corps of Iingineers, that project has been studied, surveys have
been made. It has passed with approval all of the necessary gov-
ernmental agencies and is here m the lap of the Congress for
anthorization.

After you analyze the testimony and the evidence in this case, it
sim})]y appears to me and does appear that this sort of boils down
to the fact that it is in this generation anyway. it 1s the big dam or no
dam, and the people want and need o dam. So I would like to urge
that the subcommittee very carefully, after studying this matter, au-
thorize the immediate construction of the New Jope Dam and further
anthorization or whatever the procedure would be, a continuing
study of the discussion of the plan of the Soil Conservation Corps
in the small watershed dams in the upper tributaries of the Cape
Fear River.

1t has been a pleasure to testify here this morning and to have
this opportunity, Mr. Chalrman, and T would like at this time to
l‘eco;frnize one individual and to introduce a short statement for
another.

T would like to recognize at this time Colonel Brown, whe 13 di-
rector of the North Caroling Waler Resources Department.

‘olonel Brown, if you will just stand, please.

Senator Jorpax. Colonel Brown, we are glad to have you, sir.

(Representative Korneguy’s statement is as follows:)

WFATEMENT oF Hon, Hoxace R. KORNEGAY, A U.9. REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE

S$1xTH CONGRESSION AL IMBTRIOT OF THE STATE OF NORTH CUAROLINA

Mr. Chairman and members of the gubcomumittee: I am privileged to strnd
before vou today in ardent and unalterable advocaey of the pending legislation
to develop the Cape Fear River Basin in North Caroclina in accordance with the
plan advanced by the U.B. Corps of Army Knogineers, known as plan A, whiel
has been approved Ly all Federal and State autborities, as required by law,

“This plan is endorsed by the Governor of North Carolina, the two Senators

from Notth Caroling. all Xorth Carolina House Members whose districts will
be affected by the project, suve one; ull governmental bodies in the State having
jurigdiction over wuter prohlems and resources, including the State board and
department of waler resources and its State stream sapitation committee, the
State board of congervation and development, and the North Carolina delegation
to the Rivers nud IFarbors Congress.

The Cope Fear River, which with its major tributaries is the body of water
with which we are here concerned, conld well be called the Mississippi Itiver
of Norih Caroling. It is the longest river in our State, weamdering from the
Piedmoent section to the Atlantic Oeean This great waler potential for our
Stule has fop long been allowed 1o go unbarnessed amd undeveloped.  The
prajeet which T am here endorsing 1s the solution fo the development and Tuil
realization of the many industrial, farming, and commercinl capabilitics of this
rich and pleasant viver valley area of the Cape Tear.

In wy own Sixth THstrict, comprising the four countics of Guilford, Alamance,
Orange, and Durhmm, this project has vital implications which bave gencerated
i1 wiilespread and deep iuderest, We are 1 thirsty distrlct, for into our area of
1,782 square mijes is packed o population of over H0GLO00 people and a heavy
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and varied industrial complex. Our waler resources are not abreast of our
tremendous pepulation, industrial, and commereial explosion.

Unless the three dams contemplated in plan A sre built, the vital water re-
sources of my disirict, largely from the Deep and Haw Rivers, two of the mujor
tributaries to the Cape Fear, are destined to low uselessly into the confluence
point of this great river only to provide flood waters for the farmiands of the
lower reaches of the Cape lMear River Basin. We are gomewhat in the same
plight as the Ancient Mariner, whose despairing ery wus, “Water, waler every-
where nor any a drop to dvink.”

Water, we know, lis a dunl aspect—it ean be both a bane and a blessing.  Out
of control it can do untold damuge; contrelled in an even flow and with proper
reservolr facilities it ean indeel bea blessing and 4 means toa better life for ali
our people.  This blesging and the erasure of thig bane can be attained by the
authorization of plun A,

Thus the development of the Cape Fear River Basin according {o plan A will
secomplish two great purposes of flood conirol and preservation of water supply.
A third objective is properly sought in the creation of vitally necded outdoor
reereational facilities for ur people, an aim certainly consonant with the Presi-
dent's current emphasis on physical filness for onr Nation.

All the civie and governmental bodles of the Sixth IMstriet who have com-
municated with me abeut this project have favored plan A. 1 have had a few—
a very few—letters from individuals opposing the plan. Candor compels me Lo
state, however, that I have received an expregsion of epposition froim one county
grange In by distriet, through its Lady oflivials, whe cudorsed plan I Otherwise,
the consensus of opinion as conveyed Lo we is overwhelningly in favor of plan A

At this juncture, let me earnestly siy tuat I @ in no munner callous or in-
different to the fact that persons will be displaced by Lhe conslruction of Llie
large dam. I am deeply distressed that this is the case. Unfortumalely it hus
been ever true that the nchievement of progress is accmmpanied Dby displacement
apd disiocation; olherwise we would have no railway nelworles, no airport io-
stallations, no highway arteries farflung and dispersed thronghout our eountry.
Without public rights-of-way we would liave no power or telephone lines.

The whole complex of transportation and commmnpiention services which our
prople have came Lo expect and demand would be stymicd and immobilized. In
our goal to attain o mere convenient and comlortable maode of life, it is often
necessary Lot the few to muke sacrifices for the good of the many. And here L
am construined to remark that while Lhe lirge dam project will displace soiue
of our citizens, who will be reimbursed for their logses, the plan calling for the
congtruction of 232 small dams will necessitate donations of land from owners,
under existing legislation, with no provision for compensidion.

r. Cliairmnn, I should like to fell you brielly why 1 oppose plan 13, Trirst, 1
believe it woull take at least another generation to see Lhe 232 smull and inter-
mediate sized dams cousiructed.  Changes would have to made in existing Fed-
eral laws to use this approach, and speeinl leglslation would have to be enacled
by the General Assembly of North Carolina lo cover all lhe counlingencies iu-
volved. Second, a greal deal of additional engineering work und planning
wonld have to be done for plan T The preliminary report of the Soil Congerva-
tion Serviee does not zet forth the cost-benefit ratio for stream poliution control
or industrial and municipal water supply.  Weilo not kuow from this report iow
many familles would he digplnend or how much land wonld be inundated.  Third,
there is suother grave deterrent fo this approach. The preseut goil conservakion
legislatinn relating to the copstroetion of these dams was passed in August of
1054 andd funded In 1955 Out of the 50 applications thad have been made iu the
Qtate of Norilh Caroling since the fanding of this act, only 2 dams hinve been
congtricted and both of these relate lo drainage projects in eastern North Caro-
lina., Diring the & years sinee the funiding of this legislatlon, no progress lins
Teen wade fnearsd ponstruction of any floed control dams in the State of North
Carolina by the &ail Conservation Service.

Now let ug lonk at plan A as a compelling eontrast in availability and feasi-
Lility. 1lere we bave a fuil-dress report fram the Tngineers, we know the Innd
to he inundateid—about 30,000 acres 1l flood level—we know how many persons
will he displaced, we know the cost-benefit faciors for flood eontrol, industrial
gl nmnicipal water gupply, stream pollution control, nnd recreation.  Also, we
will he conforming to an orderly pattern of Lhe development of our large rivers
and the further development of the tiver basin complexes in our Blate,

Now that T have discugsed briefly both plans A awd B, T wanl to point out
will emphasis aud to underline the fact that {hese plans nre in no wise mutunlly

- L ant Lol natharities s serien of small watershed dams
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myy also be built, and in fact I heartily urge that such con i keii
through local initiative, with available I"Ederal assistanc;tggcgﬁpﬁgrggggﬁ; l;ﬁg
New Hope and Randleman and Howards Mill Dams. A combination of the
three dams recommended by the Engineers and the series of small watergﬁed
d'ams recommended by the Scil Conservation Service would be eminentl); de-
.sxml'ﬂe and would represent a healthy pooling of local, State, and Federal coop-
‘Ie}'gltéo%;:ﬂq etf]forg. Biutl. we must keep first things in first place, and the New
is the foundation gtone an i i)
e a0 tone and the dominant need, on which all the other
}41'. Chairman, I thank you for your patience and shall not furt
on it. 'With your permission, I shall submit for the record, asuanh:f)pit:fdriiactg
my 1'cn}arks, cppiqs of telegrams and other endorsements by got’ernme}ltal
groups in my Q1str:ct of the New Hope Dam, copies of editorials from leadin
papers in my distriet urging this aetion, and a copy of my statement in the las?f:
session of Congress to the chairman of the 8ubeomnittee on Public Works of the
House Appmpriﬂtimls Committee, under date of May 22, 1062, which gives
further e.vullcnce of my reasons for endorsing plan A, which,jled m;! say again i‘s
of S'llvf.‘ll significant meaning to the people of my congressional district and to ll‘.he
multinspeets of water needs prevailing in the State of North Carolina.

Mr. Konnreay. T would like to call around Gen. Fames R. Town-
send, who 1s the chairman of the North Carolina Water Resources
Depgrtnmnt, and iniroduce him to the subcommittee.

Would you cotue around, General?

Senator Jounaw. General Townsend, we are delighted to have you
with us, sir, N

Mr. Kornecay. Let me suy this about the general, he is a U.S
Army general, retired general. IHe for several years served in an
outstanding capacity as the city manager of the city of Greensboro
He is also the treasurer of the National Rivers and Harbors Congress.
IIe is & man who has Jong studied, and is thoroughly familiar with the
water resources problem of our State. It is o pleasure to introduce
him to the subcommittee.

Senator Joroan. General Townsend, we are glad to have you here.

STATEMENT OF JAMES R. TOWNSEND, CHAIRMAN, DEPARTMENT

OF WATER RESOURCES O0F THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. Towwsennp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I have a prepared report which has some statistical data with it

on the first couple of pages. If I may I will just r _
TR a st read my
and my recommendation. y ] ¥ summation

Senator Jornaxn., You X i i
nator . N. may procecd as you w .
e ot Y proce ¥ ish, and that will be
¢ record following your remarks,
Mr. Townsenop, I have studied the comprehensive report on the

Cape Fear River Basin submitted by the Chief of Engineers, Depart-

ment of the Army, and am impressed by the soundness of its conclu-

sions, particnlarly by the vast benefits that would acerue Lo the region,

\.iiul‘( B, Lll{l :N rl.t.l n tlll 0L h. t}l p 1 f ECOHII]IB]H]E
[J] 70 '15 ® d

The report vividly points out the need for flood protection, water-

quality control, water supply for industrinl and municipal use, recrea-

tion, and other purposes in the Cape Fear River Basin. To meet
these needs over the next 100 years, the report recommends the con-
struction of a series of large dams, a system of small and intermediate

-Ezo d._mfns to be built by the Corps of Engineers on tributarics of the
ape Iear River, plus watershed protection and treatment measures
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to be accomplished by the Soil Consorvation Service under the pro-
visions of Public Law 366, 83d Cougress. _

1f T may, I will state parenthelically here we of the waler board.
have worked very closely with the Soil Conservation Service people,
and we think they are highly qualified to do their job and have done
a splendid job and serving our State. ) . .

T heartily concur in the recommendationis contained 1n the report
of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. As the initial step in the des
velopment of the basin, T strongly urge that authorization for the
snmedinte constrnetion of the New Tope Dam be given {uvorable con-

sideration by your commitiee.
T thank you for: your attention, Siv. .
Senator Jorvax. Thanlk yow very much, General. We appreciate

your being with us.

T might add that T agree with Congressman Kornegay’s remarks.
T do not know of any man in North Carolina who is more fatmnilinr with
our whole State water situafion sl hias o better knowledge of it and
more experience in it than you, General, and we are delighted to have

your tes{imony. i
Mr. Townseno., Thank you, sir.
(The full statement 1s as follows:)

STATEMENT oF Jades IR ToWNSEND, CINAIRMAN, DEPARTMENT or WATER RE-
SOURCES OF TIik STATE OF NonpTi CAROLINA

The opportunity to express my views with regard to the comprehensive devel-
opment of the water and related resources of the Cape Fear River Rasin is.
appreciated.

I am very much concerned by losses 10 urban and industrial properties, utili-
tles. and highways that rosult annually from flood-producing storms which may
geeur within the Cape Tear River Basin in all seasons of the year. These
losses are so great that the development of the pasin will never reach its full
potential until and unless flooding 1s controlled. There is an jmmediate and.
urgent need for positive action to be taken now that will provide flood protec-
tion, as well as an udequale source of water for urban, industrial, and agri-
cultural use, water-quality control, and recrealion. Too much time has been
devoted to studies by Yederal and State agencies—too many dollars have been
expended in providing pergeney Mensures.

On May 2. 16, foliowing the disastrous flood fhat accunrred in Seplcember
3945, the Comunittee on Tlood Contrel. Ilouse of Representatives authorized
the Corps of Engineers to make a review of previous reporgs on the Cape Hear
River Basin in the interest af flood control and other pUrposes.

For one reasan or another, delay after delay has oocurred and it was not
until Aumust 3, 1962, that the roview authorized in 1946, was teransmitted to the
Tonorable John W. McCormack, Speaker of the House of Hepresentatives.
In the meantime, propercty owWners in the basin have continued to suffer dumages
as a result of floeding.

The population of the Cape Fear River Basin, abonut evenly divided between
urhan and tural, is 922.5%) {1060 census) An incredSe of 37.7 percent over the
1950 census, b I8 estimated that approximately the same percentage of in-
crease will be shown over the next 20 years.

The Cnpe Fear River Basin is highly industrinlized—more than any other in
the State. Some of the larrest metropolifan centers are located in or near the
hasin although 60 percent of the Iand area is in farms. Cropiands are mainly
in the very fertile bottom Jands and adiacent to flaod-prone areas, Mensures
must be undertaken, without any further delay, to protect this basin frow feod-
ing and to provide an adequate source of water for other uses.

Two methads to accomplish thiz purpose have been considerad 1 One Proposes
the construction of o dam at the confluence of the New Haope and Haw Tivers

( New ITope Reservoir). The other proposes o system of 232 small- and interme-
dinte-size dams. Doth agree it iz ahsolutely essential that flood protection for
e ramee T River Bosin be undertaken without any further delay.

T T T

FLOOD CONTROL—NEW HOFE DAM 49

T have studied tl iv i
T e e
?ffxf:fgat%r&%{éc g.gion, St:}tg. and N!afionltllllrfclelghbghteh:cf:gxslfp?ii%euegtu:;tr‘:éggf

The report vividly point i
conts Ve s o gl i eyl e, hretion, wnd ol
1‘()(} ?ears, the report x_'ueommel}ds the construction of :J.ess(?erlilg: osf (;;rer e
bJ’IS‘tIL‘lLI of small- and 11_1termed1ate—size dams to be built by th Co:gse danr:s. 's:
l'l(,(,llb on _LribuL‘m:ms of the Cape_Fear River, plus watelj"sheg rotl»)ectc:{f e
: II;(«;' 1}1253{‘:1111&;%:](;%?:&?]5:’ f;%‘i%%i:ﬂt]lsg?}tﬁ?{‘ighc Soil ConservationpScrviceozn?igg
.;\1:11; 1[' }(:15;(1’; 1;9151;‘);1‘0 lgl:ll Eéﬂ;ﬁla,mrfgsl t&;;écli;;]ifti;:{lisst;[? ni?it.l]]liddi;';ﬁfi)r:leelﬁrE)f()fthtéw]’)::ttéiﬁ:
IIt:}ﬁ?});}l;];obl;e 1;‘..;1;(;’1(1) ‘i}:'Irirt'glll)tl:ieoi(r}lsoidertz’lll;i}n;eb}l’ﬂ;gllff éaéfgl:ﬁ[igguction of the New

rtqlMr. Kouneeay. Mr, Chairman, T failed to ask permission, but I
ask unanimous consent to introduce in the record at this ]’)OiI’lt tele-
grams and resolutions from my district endorsing plan A
Sre}lator Joroan. Soordered. Tt will be inserted.
(The communications referred to are as follows:)
Hon. Hotack 1. KORNBoAT, Ificu Point, N.C, March 12, 1863,
Iovse of Representatives, Washington, DO
Oflggl;letAmgainahlirlity to.attend c_ommittee hearing. Urge careful consideration
of plan pe Fear River Basin. High PPoint feels the neccessity that :
irg be considered. Please support plan A. v farge
Carson O, StouT,
Mayor, City of High Poini.

Represcnlntive IIoRACE I, KORNEGATY, Bonranexon, N.C., March 13, 1963.

Eouse of Representatives, Washington, D.C.:
Regret it impossihle to attend he ing in 1
s | aring in person. BSiron
;)Ifté\_rmy Carps of Engineers plan for New Hope Dam pro?c]eit.ur%?‘ah?oqr supp_ort_
rest to futare of our area, i5 is of vitul
G, ALMoN McIver,
Mayor.

Hon, Honack R. KOLNEGAT, Hicu Porxy, N.C., March 13, 1963.

Ifonse of Representatives, Washington, D.C.:

The Guilford Count isgi
) ] y commissioners unanimons], i
Rasiu project recommended under plan A of the Ai-:-uy}'; P(“;Itl)?g;s;f %ﬁlﬂ?ﬂf@ir Hiver

Dare C. MONTGOMERY,
Chairman.

Ylon, Fonaon T, KORNEOAY., Hwr Ponrt, N.C, March 12, 1963.

Congress of the Uniled States,
Homnse of Representuatives, Washington, D.C.:

Respectfully and urgently ¢
s ¥ request your su
Engineers for the development of the Cape Fearz-pﬁli.f'et;olgats}:ii plan of the Corps of

T. C. RAGSDALE,
Mayor, City of Jamesgtown.
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Graam, N.C., March 12, 1963,
IIon. Horace R. KORNEQAY, .
United Statcs Congressman, Washington, D.C.
DEar Horack: Please be advised that due to illness in my immedinte family
it will be iwpossible to attend the learing on Thursday. Dest regaris.
Oscar W, GAMMON,
Chairman, Alomance County Board of Commissioners,

Ciuargl I, N.G, Mareh 14, 1963.

on. Horack L. KORNEGATY,
Congressma,
Congressional Office Building, Washington, D.C.:
1Iad to abanden plans to he with you thig morning.  Umstend resigned. Phipps
to replace. Orange County lends its gupport and wishes you success.
DoRALD STANFORD,
COhairman, Orange County Roard of Contmisgioncrs.

Whereas, the town council of the town of Jamestown beretofore at a special
meeting an February 5, 1057, adopted 2 resolution endorsing and gupperting a
tion and flaod controi in the Cape Fear River Basin; and
requesting approprintions for surveys ou Peep River for possihle ¢onstruction
of dams where practical for wnter congervation and flood control on Deep River,
inclnding a damsite near Randleman, ¥.C.; and

Whereas, preliminary plans and proposals have been made for water conserva-
tion and Agod control in the Cape Fear River Basin; and

Whereas it is the opinion of the town couneil of the lown of Jamestown that
the plan known as plan A of the Corps of Engineers, which proposes o three-dan
constriuction—to wit: one ai Kew Hope, one at Randleman, and one at Howard's
Mill—is the better plan to effect water conservation and flood control; and

Whereas it is the opinion of the town council of the town of Jamestown that
gaid plan would promote greater industrial developmrent in the State of North
Carotina and Piedmont area and provide inereased recreation, tourlst trade and
fishing facilities as well as provide a possible water supply for the aren in and
around the town of Jamestown; and

Whereas it is the opinion of the town council that the said proposed plan of
tha Corps of Engineers would best serve the possibile projected necds of the town
and surrounding aren and inure to its benefit in the overall, long range, contem-
plated planning of this area ; Be it thercfore

RESOLVIED : That the town council of the tewn of Jamestown hereby endorses
and supports the preliminury proposed plan A of the Corpe of Tingineers for the
comstruction of three dams to be loeated at New Hope, Randleman, and IToward’s
Mill for water conservation and flood control in the Cape TFear River Basin, and
further that a copy of this resolution be made available to parties jnterested in
gaid preliminary propoesal and plan.

This is to certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a specinl
meeting of the town council of the town of Jamestown Tield at 1:15 pan. on March

ag. 1067, all members being present,
This tiie 28th day of March, 1962,

Touwn C' lerk.

RESOLUTION ADOPTED BY TIIR Guinrarn CounNtTYy DOARD OF COMMISSSIONERS
Aprii 2, 1962

Wherens (he Board of County Commissioners of Guilford Connty. N.C,, has for
mauny years been interested in the preservi tion of the uatural resourees of icdl-
mont North Caroling and in the econservation of 1and andl water; and

Whereas The U8, Army Corps of Tingineers hns proposed the construclion of
twa large dams, one of which 18 to be on Deep River near Tandlemnn, N.C.. for
embodying a large amount of witer as o means of flood coniral for the Cape Fear

Tiver Rasin; anid

ks xg

i
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Whereus there is an ever-increasing demand for water to s i
heres e upply the grow
needs for t]}c people of the Piedmont area of the Cape Fear Rliver Basgiru. ;35
the uf_(rr_esm.d dam proposed by the U.8. Corps of Engineers would, in addition
10 assisting in flood control, alse e a vital factor in land and water conservation
Io%ile m‘eat?pdhgrex:ltly elflhuuce the developinent of the area; and
1ereas this board is of the opinion that the needs would best v
lal'g(:‘(lams proposed : Now, therefore, be it est be served by the
IEE.bOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners of Guilford County
g).lb.hdoes en:lorstq the grtoposill as presented by the U.S. Arnry Corps of I{]nginvzeer's.r
» the construction of two large dams for the development of wat
mlillﬂood control of the Cape Fear River Basin. P of Water resaurees
tereby certify that the forepolng is a true copy of a resolution ad
I he | Jus ) 13 opted by
:{?;).I’ld of County Comuissioners of Guilford County at o meeting helid Aprilthze
B2, ' ’

Clerk to B(’)ard.

Durnu y e J
Ion. Torace: KORNEGAY., AM, N.C., March 14, 1863,
House Office Building, Washington, D.C.;
The Durham City Council, meeting as the committ i
. . ea-of- =
ing, :agrccd as follows: ' f-the-whole this morn
1. The earllest possible completion of the flood e ility i
: ontrol facility is necessar
for the protection of persons amd properti v Cape
for the Dro properties on the lower reaches of the Cape
2, The high dam development offers the i
T greatest potential for rec
facilities foz: the clti;ens of Durham, and is therefore favored by thlrseagtxi-gﬁ?:l
prgﬁgﬁ??cﬁo; (fggs gét.{ lr‘tgablnslt major capital or operational costs because nf
3 3 ¥ ake ba
B e, sin te existing utility installations is respectfully
W. A. Biacs,
Mayor pro tempore, City of Durham, X.C.

CI1TAPEL HILL-CARREORO MERCHANTSH ASSOCIATION,
CrepiT BursAU AND CIraMBER oF COMMERCE, INC,,
ha it y
To Wiom It oy Concorn: Chapel Hill, N.O., March 13, 1963.
During 1961, the board of directors of the Ch i
During y [ 1 Hill-Carrboro Merchant
Association gave consideration te the tw o ' of
e o Riven, 0 systems proposed for flood control of
At a repular board meeting on January 8, 1962, th i
: ; boa v 8, , the Chapel Hill-Ca
illt:._gélmlnts Assocmtllon’s board of directors weunt on record as fail)\?orinlg t,hersrig‘;ll-g
datn proposal as submitted by Mr. C. Whid Powell i )
e s, W of Chapel Hill, N.C.
J. F. AUGUSTINE,
Ezrccutive Director.

ey v g o o A
IxcERrT From BIKuTES or DBoarp oF (COMMISSIONERS OF ALAMANCE COUNTY
N.C., HELp ox Marci 5, 1962 '

Whereas at the regular meeting of the bon issi TUAT,
i€ h C f14 ard of commissioners on I7
i.’f;,l 1&(;&, gﬂresofutmnl _{}x'as aﬁlopted favoring the agricultural plan fosr ﬁcmlde(!:]ontrcrjlr
» Cape fear River Basin, ail ag appears i i
th(“.‘;llnnutes of said meeting ; and m by resolution duly recorded in
¥lereas at the time of said meeting, pro i
Wi : s ponents of the agricultu
E[Il:g-lgﬁd before thp board and since the adoption of the resolut?on on Fl‘.ealirglaan
B, 1962, n _com_n‘essmnal committee hearing has been held relative to the pmjerc{
nml. ndditional faets -zmd information have come to the attention of members
of l‘]m I_mn.wl which, in the consliered judgment of the board, should be given
f‘l]]lhl(](:llltl{)lll aud study by the board relative to the respective plans for th
Cn}pe Tear River Basin : Now, there, be it s tor Hhe
vesolved by the Roard of Commisgioners of Alama
sl ‘ 4 : ! . nee County That it reseinds
tlhe J_Lhn}utlilxx nf I ch‘runry o, 1962, by which the a;:riculturxful plsfn tfo?'s(;’.llgg;
controd in the Cape TPear River BDusin was recommended and approved; that
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the advantages and disadvaniages of the respeetive plans he given detail study
and consideralion by the board inasmuch as the project is of great importance
to this area.

This is to certify that the above is a true copy of a resolution adopted by
ihe Alamance County Board of Commissioners at its regular meeting held on
Mouday, March 5, 1962, and duly recorded in the minutes thereof.

D . PENA,
Clork to the Board of Commisgioners, Alamance County.

CITY 0OF GRECNSBORO,
Greensoboro, N.C., March 11, 1963,
ITon. Cieantis A. DUCKIEY,
thairman, House Public Works Commnitice,
New House Office Building, Washington, D.C.

Drar ConanksgdaNy Drekney: The oitizens of Greensboro, N.G,, are vitally
jnterested in the deveiopment of the Cape TFear Itiver Basin as recommended
under pian A of the Army Corps of Engineers.

Greenshoro is a city of 130,000 population in the upper Picdmont region of
central North Carolina. Within a 50-mile circle of our city there ig u popula-
tion of one-half million persons, The demands on our existing water resources
are inercasing daily with fthe rapid industrial and commercial expansion of
our arca.  Wa are {le largest metropolitun aren lelween Richmond onid
Atlanta,

Troper long-range yplanning for conservation of our waler resources in this
aren 1s cssentinl to our ¢omtinued growth and progress. The large reservoirs
inclnded in the Army Corps of Engineers plan would provide the «itics of our
region with a vital source of water supply for future years,

Some have ndvocated that these large reservoirs he abandoned for an alterna-
tive plan involving more than 200 small lakes and ponds, We in municipal
government know the difficulty of aecquiring land for constructing oven one
ar two small lnkes, We feel that any plan involving the construction of more
than 200 such lakes is doomed to be lost in o never ending maze of purchases
and eondemnations of land: and, in sddition, to be hopelessly snarled Ly the
stagpering engineering problem of designing more than 200 scparate dams.

Thus. we feel that the debate is not between two alteraative plans. Rather
it iz between the Atmy Corpe of Kngineers large lakes plan for the Cape Fear
River or abandonment of this vital and long overdue project, allowing vital
water resources to go down the drain of the Cape Fear valley, flooding the farm-
1ands of southeast North Carolina,

On behalf of ihe people of Greensboro, we respectfully urge your support
of pian A recommentled by the Army Corps of Lngineers for the development
and consevation of the water resources of the Cape Ifcar River DBasin,

Sincerely,
DavIn SCIIENCT,
Mayor.,

[I"rom {ireensboro Dally News, Mar. 12, 19631
LAKES Praw Is LENDORSED BY MAYOR—STATEMERT SENT To BUCKLEY

{By William R. Weaver, Greensboro Daily News stafl writer)

The Army Corps of Enginecrs large lakes plan for the Cape Fear River Basin
ig Greensbora’s one hope for the future, Mayor David Schenck declared yesterday.

Mayor Schenck’s statement was contained in a letter directed primarily to
Representative Clhiarles A, Bnekley., ehairman of the U.S. Iouse I'ublic Works
Committes. now congidering the Cape Fear flond control program.

Copies also went to the North Carolina delegation in Congress, Governor
Qanford, mayors of several cities concerned, nnd to newspaper, radio, nud
television services.

Schenck pointed out that “the debate is not between two alternative plans;
rather it is between the Army Corps of Engineers large lakes plan for the Cape
Tear River or abandonment of thiz vitnl and long overduc projeet, atlowing
vital water resources (o go down the drain of the Cape Fear River Valley, flooding
the farmiands of southeast North Carolinn.”
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CITIZENB INTERESTED

The mayor started his letter by saying that the citizens of Greensboro are
vitally interested in the Cape Tear River Basin as recommended under plan A
«of Lthe Army Corps of Engineers.

s(Ireensboroe is a clty of 130,000 population in the upper Piedmont region of
central North Carelina,” he stated. “Within a 50-mile cirele of our city there
is a popuiation of o half million persons. The demands on our existing water
resources are increasing daily with the rapid industrial and cominercial expan-
gion of our arca, We are the largest metropolitan area petween Richmond
and Atlanta.

“PLANNKING EBBENTIAL

uProper long-range planning for conservation of our water resources in the area
}s essentinl to our continued growth and progress. The large reservoirs inecluded
in the Army Corps of Engineers' plan would provide the cities of our region
avlth o vital source of water supply for fulure years,

) “Some have advocated that these large reservoirs be abandoned for an alterna-
tive plan involving more than 200 small lakes and ponds. We In municipal
-government know the difficulty of aequiring land for constructing even one or
two small lakes.

“Woe feel that any plan involving the construction of more than 200 such Iakes
ig doomed to be lost in o never-ending maze of purchases and condemnations of
Inud: nud in additlon, te be hopeiessly snarled by the stagrering engineering
prréb]cm of designing more than 204 dams.”

opies of the letter were sent to the mayors of Burlin i
Ilandleman, Asheboro, Reidsville, and Fayettgville. ! gon, High Polnt,

{From Greensboro Daily News, Mar. 12, 1963]
TALE OF I'wo RIVERS

‘AdmcaLes of the Cape Fear River Basin development, with the New Hope
high dam one of the Army Engineers key recommendatlons, have reason to be
encournged after elevation of Senator B. Everett Jordan to the chairmanship
of the Senate Rules Committee and membership on the Public Works Committee
whiel has to pnss npon such projects,

“'hih_j Senntor Jordmn nnd other members of the North Carolina congressional
delegation support the Cape Fear program, Representative Harold D. Cooley
contintes Lo protest it and has so far suceeeded in blocking action as a result of
his prestige and power on Capitol Il

The Fourth Distriet honerable is being gradually backed into a corner. At
the outset he supported a nebwlous soil couservation program, whose costs 1and
requirements, and number of dams are yet to lbe determined. He has éubse—
quently talked about profection of the rights of properly owners in Chatham
County, where there is a division of opinion, and of his determination that these
propell'ty owners be given a right to be heard before the proper congressional
committee. It is this hearing which Senator Jordan in particalar ig trying to
expedite,

TRepresentutive Cooley has also said mach about pollution of the Haw and in-
ﬂttgess _01' the waters impounded by the New Hope Dam for drinking or even
gwimming or fishing purposes. The answer to that of course is to clean up the
contaminated tributaries of the Haw. ‘That cleanup is already underway.
Greenshoro has constructed n costly sewage treatment plant. And other munici-
il _nnd industrial offenders are under pressure or court order to end their con-
taminating practices. There is every reason to believe that before the New
Ilope Dum could he completed under the Army Engineers schedule, the offensive-
ness to which Representative Cooley objects should be nonexistant.

3‘[0#11}“"]111{} it is noted that while the gentleman from Nashville is bloeking
aclion in Lho upper portion of his water-starved district, he is pushing vigorousky
f()_r funds with whiell to complete a sinilar Army Fngineers study of the Neuse
River Basin which Hows through the lower part of his distriet and to which
Raleigh is looking for a water supply from 2 storage dam at falls of the Neuse.
What folks up this way are wondering 1s why Hepresentative Cooley blocks one
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river basin developineut and simuitaneously pusbes for another? If recom-—
nendations of the Army Kugineers cannot. be trosted for the Cape Iear, why
shoulid they be pushed with such engerness for the Neuse?

{From Durham Morning Herald, Mar. 12, 1963]

SpwaToR JorpaN OFrenrs Goon WAY ouTr

genator B. Everelt Jordan has offered a constructive way out of the argument
over high-dam versus low-dam development of the Cape Fear River Basin.

Ay the Senater insists there is no reason for this arguwent. The New Hope
Pawm aund other projeets in the Corps of Engineers high dam plans for Cape
Tear won't exciude the Soil Conservation Serviee's low dams {rom the basin.

hat isn't and never lras beeu an aim of the high-dam plans. Backers of the
high dams didn't raise the low-dam issue. It was raised by opponents of the pro-
posed New Ilope Dam who held out 232 low, dirt dams as an alternative to the-
Corps of Bingincers ligh-dam plans.

High-dam backers objeet only to the suggestion that such a network of low
dams alone could ever adequately barness the entire Cape Fear Basin, They
jnsist that effective development depends on the high-dam plan--will the New
Liope Do as its key project,

At no time have they called for a high-damn-cr-nothing program for the basin.
At no thue have they oppoesed Soll Couservation Service dums for upstream de-
velopment of the Cape Tear's tributaries.

If there is confusion on Lhis point, it was created when opponents of the New:
Hope Dam called for a low-lam-or-nothing program. Now Senator Jordan bas:
proposed a way to wot the confusion slraight.

Ile uffers no compronise. The bitter-end foes of the New Ilope Dam won't be
appeased. But those wlo see the New Hope Dam blocking locul upstream de-
velopment should be. For Lhe Henator would authorize low-dam develepment
upstream along with tlhe high dam at New Hope.

Ilere is o constructive wiy for those whose first inlerest is developing Cape
Fear to put aside their differences and get on with the job.

{From the Greensbaro Record, Mar. 11, 1963]
New Hor AMENDED

Senator B. Bverctt Jordan offers a sensille “best of both plans” compromise
on the development of the Cape Fear Liiver Basin.

The Senator, a leading proponent of the Corps of Tnginecrs plan for a big
Anm at New lope and smaller dams up-stream ot Randleman and Ilowurds
Mill, says 1his should be supplemented by Soil Congervation Service-planned
smaller dams above the major installations.

Tha Soil Conservation Service has proncunced a plan for 732 small dams
on the Cape ¥ear as «fensible.! There is no Teason, says Senater Jordan, for
property holders ahove the Corps of Engineers dams not to build the soil con-
servation dams which will give them farm ponds and lakes—some of considerable
gize.

The benefits of the Cape Fear development plan will thus extend to cover
farmers in the basin.  Seme farm groups have opposed the big dans as beneficial
solely for flood prevenlinn downstream—u il not useful Lo those who live above
them on the upper reaches of the Cape Fear Basin. The Jordan compromise
should help to remove this oljection, by spelling out what was really already the
case,

1mportant as 1t is to press forward in the development of Cape Iear, prog-
ress shenli not be made at the cost of the upsiream residents. There has never
becen auy reason the conservation-type wiuall dams conld not be bililt, whatever
was done about the lurge-dam project.  Now thal will Le clearly stated In
Genator Jurian's bill, te correct the “misinformation” and misconcepltions whiclh,
the Seputor says, are hampering the developnent which would Lenefit all in the

ared.

B (ke
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[I'rom Greensborp Daily News, Mark. 6, 1962}
CROSSROADS AT THE CArE Frar

Senator Everett Jordan is ri Y

. . ght when he says Norih Caroling i 3
‘Ell:;:srt(;id%(m tllne 0:1113»9 I"ear and what is done in this baslilil ﬁilllngfe:tt 1t11c1)i
-only » Cape Fear i i i

ol I asin but also the Neuse Basin and, indeed, the entire

The late U.S. Senator Kerr Sc
_Th : 5. ott got the current flood con 3
;nlllltscoulrvlitlou pl‘ogt;lms:hstarted again in 1955. Senator Seott f:;tré)cluzz'l;t(ﬁlel;w;;ig

rater as & prime North Carolina need. The Wilkeg C i
-completion, is part of his handiwork 'T i f o o rog
om, ! his . v his eredit, Sens i
be]ll;lltor bcott’s emphasis on water econservation Senator Jordan continued

The current controversy, in whiell Con
: [ ! Y v gressman Ilarold Cooley has li
:15)“ﬁﬁﬁg:;l‘iﬁt‘%}mﬁg\}ﬂgfzﬁg Iga}n l1}'11 Qtllmthmn County aml Senator y.]nrdanml:‘-?ag

: oject with courage and vision, i tragi -

went, Congressman Cooley, a powerful i i e e o

: A ; man in Washington, gi ! indi

tion of fighting ihe issue z;troxn g j et e,
. S8 gly. If the dam project is def

R . . i A M ) ¢

-i%lfca%llft l;s;lé)s;ia;lltm} v_méclc'd congcrvatwu project on the Cape Fearzﬁf ‘%ilet];’grggt,]:?

able s hleak indecd. cnator Jordan anticipates it v -

to implement the multiple small-dy ! ati D e o ke oA

o implement the 1 l-dam alternatives suggested by the U.S. SBoil

And beyond that is the possibilit;

\nd Deyon 5 Lk ¥ that the U.8, Army Engi | i
:[[l()]-ltlt.l] ]Ihlbﬂle on the Cape I'ear, might postpone eveuyki]lglt?eeri,t-gem'ng .
{h?r project next door. ' > the vifal Neuse

The plain truth is that no dam i i
., The pla E am could ever be built—and w:
ifhotl]f](&seh em[ powulr: heeded the pleas of every property m\'n;\rate'}'hcgszse;;ﬁl;
! » properly compensiated for their land, b ; ' l
Durliam, deelared : *'If those ar ; ot etort toe e P, of

, deel: : hose are the reasons y
the same reasons could defeat aimost any (13‘131?.?' that defeat the Gape Fear Dan,
Fol;)cigg;qofq;h({: gﬂff;gﬁ proIJ;TeCt{hthCe Daily News believes, would be a tragedy
Teen warkin ; ades, North Carolina's Senators and Cong en have
}.I:]_l;lh“ 011‘1\_1ngNt0 1ncrease_cr1t1.cal water shortage facilities and ueli'lhl;-ie;nsasage(llla11:1:'“re
ri‘g_,uo:]nl;i:]ll Corth C-:lrnhm‘t Now on the very verge of suceess in an illlpﬂl‘t;l?:;

et hasin, Congressman Jooley's oppositl Way st i
nr?fvgl at&thrlaatcns to wrock the whoilé projgé}t. however honestly and sincerely

Scnator Kerr Seott were alive today hP.'\\'mll i

: . ¥, he d put ft 85 i
lggilﬂ;m(t}lm(‘.o:f)rful cn(l)(]llg(ltl to be heard, and heeded e\}:?;\'\\'];?:r:;gu’;ﬁ: I]Tgfg);:'a%%
Sor olina wou o well to recall his beey ' ‘
will lead to the making or breaking of this Stute.pmphe(_y that water, some day,

5 TATEMENY OF GONGRESSMA? nie N
AN Horack ) Y TPRESERN TIVE IXTH N Tl
E CoNGRES R. KowvecaT, RErRES ATIVE, Six OBTH

OATOLIN A THSTRICT, T A
o TUueE HoUse A L) o 0NN TTEE ON I'Un
; ] U PPROPRIATIONE BSUBCOMMI E O (4]

Mr. Chairinan, I appreciate ve i
. ] un, > ry much this opportunity to expr i
gfllrtllt.l 1eigm_'d to the fl_mdmg pf the Cape Fear River Ba?irn dcvé]o%slie?l]g i‘;rllews
%m.? F{ ir‘:erl‘;c;rig I(;ar%lmu, W[TIIIIC)h bas been advanced by the Board of Engineg;":.
; arbors and by the Chief of Army Eongin '
; 3 eers. 3
it;ﬂl;;ﬂ(;zn::}n:t{ee to t;pprove an appropriation of 328010(;"0 for ﬁqoil‘;?)gg Rru{gg
mlvanced engineering and Jdesign for thi' ] ot .
rh; uec‘i\_ssag authorizing legislation later this sosqinns project, conditional upon
realize this mmay seewm to be putting the cart 1l .
. ize th ‘ . g > wfore the horse, ’
:)'g ill;?asﬁ?l?tc:?n 1‘): Inmplts me to make this request. In view of ’tl];,:rpt:f::: ?tli'{z:li?t
his snbeomitlee in approving funds for th i i f th
Cape FPear Basin, I ventur . e iy surrey of th
1 asin, ¢ the hope that this plea will fall . y
Cap Jasin, | n | ] ) 01 83 b
(fl‘ll}\:](?lglllll !(llu :Hl,_el.I:h, _1h1.s. proJm_zt hay had the snpport of the ill(‘llr‘;r.llllllel;ltﬂ}‘?{l)lvi‘s‘?rfs'
of N tb r“:lmimn]];l])irglntthen Yi:xl-1touﬂ s_tage;; of Its development; and noije h-nf:
h £ iilestone in this whole matte "'.l igh-dn
approach has beeu recommended by th e e S h-Gn
! ¥ the Board of ngineers s Rivers
l\ig;ﬁ;}r& narr(l)rllnbf' .rhe“(}lm]‘f of Army Hongineers. Time iqgnf ths J‘?s‘a'n{'{é‘f;bu:l Illl(ll
2 11 in the development of our water nti nd wi . '
~out] X 4 : : ! ; potential, and w g
waler over the dun, so to speak, in preliminary work, we urgcntl;”l]mi?l ]::b]]:‘:lt;
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forward with as much haste as possible in the conservation and development
iri nt river basin. ’
Ofﬁsﬁi‘ 1;111?2{1':1'{:3 you ]?now, we do not look upon the developmen.t of the pupefFe:lr
River Basin as an isolated project but rather as the secopd in a series ol ?1031—
templated developmenls of our river hasins, the firat of wlnc.h was on the 1u(d kin
River, where the large dam approach was also rqade. It is my undgrstan .{ng
that the Wilkesboro Reservoir on the Yadkin 111.ver can be qmnpleted dlfll.l‘l%
the coming year by means of an $800,000 funding; and, with the _um?mwl.l
of this subcommittee. the Neuse River Busin survey can alse be copﬁpleteﬁl in l: 1e
coming year with a funding of $90,000, Then, wilh the authorization of .Lh‘e.
Cape Fear River asin project by the IPublie Works .Cﬂmm‘lttee, we can prc;:gx_(lzfzs
from the survey stage te that of actnal construction, with a funding of this.
< S - .
$2$I(‘JE’1T<? ;c?urfwflilllleségl Mr. Chairman, that we will have aclh'ered toa llngneal patterp:
in development of our Slate river basing and that we will not have goune ahcmi.v
this matter in a haphazard, hodgepodge Tashlon., Many yenrs of work nnd R_Lud'}_
have gone into the surveys aud plany for the dcvelopmf:nt of North Cﬂmlfna. s‘
river basing. It is vitally important to us in Norl'h‘Garolnm to qe_velnp our water
resoutces for flood control purpeses, for indnstrial and mm'neuml wate[: SUD',',
plies—urgently needed; for stream pollution cunirel-—a growing problem inh iy
istriet : and for recreational nses, . L
dl%ﬁﬁfuse the Cape TFear project is very important to my cnngresslmr_lal (}lStI’]FL
and to the State as o whole, and because of thf: deep interest exisling in 1.hl.S.
project, which has been endorsed by many mum(:lpul and county bmlu_zs in mylrf
disirict, T respectfully urge the subcommittee to include {he appropriation o
$280,00¢) in the bill for fisenl 1963, as so ably requesied by our c‘slecmcd I\‘nrtl\
Carolina Senators, the Honorables Saur J. Ervin, Jr., and B. Everett Jordan,.
with whom I am happy to associste myself in this reguest.

Mr. Koryraay. T would also like to at this time, Mr. Chairman ask
all those persons who have come to Washington in favor of plan A
to stand up in order that they might be recognized by the Chair.

Senator Jorpax. Thank you very much. We appreciate the attend-
ance of all of yon. It shows your great interest i this vast project.

Mr. Kongeay. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. )

Congressman Cooley, we will be glad to hear from you, sir, at this
time, and any witnesses that you wish to introduce and be heard. We
are mighty glad to have you with us this morning.

STATEMENT OF HON. HAROLD D. COOLEY, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE FOURTH CUN GRESSIONAL DISTRICT OF THE
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. Coouey. My, Chairman, T want to thank you for the patience
with whicl vou have heard the proponents of the High Dam at New
Hope. Based upon this ex parte hearings at least one of the me.'m‘l)ers‘
of your committee expressed his opinion. We think we kuow your
views and we deubt very much that we would be able to change your
views, but T do have four or five witnesses T would like to p_rcmnhh-.
to Liave permission for them to file statements {or the record, ;md 1
would like also to have permission to prepare and file a statement
myself for the record because in the interest of time I think that wuulc%
be nccomplishing just about as much as if we proeceded to be heard
at great lenglh. ) )

With your penmission, T would like to call these witnesses. .

Senator Jorpan. T appreciale thal and we would be glad to hear
anv of them, and T will assure you we will stay here as long as you
liave wilnesses who want to he heard.

e Cnen e 1 oam are von will, and T osay yon lave been very

T T YT
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Senator Jorpan. And you may prepare your statement—when do
you want it put in the record ?

Mr. Coory. DBefore you closc—the next few days.

Senator Jounaw. Allright.

Mr. Coorey. T would like to present Mr. Earl Parker from Chatham
County, who has to leave aclually because of illness of one member
of his group. Mvr. Parker is here and he made u statement yesterday
before the IHouse committee, and he will prepare and mail into the
clerk of this cominiliee a prepared statement,

Senator Jorpan. ITave a seat, Mr. Parker.

Mr. Coowey. And, also, Senator, Harry Horton, Chatham County,
who ulso testified yesterday before the House committee, and he will
prepare a statement and send it to the clerk to be filed here.

Senator Jorvan. All right.

Mr. Coorky. And Mr. Dick Dailey, our State conservationist, I
would like permission for him to prepare and file such statement as he
may desire to file in connection with the problems under consideration.

Senator Jorvan. That will be received.

Mr. Coorey. And Mr. Bob Scott, the master of the North Caroling
State Grange, und the son of the late beloved Senator I{err Scott, who
served here with great distinetion in years gone by ; and Prof. Edward
H. Wiser of the North Carolina State College who made a study of the
problems of the €ape Fear Basin. I would like permission for him
to file a statement.

{The statements referved to are as follows:)

SrareMENT OF REprkSENTATIVE HAroLD D), CoOLEY oF NokRTm CAROLINA, C'HAIR-
MAN, Houss COMMITTEE ON AGRIOULTULE

TIE FATE OF TIHHE CAPE FEAR RIVER BABIN

Mr. Chairman, we approach now the hour of a momentous decision—your
;l}eci_sion, the decision of this committee—on the fate of the Cape Fear River

ngin.

I come before you to couvnsel with you that on this decision rides the love of
home, the devotion o place, the fortunes, the dreatus, and the individual destiny
c()}f m:ll.n}' people and many families in this basin and in our beloved State of North

arolina,

A great and serious and serrowful error may be made. I want to forestall
and prevent this wrong, if it is at all within my power to do so.

You have before you, first and formally, 1 grandiose proposition, brought in
by the U.S. Army Engineers, to develop this great basin. ‘The proposition, em-
bracing an undertaking to consuine 102 years in the making, calls for a huge dam
at New Hope, two intermediate dams—IIowards Mill and Randleman—and
nunerous smaller reservoirs.

You have also before you, informally, an aiternative proposal, prepared by the
Boil Couservation Scrvice, to accomplish all the benefits of the Army's ;:':rand'
plan, at less than half the cost, in just a fraction of the time, andg, above gll else
without wronging and without heaping woe upwn any of our people in order t(;-
bring esrichment and enjoyment to others.

I n;n here to plead for the plan that would benefit all of us without hurling
any of us.

Ia the interest of the people caught fatefully in the Lalances of this impend-
Ing deeision, I respectfnlly present to you certain faets and certain observations
und pulition your serious and sympathetic consideration. i

The high dawm at New Hope, as proposed by Army Engineers, would flood
amd olliterate 35,000 acres of rich, fertile farmland, an area which now adids
some $2 million annually to the wealth of our peaple and our Stute, in crops and
tmber, Phis land wonld be removed forever from such purposes of productivity.

The high dam would floed out 1650 families, submerging their homes their
churehes, their zelools and their barinl grounds.  ITundreds of ofher f:;mi]iﬂ.w
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would be obliged to drive out of their own county through other countied to
reach their courtlionse at the Chatham seat in Pittsbhorn,

The impact upon the economy of Chatham County would be devastating. Not
only would $2 willion of annunl income from uagriculture be destroyed, but the
jnost valuable farmland in the county would be removed from the tax buo}:s.

A ruilroad valued at $2 aillion, as well as part of one of the larger State
Lighways, wonld be imundated.

The high dawn would creale a gigantic cesspool for TaW Sewase from towns and
cities nnd for discharged chemicals from inlugtrinl plants.

A dam of such proportions sometimes can be justibed on its poientinl for
producing electric power. No power is even contemplated by the Arwy Tugl-
neers in this proposal.

The cost of the Avmy Tngitncers” praposal is Tantastic,

The proponents of this plan tallc about it as if it contemplated only one high
dam. In truth auwd in fact this proposition, in addition to the $23 million for
the New Hope Dam projects the huilding of numereus smaller <ams, with an
eventual tatal estimated cost of $72 millien, over a period of 102 years.

I question this estimale of costs. 1T Army Engineers ave ad inaeccurnte on
their New Ilope proposal as they have Leen in ot least seven other projecis in
the southeast, the eost will be uot 272 million, but $186 million. Actual rosts
of these projects in the southeast have run 257 percent above the Army Engi-
neers' estimates.

e, Chairman, let us now look at the alternative plan prepared by the Soil
Conservation Service.

The $C8 plan contempiates numeraus smaller reservoirs in the upper reaches
of the basgin, to hold the water nearer wlere it falls.

The total eost would be only $36 niltion.

Flood protection would be assured in the basin by the series of smaller
impoundimnents.

Ture water would be eollected in these many lakes, located above the sewer
oullcts of towns and eities and above the pollutions of waste chemicals frown
industrinl establishwents, Thus unpolluted and pure water waould be available
for municipal and indnsirial water supplies.

These many lakes wounld provide pure water for human conswmnption, Tor
fish and wildlife, for swimming and skiing, meeting the recreational needs of
our people as far into the futnre as we arc able to see.

Pire water woeld be available for agricultural water supplies.

The 35,000 richest neres of the villey woulil continue to flourish, producing
%2 million annually in crops and timber for the liveliheod and well-being of
our people.

Iow then, Mr. Chairman, can we justify thig proposition that is subinitted here
by the Army Iongineers?

T can think of no argument for the high dam, except that the Jake it impounds
might accommodate pleasure Boais of the luxury class, with deeper draft than
woulil some of the smaller reservoirs of the 808 plan. T will concede there would
be behind this dom more room in one place for bowls to run up and down.

€a what are we talking about here, when we compare tbe high dnm to the
sensibie multiple reservoir approach of the Soil Congervation Service?

Mr. Chairman, I conceive of this high dam proposition only as 2 gigantic
plaything.

Are we called upon here to appropriate %40, #50 million or more in {axes
collected by our Government—ahove what is required to do a real job of floml
control, witer supply awd recreatinn—just 5o some people will have o larger pond
to Tiin up and down in theie boats?

This is perhaps fhe biggest baoudogple this commiltee hing ever had to con-
gider, benefiting the fewest prople for the woney {n he expended,

I simply cannot #o nlong with {his in principle, when there ave maly rivers
and oiher waterways in mwy Siate worthy qud crying out for attention and
improvement. 1 say to you! Spend all the mnney invalved in your considern-
tinng, and spewd this money in my State of Neorth Cavolina; but apply these
pxpenditures fu o way as Lo distribute the benefits over the widest area and
among the greatest nuinber ol our people,

e Chairmin, there is a sensible alteruative lere, anil T urge this upon you.

1ot us bring forward whidever legislation is necded o commence imnnediotely

e series of sinaller reservoirs i the upper reaches of this magnilicent Cape Tear

River Dusin.  This work ean be ermaploled in perhaps Boto 7 yeurs. Theu, 0

thae tiines will reguive if, Tel ns hoild (he Randieman and Howards Mill Trams.

T e T
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Aund, if ever justified by the needs of ou
s | r people for 1
hnIllount_lulcnts. th_at \\'111. be the time for a Eliglll dm;)lraél I]E:\I;' :ggp;arger water
neen tl;;]s cnn_nectmn, I Jl.lSt. recently arranged a conference of the 'Army Engi-
ne (ll.i'n gr:; EO}}J 1.C'-'Jlusermtmn Service, and others who are interested, in and out
45, e purpose of reaching a ise i v i
in% nrour;:dt e deveiient o bas%n. compromise in the controversy whirl-
regret to report that the Army Engineers were adar i
0 r 1 A E amant, show i 5
{n lcoml_mnnme. ’%hey in effect told us they hud submitted theigv;)lrltljg n('itgnmr%&
t\? th(‘.l}?i or nothing, so far as they are concerned postiion an
Mr. Chairinun, I beg of this committee that it-f
! : orce 4 oo i
nrel too many deerply_ human elements involved here for un;'o;g)igngese;i e
ﬂuI( :llré(}j'xeldtmg. l‘hﬁs great basin must be developed rrogant
pledge to you that I shall do ev i j . d
jmi«jtice e e ot everything in my power to bring sense and
ut, Mr. Chairman, as this propositi
position now stands, I am sayi
::z({mle l\hlellilber u_f the Congress of the United States, 1 simpl;}éggniﬁ; iolu rE)hat
shall continue to oppose with all the vigor at my command thi;pthi‘[':z

that would drown out my ;
people just s ] -
may have 8 larger poud to float 1jliS bo(:ltt.hat somebody else further downstreaw

Thank you very wuch.

STATEME
ATEMENT oF R, M., D‘AILEY, STATE' CONBERVATIONIST, S0iL. CONSERVATION
SERVICE, FOR NORTH CAROLINA

Mr, Chairman and members i
of the committee, at the request

tS}(;:ustf:tKe;r b{;‘,cott, the Cprps of Engineers, the Soil Conserw?tion S%E'v?;g E::tg
the S lagec; 19051:11 Carolmfx, initiated a joint survey of the Cape Fear l':liv r
Joash investl'l iaT. The Soil Conservation Service carried out its phases of tg
Joln igation under the authority of section 6 of Public Law 566 a

Tﬁ;ess, as ume?ﬁd. “w »

purpose o is joint survey was to i
prepare a ge i
})tla‘?'afso; tzl'm (;levelﬂpment. of_ the water and re?ated ]agl’lc{li?égﬁf‘::leso:sptrlfg (:]n51.ve
would n(i ?:1 i?stclt;‘.'hecolzletgalilixm;llfyu:gctogllieg:&]e{ia Iize(} e Plan reﬁ;?{
L ations for authori

g;giiﬁz:;, ggltlzl(\;vould li,l;imde a framework withio which any o; zt‘;xtgollrla:tficfggﬁx?c

& ot pama g);:)lczah to prepare plans for specific projects for uuthorizauong
o the Toanporl 1te survey wug completed in May 19681. Coples were pmvide{i
e tlou: On, mesﬁrg:;;}f%cultutre and Tublic Works and to the Senate

e . orestry, and I'ublic Wi ']

y C . v
dggggaa;;dsgdt‘ov ﬂt;:e;n g%r;cgrnﬁl 1ljznembe'rs of the North ggl:ilimf hceo;eggg::i&ﬁ
b Nty e vallable to interested individuals and ogranizations

In view of the past histor

' Vi $ story of flooding in the Cape F

{;x;g; is:c::}agf tllillood control, particularly aleng the ma?x‘l3 st:::lr olfuglf; Cl}m sin.Fthe
lnvcstjigation l? n;ajor element considered in these joint studies '.[?lll)e ?ar
Bliows that n.deﬁuutg Igo(zflpi;rﬁeg?gnlxncerihang e Fead Conserva.tion geggig;
il L ot on the Cape Fear Ri

er cail be provided by alternate systems of economicallge;ugglf;)e‘rl trlt::egar

oir

storage. The reservoirs in ea

] ch of the alternate sy

Ixf‘ltlllllllilziole-purpose use which will provide for sogféteg}s tﬁ]ﬂn watoeTeloped for
pul and Industrial uses, water Tt ot o

lite. saa o quality control, irrigation, fish and wild-

||:c;lr‘11t1:eigumt'1]|?: régozt 11“n~m-u3ute(_1 two alternative plans for water resource devel
Pt i the thp . en’r River basin. Dlan A, consisting of a relativ levle g
Cory e o ine aw_ River at the New Hope site, was investi ateg yb he
orps 0 si;egre:(él;'& . Plan B, consi.:;ting of & system of 242 sma%l and i or
e Size resc voirs, was investigated by the Soll Conservation Serv!nmr-
he nutlyas o ge rteduetion benefits as presented in the report are b s:{:le‘
Whinalysis of ¢ lllmti orlmmrunoff pattern, namely, the storm of l‘.r(:rpica‘ll Ti o
e presull reducine 3 9 flood. The effectiveness of the two swonsgu;
compaeed, Ueedu g flond da;nages from this storm runoff putteg Y
o .com }nrabelr, the eflfectiveness of other features of the tweo !:my e
iy com ylstem e.r The dat.a presented in the report show that eiyi pratyl
Hoog miove sy nls c: reservoirs would provide essentially the sam cl vl g
e o otectio :mdm]i: ht}hﬂe;l gl?;?esi‘i‘;zdor the Cape Fear River. Howe:'e: v::n(c):
; ‘ E reserv ’
widely dispersed throughout the basin, t.hoym:?mfl‘:int;;]::;r:-li‘tlltfdﬂci»?w]plr?rgﬂg t:.u-e
" rtion

B en
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benetfits to other areas which would not be afforded protection by the single
large reservolr atthe New Hope site contempiated in plan A.

1t ia desirable to emphasize the point that the joint studies were not intended
to recommend any particalar system of development, and, therefore, the joint

report does not present such a recommendation. The Soil Conservation Service
pelieves that in any river basin investigation all feasible alternatives should
be given consideration and presented to local interests for their determination
as to the system of development which would best meet their needs and
degires. In view of this the Soil Conservation Service has noi. at any time
recommended- the adoption of eilher plan A or plan B. The oflicial position of
the Department of Agriculture has been presented to this contmittee by Mr. Carl
B. Brown, of the Soil Conservation Service, who gtatedt: “We have not at any
{ime been and are not now opposed to the authorlzation of the New Hope Dam.”

It has been Indicated that the reservoirs contemplated in plan B have not
been definitely located, and, conseruently, there might be somne doubt as to
whether or not these reservoirs could be installed. Plan B was formulated by
a sampling technigue developed and used by the Soil Conservation Service over
a long peried of years. In the Cape Fear study, detalled field surveys were
made of 34 dams in 5 subwutersheds and the results were expanded to the entire
basin. We know, therefore, that at Jeast 34 of the dams included in plan B can
definitely be lostalled, and from fleld reconnaissance studies made of other
subwatersheds we know that an adequate number of structure sites exist. Con-
sequently, there would be no major problem involved In locating and constructing
the number of upstream reservolrs deseribed 1n plan B.

The joint report shows that approximately 30,000 acres of land would be
required for the reservolr contemplated in plan A and approximately 72,000
acres would be required for the system of reservoirs contemplated in plan B,
As ] have indicated previously, the system of reservoirs in plan I can be modified
to preovide for multlple-purpose use, 4§ for example, the storage of wuter for
jow-flow regulation, which would provide benefits from purposes other than flood
control throughout the entire area, as well us along the main stem of the Cape
Fear River. Additlonal lands would be required for such multipurpose devel-
opment. In view of the large number of potential sites for the sinnller reser-
voirs, most of these can be located without adversely affecting the existing
economy. However, we recognize that for some of the larger reservoirs col-
templated in plan B there is less flexibility and some of these regervairs would
require relocations that mlght adversely affect a few indlvidual farm enterprises.
It should be noted, bowever, that the current recommendation in the Clief of
Engineers’ report s for the constructinn of the New Hope Reservolr to be
followed by the construction of reservoirs at the Randleman and Hownrds Mill
sites and later apparently by a large number of small and intermedinte size
reservolirs similar to those described in plan B. Such a plan would ultimately
require publie acquisition of between 125,000 and 150,000 acres of lund.

The committee has been presented with statements to the effect that the Soil
Conservation Service now builds dams under the authority of P'nblic Laws 366G
and 87-630. The Soil Conservation Service under the aunthority granted to the
Secretary of Agriculture by the Watershed Protectlon and TFlood Prevention Act,
Public Law 0§66, 83d Ceongress, as amended, provides technieal, finanecial, and
credit assistonce to gualified local organizations to plan and install complete
watershed treatment programs which may Include dams such 08 ithose which are
contemplated in plan B. However, Public Law 6310, 87th Congress, provides
authorization to the Secretary of the Ariny and the Secretary of Agriculture to
earry cut joint studies and investigations in river basgins and to recommend plans
to the Congress for authorization. The Soil Conservation Service does not con-
struct any dams under the provigions of this law. It has also been stated to the
committee that there are no laws in existence today under which a system of
reservolrs such as is contemplated in plan I3 could logicnlly be constructed and,
therefore, major lepisiative changes would be required before the dningites
could be located. This could be more properiy stated that there are no laws
which would nuthorize the construction of elther plan A or plan B or any modi-

fication thereof at the present time. The Congress must enact legislation if
elther of these alternative systems or any combination {hereof were to be
{nstalledd. The Congress has previously enacted legislation {Flood Control Act
of 1944) autborizing 11 rlver basin programs for runoff and waterflow retarda-
tion and =oil erosion prevention in river basing, such ns the Cape Fear. In this

program, the Soil Conservation Service is installing a system of upstrenn reser-
Ty e et 1he emtire basin,  The Washila River
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B
R;l\?;rrl Ii.’:l s(i)nkl?:l?:gaé which is approximately the same size as the Cape Fe
River Bas 1:; ..] 1 example of the type of program which is being carried at
nppruximnteflsel?)gon‘ 11‘1 the authorized program for the WashitagRivel;' B oiut
abproxima e g' - ‘_Eesermirs have been constructed by the Soil Conserv. Elt.?i o
fervice Wh rhell)lee:i ls slgg; EEZ negds :vithin the subwatersheds and also pr(?vitollt;
" ‘ X : main stem of the Washita River.
oy 3?{-22?3 p;n;ects undertaken under the provisions of Pu]i)lic Law h66
1"‘0\;1(]65 thut(:’ loi-tallgfxﬂrl;:?m;s ]?ill:‘l;in these watersheds. This Jlaw ’thez?;agrné
: 8 sha ar a share of the OgTa
g:;leéllléletr:g ;ltl;cxl'_ rﬁquirements local interests must pmvicgit a?{ gggt}:ss: pr] 5,
easem rea;érv:)[ir:fm?: of ‘;vaty Iwil:ich are required for the program Sirfge :1111:18'
’ 5 contemplated in plan B are designed t ! he
&rﬁrﬂlstr‘enm ]ureas it is not reasonable to expectg:hat i)oglmi'iﬂg bextzeﬂts e
g 1o meet the same cost sharing requirements as under Publlgfrsliiv:"?fli? be

STATEMENT oF HARRY HortoN, PiTTBDORO, N.C.

Mr, Chairman, I am Harr
. ¥ Horton, of Pittsbor
o : . ¢, Chatham
(‘.()Il].?]f] ;;‘I;? g;e%::{:‘ ;1%1 g?ﬁnﬁ “31?1 (:tl“i?e members fron; the 13th Sgga?g)gafﬁ?&:lgg
GeIneral Aonembly, ' , e Counties, to the present North Carolina
have for several years studied a
3 8 nd followed the proposed
;gti‘lv I;rr?c]lmlﬁg(\l'eb}lr) ;lile Corps of Arm.y Engineers for the g::;e Ig"fa:g iioa;ii:xmdlc:u.
Horlong e, e lODl_lﬂsed to this plan for it does not provide for the t t:;
in Chatham Cnunt?r ;gsxlll:ilrt {)fnt?e?x{)]-;g's:g(i'aw thl.:l'r B L omatruet gnm
3 m
l|:,1§1(')ea of lun_f! most of which I8 in Chatham goustlnggtlidvi;‘;n}fate e
Tgrdrg:)s{: ¥ aluabblelfarm and timber lands. ’ €} composes some
relop A basin such us the Cape Fear, fa
. op & ctors oth
;h;l{ﬂ'(é bqivcotn.sxdered. There should be a tot;ﬂ developm:;t t(!)lfa rtlhﬂeol())d 1control
i a&lvenﬂt :;‘t&ctl)llézervstlon Elihould be a primary factor—with consi?lirizgt?:
] and avalilabi
:m’% O elon vailability for farm purposes, industrial development,
'0 ecall to your attention brieff
; v.a little of the back
R’lﬁ?c’hﬂ:f;el‘; eﬁ'e three dams propoged. The first to begxt'ggn:ngtmtlheém}gineem
vich 1(11( ave such a devastating effect on Chatham Count e vt
%{umlo‘lg;l C;::Et;m 'i,‘\l\'n otiaher dams to be huilt some 10 years ag'moql::gelﬂt:eheiir
. lege three proposed dams w trol
(t"g;tilz.h?se downstream from the Chatham Com?t; ;gl%oaéggrgaonly o
Tix g Ol:;:iteclhon in Rzlmdolph County. m and some flood
zinal proposal enlled for the Haw Ri
choho original proposal called ver Dam to be 111 feet.
power is now indicated. present proposal of 101 feet.
No provision was made for water i
0 Provision was z conservation in the origi
8?1?[;3 (‘)}1?5; ghm f.l;ltnr has been stressed by the opponents ;}gfc%’;llaﬁngii?i?;s tlif.
cn prormqédghr:reflrli Sac?i IStgct)i(;et:mtt ithey C;Em come back and build multiple ciamg
5 3 S vation. ey attempt t
;llt:[rllf:_y Fhe year 2_06.)—01- approximately 103 years Fromo:t?v{- th;ltt et e
that rl‘IS is 1 long time l_!nlr total develomnent of the Cape Fear.and aI;pears B
e r::llt;:: ;l;}’tgg[ﬁﬁltloﬁ to the ITaw River project, mrticularlvt;lili-;n tx}}l;es mte
Taw Y v . o ) ousss
thc{ ?ﬂh‘iﬂ AU iver Dam, or as we call it the high dam, is set up on
Ve say that a zeries of dams co
. s s of | ulil be bullt, not nec i
El-le:;o‘:l ::u;}lar nu'mper of intermediate-size dams thnﬁf’i?llﬁll};;:'gii?;:?na:hnumber.
llngf m; (11 h h::ﬂllh:;!;nl in t{llni&liedsvllle aren and the Greensbhoro area ;I:d tgeugzer
-ir 2k AN . e
paton Grahain. e Asheboro area, where the greatest population of the
The opposition to the New H
h ‘ ope Dam cames not only fro ;
0 ner!:lei‘:nl:llef‘(f CllaBtham County, as you know the North g}arolril:utxh(ggg dm;ﬂers "
L b T Bureny, and the soil supervisors for more than 10 ntgteﬁ . Nm:th
Ansm-lnti'nnl S?Ié?ﬁ? E‘l:;z qx;{:[;c:g.ed I];l:m for vbvious reasons. The N!ortl:3 (gg::ltif:
L sonservation Di
Hn;l:sul::pm;nng Congressman Coolev:’itflmc.:iiifﬁlr the entire State adopted a resolu-
3} i / S .
Engin&‘;): [{;?‘:}f{;l!na z\'(.ademy of Sclence has also opposed the plan of the A
s {1f ell as Asst. I'rof, Frank W. Woods, of the Seliool of "‘nrii'iﬂr:nfl;“'f

That has
There report implies no
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Duke Unlversity, in Durham, N.C. Responaible people in North Carolina are
opposed to the flood control idea of the Cape Fear Basln without total develop-
ment. -

The County Commissioners of Chatham County as well as every countywide
elected officiul of the county are opposed to the Englneers plan. We do not see
the talking out of use and permanently inundating an amount of valuable acreage
that equald to the farmiand that has been flooded in the floods that have occurred,
at oi-year intervals. We say that if the proponents of the big dam in Chatham
County want to sotve any problems in the Cape Fear Rasin that they should work
towird total development of all ureas of the basin and net for just one particular
area, particularly when it has such a devastating effect on one county without

henefit to all 17 counties of the basin.

STATEMENT OF EArL F. PARKER, CIAIRMAN, NEw Hore VALLEY ABBUCIATION,
rrrrasoro, N.C.

1 speak to you today, not as an individual, but for the large number of citlzens
and landowners in the New Hope Valley, Chatham County, N.C., who would be
inundated if the proposal of the Corps of Englneers wns made a reality.

There would be 151 families left homeless if the water were impounded at
240 fest mean sea level. This flpure does not include these who would be
affected in the additional 5 elevated feet, nor the 2000 acres that eascinents
would be taken on, nor the 10 percent for blocking out.

My flgures may not be eluborate because we have tried to make this an honest
and accurate report.

If the high dam is constructed there will be more than 560 aeres of tobaeco
allotment destroyed, 2,000 acres of cereal crops, 150 home gardens, much pasture
land, and—aceording to the survey report—3,000 acres of growlng timber. These
factors within themselves are a great asset to our State. The minimuwn of thelr
annual value would be tobacce $560,000, corn and cereal crops, $100,000, home
gardens, $75,000, annual timber growth at $12 per acre, $360,000. The total of
these figures Is $1,095,000, which would be done away with in this county and
in this State of ours. This would be a loss of over $1 milllon year after year
just en farm products if this zrea should be inundated,

Now compare this amount with the annual benelits to be enjoyed by the area
and the people below the proposed dam and you will find that there is not a
feasible ratio of cost and benefit.

If you compare the two together the cost-benefit ratios are not. so pleasing to
look at.

We are interested in a program that will benefit the lower reaches of the basin
and also the people in the upper reaches of the Haw River and its tributaries.
We gincerely believe the series of small dams proposed by the Soil Coopservation
Serviceis as nearly ideal g program as can he developed.

We are interested in the value of our land, too. A recent land transaction, the
latest we know of, consisted of the selling of a farm of 42 acres. This was in our
valley. This farm, with 4.2 acres of tobacce allotment and meager buildings,
sold for the round figure of $12,000 on the open market, or approximately $2585 per
acre-—one of the least desirable farms.

Our land would be bought in fee for about $108 per acre if the Army Corps of
Engineers program is put inte effect.

The seil conservation pregram would not inundate this valuable land. It
would be necessary to acquire only low-grade or hottom land, thus leaving the
most productive soll in cour counly to feed and clothe our people and remain
an asset to our State and Nation.

By making the program of soil conservation a reality, many thousands of
acres will enjoy land enhancement in the Piedmont region. as well as in the
regions below the junction of the ITaw and New Hope Rivers. Farms in many
arens could use said water for irrigation. The benefit flgures for the irrigation
water have never been incluided in the benefits listed for the soll conservation
program, if [ understand correctly.

Munlcipalities and imdustries would receive tremendous benefits under the
smaller dam program by baving bodies of water readily accessible in their area
instead of having to pump water 40 or 50 miles.

If the blg dam Is constructed, the railrond which traverses New Hope Valley
would have to be relocated, This would cost $2 million dollars. The figure
for tha roloeniion of a sinele railrond tracl is fanlastle-—§100,000 per mile,

oo S

(et e 1
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If the small dams were construct is ex
§ el {his expense would be elimina
business could be .tmnsact_ed on the said railroad in the usual mannelf:‘3 % and
]it.lso tl}f‘! relm-ntmn.of highways, including 1.8, 64, would be 2 major under-
E?lutng.\ l'he accmnpl]mhment of this tusk would cost the Government g sizable
Suln. Again we say that such an expense woul
i e sy i vould not be necessary if Fhe multiple
OfIn the p‘ast thp Army Corps of Englneers has underestimated the actual cost
: projects of this nature. We see no reason why the New Hope Dam estlmates
W n\llzld not be a repetition of things in the past. ) l
Many people who Dresently tavor the Army G ingi
iy ; ¥ Corps of Engineers pregram d
:l.](ltt]t‘.ldllze 1lmt_ they \}'111 recpive no benelits from that program. I’)l‘hsv thing
Itui t]]ﬁ plan wiil provide an ideal] recreation outlet for central North Carolina
{ lgsl chn said that, nnder certain conditions, said lake would be useful onl\;
)Oﬂl;t t(;.m,. However the Army (;orps of Engineer itself has pointed out in the
pas 'mt. due to upstream pollution, the water will not be suituble for swiminin
nrfili«.lnng. thus reducing recreation to a minimum . 8
'he New Hope Dam is not needed and is not .\\'ﬂ { i i i
| me Ik 8 : nted, s 3
inirreparable injury tothe people in the area. G and i built will result

STATEMENT PRESENTEP oY E. II. WISER

GENTLEMEN: I appreciate the o i i
N ‘ r: 1 C pportunity to testify on the subje fw
;(E;(s]::r:eq )de[\)lelr)mnenrtqm the Cape Fear Hiver Basin, This is ong rfft :?ur“lgft:f:f
roblems in b r e live i ‘
Dross I} ns i orth Carolina, even though we live in a so-called humid
CGur water needs have been well do
A ) s ha : cumented by the Corps of Engin ’
::twd :‘ u{ler for municipal, industrial, and agricultural purﬁnses anﬁi f-f;riee(‘x‘:
ber(mﬁul;,li‘:;(ll f:)ri-dpfo]:'ildlmg these needs, or rather, to determine which needé can
vhich oo A T i
e . cannot, since competition among the various users is
The specific interest of my de N
fe Tes 3 qrartient at North Caroling State Coll
eoncerned with apgricuttural needs, but we believe that this pruhlemeis (i)ngfteriis
ub{,::" reluated l.ln the needs of the basin as a whale - e
e were therefore led to examine the re ts & i
. _ for ports subnitted by the Corps of En-
gi:}ge(}:nﬁﬁ-(elht::ﬁ;i:::l:)f(;?)nser“}tm? Sl}er\'ivf'. to determine how well tll(EV ﬂi oJllJlr
own ¢ then e needs of the basin. The paper submitted by n
Water Resourees Development ir ! PRiver Basine pobllsh tiled
] - in the Cape Fear Riv Basin,”
Information Circeular No. 1% of th feltural ] D eered o
Mireuls .18 ¢ Department of Agricultural Engi
copy of which is attached) represents a v ict e et
; 4 5 ery restricted anulysis of i
aspects of the abovenentioned re ] ; impos o
: ports, It would have be i
to have attempted a project of a & e e ot the
SuriI!hCiJnservatinu S(!r\'i(‘Je. a scape comparable to that of the corps or of the
ere are three points on which we disa ri
¢ disagree with the reports: (1) The esti-
i:;gltgs ;ljfnﬂoqd I_JE]IlEﬁtS are much too high; (2) the low-flow provision l)lf the I\':w
toope 1 11‘1‘15 m.ldequati'e; {3) the corps has taken an important part of the
Thm .ﬂeetb (](lzclsl.munamng functien in specifying the sequential analysis
it {lﬁ?’(‘t:sﬂlgui\nltl‘()lls clemily mos% important in terms of basin planning‘bec’aui;c
‘hole emphasis of the planning., Qur analysis is 1m i
"I"II)“Immx A l{;et me briefly sketch some of our findings ¥ols ix documented in
1e corps has estimated the average annual food da i
. 3 S ¢ d : mage in the low
;* I;‘ul[;)%afm. adJm,teul_tu 1958 price levels, to be §1,330,000. gIn cnmﬁa:')lv‘:r?; .C?g);a
er\';l‘ti'oﬁll(é corps efstllllatetl annual floml damage of $130,700;(d) the :';ﬂﬂlCOIl
! ervice in parallel studies estimated (].al:n'l” ' ™ )
percent lexs than that computed by th B T th
: E 3 e corps; (¢) the Weather B i
mates average annual damage in th i 3¢ i fon, Bt cn o
price Tovels, by bo S1572.000. 24 the entire South Atlantic region, at current
bct[;l;?) :i:l(lti(;i‘}llufﬁ \t\:l‘i)cl;tlehe C-((:;[;s RoflEngineers used to predict flood damage may
. "0 steps ! elation hetween flood damage in doll {
stalga‘?lli llllxl?tr:]:erl;l (2) ttl'l‘eqjileltl:cy of occurrence of any given stagge of tt(:tla t;‘se‘:nd
vell on the flrst pa iince w e 1 ' i )
lh:\ R part, since we have used the corps estimates in
ﬂml:tl]lf s;t:;iti;w‘?e;): lilgf‘;]);'nh{;.:y iwhich, r;;:mng ather thingg, deals with frequency of
2, S act seience. ecause of this, it is of i '
different techniques which det i i A gt M
ermine (iff s 4
cm OnlY Brgnt bt e e erent resukts, and those who apply them
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The corps has used one such gtandard method, one which is used with slight
modifications by geveral agencles. Put, in applying the results te the records at
Fayetteville and Elzabethtown, where long-term records are available, we are
provided with o very interesting atatistical test. Actually, I have applied tweo
different tests, the details being given in appendix A,

The result may be stated thus in 2 good statistician’s language 1f the corps
estimate of flood frequency is assumed to be correct, there s less than 1 chance
in 1,000 that the actual record would have oceurred. In layman’s language, we
find that there is less than 1 chance in 1,000 that the corps' estimnte is correct,

“ome explanations have been considered in the paper, which I will not discuss.

The procedures which I hinve used to estimate flood damage hnve resulted in 2
value for average annual fleod damage o0 the lower Cape Tear River at between
$315,000 and $473,000 ond probably less than $400,000.

Our second point of disaprecment concerns the low-flow provision of the New
Hoype Ilam. This is documented in appendix C. Briefly, we have found that, out
of 12 years studied, in 3 of the yenrs there was insufilcient storage to maintain
the required 600 cubic feet per second at Lillington. 1n the drlest year (1953)
there would have been a requirement of 113,000 acre-feet, whereas the storage
allocated was only 72.000 acre-feet,

Looking again at the specifications. I mnst protest the guaraniee of any kind
of a hydrologic quantity. No matter how dry a year in the pnst, we must expect
a gtill drier year in the future. We are therefore required to put some kind of
probability values on quantitics such w8 low-flow control.

I believe this factor is of importance because the people on the lower Cape
Fear liiver have been guaranteed 2 required flow which cannot be maintained.
The effect on thelir planning may therefore be disastrond.

The third point must be emphasized becnuse of its influence-on the confiicts
that have atisen in the Cape Fear Basin. The corps justifies initinl construetion
of the New Hope Dam because «gpproximately 63 percent of the flood control
henefits, 16 percent of the water supply benefits, and 49 percent of the recreation
peneflts credited to the entire comprehensive plan of development of the basln
would accrue from the effects of the New Ilope project.” (Reference H, Doc.
508, p. 63.)

My own computatlons show that the small reservoir project included by the
corpd In its comprehensive repart, by this line of reasoning, is even more strongly
Justified because approximately 74 percent of the flood control benefits, 75 pereent
of the water supply beneflts, and 35 percent of the recreation benefits credited
to the entire comprehensive plan of development of the basin would accrue from
the effects of the small reservoir project.

It would thus appear that an alternative sequence should be considered under
which the small reservoira are completed first, followed by the Howard Mill,
Randleman, and New Hope projects in that order. Approximate firures for
benefits for this sequence and benefit-cost ratios are given in the accompanying
tables. (The approximate nature of these tables must be emphasized because
inadequate data are provided by the corps.) These tables are directly comparable
to those given in House Document 508, tables 17 and 18, pages G2-03.

The figures are based on the assumption that 90 percent of the flood benefits
assigned by the corps to the New Hope Dam could be assigned to the
reservoir, if they were constructed first. This figure is based on a study of the
1945 flood. It may be ghown from flgures supplied by the corps that the small
reservoir would be GG percent as effective as the New Hope preject at prevent-
ing nonagricultural damage along the lower Cape Fear River.

These figures show that the seguential development deseribed here is perfectly
sound. When considered in terms of the previous discussion concerning flood
damage, it may be seen that the small teservoir and the Randleman projects
are justified regardless of Aood benefit evaluation, that the Howards Mil pro-
ject is marginal, and that the New Ilope project is not justified.

1t ig belleved that the gequentiul development propesed here, considered in
light of the published proposal contained in “Waler Resources PDevelopment in
the Cape Fear River Bagin” would provide for optimum development of the
upper basin while controlling flcods in the lower basin, at a lower cost than
that provided by the corps recommendation.

Rumnary of everage annual
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plan (1360 dollars)

oo

tangidle benefits for reservoirs in comprchensive

Other Randle- Howards New
Benefit reservolr man Mil Hope Total
prijects project project project
Flood control benefits:
Flood-damage-reduction henefits. o .n-- 1,139, 200 117,000 234, 000 08, BOO 1, 589, 000
1and-enhancement benefts. . ocaaemmn- 459, 200 17,000 50, 000 38, 800 543, 000
L
[LIA D171 ;) PRI REEL L L 1, 588, 400 134, 000 244, 000 135, 600 2,152, 000
Water-supply beneflta
Municipnl waler supply. .. 473,000 72,000 9, 000 44, 000 508,000
Industrial water supply-- - 354, 000 1,000 10, 000 30, 00O 305, 000
Agriculiurnl water supply. 192, 000 8,000 1,000 &, o0 207, 000
ater-quality controdo _.ocoooanemneos 25,000 j-ccomnvommm- 28, 000 152, 000 \
BUbAOtAl. oo o mmwmmmmam e 1, (4, DOO 81,000 48, 000 232, 000 1, 455,000
Recrentlonal henefis. .oooooommemmmmnsmoos 399, 000 102, 000 82,000 554, 000 1,137, 000
POl e oo mmm o rmmm e mmm T 3,001,400 317, 000 414,000 21, 604 4, 744, 000
Sequential developmeni—Summary of benefits and costs
Aversge 0-
Assumed | Chross stor nancial Average | Benefit-to-
Project vear of age (acre- annusl annusl cost rstio
completion feet) costs (1860 | benefits
dollars)
b
Bmall roservelrs. . ------ [ DRI 023,000 | $1,532, 000 $3, 001, 400 2.4
Hownrds Millo_ . ooamemsrmnonmsmmenmmmmmmsime = oo om0 163, 000 187, 000 414, 000 .2
Tl I 98, 000 181, 000 317,000 2.0
i ey 860, 000 365, 000 921, 600 i1
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WATER RESOURCES DEVELOPHENT

lif THE CAPE FEAR RIVER BASH
SYLLASUS

tonsldarable interest has been shown in making full use of the water re-

sources of the Cape Fear River basin, A study hes been undertaken to considar

tha—avallablllty of water and the needs of the basin, projecting Into the

future on the basis of past records.

‘latar supply In the basin, if properly menaged, should be adequate for the
foreseeable future. Management for optimum utilization is clearly the most

Important problem,

Flood control is of some Importance in the basin. However, there is not

sufficient flood damage to justify any major project with flood control as its
primary purpose.

Development of recreational facilities should be glven careful consider«
ation in any development of the (ape Fear River, Expanding population together
with Increased Interest in water-related recreational activities will result

in heavy use of such facilities, particularly in the upper reaches of the basin.
Proposais for basin development which have been made by the Corps of
Engineers and the Seil Conservation Jervice are discussed in some detall, it
is concluded that these praposals are based on a mistaken emphasis on flood

control, and that they do not present a mathod for optimum utilizetion of

water resources In the basin.

An alternative proposal is made for a nétwork of dams to bes located in the

upper reachos of the basim and on various tributaries. These dams, with a

relatively large storage capacity, would be intended primarily for water supply,

but would incorporate high recreational value and a limited amount of flood

contral, It is balleved that such a project, coordinated with a plan for pol-

lutlon control, will give optimum benefits to the entlre basin.

1
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E—— ling with water

Durlng the past year two reports have been lssued dealing -
resources In the Cape Fear River basin, The "Joint Report" (1}, issued by
Corps of Engineers aﬁd toe Soll Conservation Service, presents two plans Cte:m;
ad "Plan A" and “Plen E". The "Cbmprehenslve. Report (2), Issued by tl:le orp
of Engineers, Incorporates features of *Plan A" into a ruch larger pr:Je:.:t;
In both projects suggested by the Corps, the main point of interest, both :
slze and cost, iIs a dam to be located just balow the Junction of the Haw an
lew Hope Rivers, hereafter referred to as the .lew ilopas dam.

in all of these projects, major emphasis is placed on flood control in the
lower Cape Feel:r‘ basin; that is, below the junctlon of the Haw and Deep Rivers.
Additlonal benefits are expacted to accrue In terms of wataer supply and re=
crestlon. An analysis of certain aspects of thésg projects made in this papar
points up serlous deficlenciss. .

In this report an altermnative proposal, which will provide for op
water resource development In the Cape Fear River basin, Is mada. Tnis plan
calls for construction of & network of dems to be located in the upper reaches
of the belsin and on varjous trlbutarles. These dams, with a relatively large
storag.e capacity, would be intended primarily for water supply, but would

d control,
Incorporate high recreational value and a Timited amount of floo

AOPOSAL F E _COMPS VUGHIEERS AHD [+]] Oi . 10if SERVICE
Flood Control

Flood control should not be assumed to be a probleT of major importance
In the Cape Fear River basin. The_rlver. Is rglatlvely small, compared to
those on which major floods occur. It rises in the Piedmont; thus, its water-
shed does not include the mountainous areas which are usually responsible for

flooding. Snow meit s negligible,
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Host of the largest floods have resulted from troplcal storms or hurricanes
and Intarest In flood control in the Cape Fear

River basjn results mainly from
floods caused by such storms, '

Floods of themsalves do not necessarily require control unlass they causa

damaga, Signifleant damage has Occurred in.this basin due to encroachment of

the flood plain by urban development, pPrimarily in the region of Fayettevi|ie.

5fgn1flcantly, the COI‘PE.Of Engineers several times has reported that

flood contrel is not justified in the Jower Cape Fear basin, The most wa})

known of these reperts was published in 1933, known_as the 300 report (3)‘.
1t is worth noting that, of the four major Floods that have

occurred In recent
years,

only opne has occurred since 1933, Thus, there s N0 reason to expect

&n they were prior to 1933. Certain-
there is more damage now from an equivalent flood

becausa of encroachment
of the flagd plaln,

One question to be considered Is why the flood plaln is developed |n splte
of the ever-present denger of floods., The answer must be that the devalopsr

Is enticed into the area by low land costs or simllar inducements,

In 1933, annual lgss attributable to floods was estimated at $116,000 (3).

ten=fold lnf.rease in annyal

loss. We must look, therefore, at the Procedure for estimating fiood damage,

Flood damage estimates are discussed n detail in Appendix A, Total

sanual flood damaga along the lower Cape Fear River is estimated by this

author at between $315,000 and $473,000, with g00d reason to believa that it

does not excead $400,000,
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The differsnce between our figure and the torps' current estimate 13
discussed in Appendlix A. 1t s attributaﬁle primarily to an overestimate of
flood frequency by the Corps. The difference betwecn our flgure and the corps'
1933 estimate is due to© decreased value of the dollar, fncreased use of the
flood plain and 8 different method of estimating demage.

Flood control casts are discussed In Appendix B. It is estlmated that
the annual cost of flood control for the lowar Cape Fear River by tha llew lope
dam alona is 5740,000, and by ""Plan g Is §920,000. Thus the cost of flood
control by elther project considerably exceeds the cost of the damage.

Clearly, economic justlflcatlon of watar resource davelopment In the
Cape Fear basin should emphasize water supply end recreatlon, éather tivan
flood control, FPress reports Indicata that most of the jnterast in these
projects has been directed toward water supply and recreational purposes.

Gecause of thls interest, & few comments about the design of tie New Hope

dam will Le made.

The llow Hope Dam )
Tha.ilew Hope dam is designed with flood control primarily in mind, but

advantages sccruing with respect to water supply and recreation have also been
enphasized. Yet the dam is inadequéte on all thres counts. Thers is NG
question of the dam's abllity to control runoff from i ts watershed of ibout
1690 square miles. However, this control is achioved on 1ess than 4% of the
total 4370 squara miles above Fayetteville. Clearly, large flcods could still
occur at Fayetteville and in othor areas of the lowér basin.

As regards water-supply benafits, we find major clties nsarsst tho dam,
naleigh and Durham, &s well as the fesearch Triangle, expecting to draw thelr

watar from the ileuss River. \ith purlington developing water supplies In its

4
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immediate nelghborhood, no major ¢ity ls close enough to the dam to economical-
Iy justify drawing water.from the resarvolr in the foresesabie future. In
addition, the quallty of water expected In the vesarvoir will bs relaflvaiy
poor (Appendix D).
Thus, the water supply aspect of the ilew Hope dam will be concerned
primarily with malntensnce of minlmum flow in the Cape Fear River, where the
’

water will be avallable for use by adjacent citles and for polution control,
Wle find In Appendix €, however, that the present plan for the llew Hopa dam

anhot
g meat the design minlmum flow during all years, If It cannot maintaln

mini
nimum flow, then certainly no water will be avallable for other purposes
The recreational aspects of the lew Hope dam also leave much to be

desired. Some aspects are discussed in Appendix D.

¢onclusion

varl
rlous aspects of the proposed plans far water resources in tha Cape

Fe
ar basin have been analyzed. ilo attempt was mada to discuss all aspect
Y

of the pl
plans, but it |s bellaved that sufficlient evidence has been advanced to

show that ti
he proposed plans entail poor economics, misuse of water resources
or both, |
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ALTERIATIVE PROPOSAL

Any project for the purpose of water-resourco development in the Cape

Fsar River basin should adaquately use and control taese resourcas for opti-

mom benefits. Such devalopment must tbe maltiple-purpose, with a clear state-

ment of purposes in order of prlorfty. consldering all features of the Capa

Foar basin and 1ts future development, the followlng tist In arder of prierity

15 recommended:
1} Mater supplys
2) Recreation;

3} Flood contrel,

yater Supply

\ater supply may be considered in two aspects: {1} direct use far

municipalities, industries and agriculture, and (2) low flow maintenance far

pollution control and use downstream.

\atar stored for direct use must ba reasongbly close to the user.

Municlpal water supply should be of Falrly high quality. On the other hand,

industrlial water supply does not require as good quality, except for food-

processing industries of which there are few 1n the Cape Fear basin, In

genur'al. industrial needs can be met by malntaining adequate low flow, together

with enforcement of adequate sanitation procedures.

Low flow maintenance then is of impartance to industrial development, 85

well as for general use downstream. Saveral municipallties use water from

the Cape Fear River, and some agricultural nesd may aiso be expected whore

farm ponds are unsatisfactory.
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Recreation

in-recent years, rco:roa!tion has become increasingly important to the
general public. Althougn many people from the Caps Fear region are drawn to
the ocean, the mountalns or other points farther away for long ;rbcatlms.
water-related racreatlonal facllities In the Cape. Fear basin will be used
Increasingly heavily on weelends and short holldays. Thus, it is desirable
to have adequate recreat/onal facilities located close to the centers of
populatlion,

Reservalr projects for water supply should be designed with recreation
la mind. For recreational purposes & reascnably stable water level is manda«
tory, at least during the recreation season, The level should not be allowed
to vary slgniflcantly from tie normal leke lavel, the allowable variation
depending on the flatness of the shore area. This restricts the amount of
flood and low-flow control possibie on such a reservoir.

v The_ water supply on such reservelss should be of adequate quality to
insure low enocugh pollution levels to allow any use such as swimming and water
skiing as wall as good fishlng.

1]
scause of recent interest in boating, there should slso be emphasis on

adegquate size of these reservoirs.

Elood Control
Al 8 j
though eny major project dasigned primarily to control flooding in the
Cape F
pe Fear basin is economically unjustified, a limited amount of flood control
is certai
nly warranted. Any dam, regardless of purpose, will Influence flood
sta h
ges downstream both by reducing the maximum flow over the dam and by del
) y delay-

| Ir i
ng the pealk. In addition, a limited amount of flood storage could be provid
. v )

ad on most reserveirs.

75
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\harever Flood control 1s desirable on tributaries or in the upper radchay Figure 1
CAPE FEAR RIVER BASIN
of the basin, watarshed projects such 8s the soil Consorvation servica P.L.
wolarsheds
In

566 projects may also be used. These projects would also roduce flood stages
. Proposed Development

downstream,
A network of dams, designed with first consideration to water supply but

with consideration to recreational advantages as wall, will automatlically

provide soma flood contral., Shight modification, together with appropriate

P.L. 566 projects, could provide all the flood control which Is Justifiable kA } = —~
{ Am
econcmically in the entlre basin, rather than being llmited to the lower basin. F""““‘*-\ n\?uaa
Nz
Consldering the abave discussion, the following proposals are recommend= ‘\'. (
x
ed. 5 )
e
The Upper Cape Fear Basin ’I" |
lost of the water supply needs in the upper Cape Fear basin are confined i \
to the clties in a 1ine from Burlington to Greensboro to iligh Point. The \< l\

fallowing five watersheds (Figure 1) are of primary Interest for water supply:
. Reedy Forl above puffaly Creslk;
Hew River above Altamahaw;
Alamanca Creek;

Deep River sbove Randleman;

™
Lower Little

-, Riyer

Stony Creek.

These five watersoeds nave a combined area of about 00 square miles. Assum=

ing < inches minimum runctf par year, annual yield from these watersheds .- y ! !/
exceeds 110 Lillion gallons, If per capita consumption is 1.0 gallons per Rock‘fuh \“\ - . ' YETTEVILLE
Cragh
day, tals is sufficient for 1,700,000 people, more than the expected population \
N
of this reglon in the foreseesble future, Thus, the cities In this srea can JCALL (0 ML X A
’ S APTITIU 2 _ . f \

be supplied with water from watersheds In thalr lemediate palghborhood, with=

gut having to pump water long distances.

8
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Reservolrs on these watersheds can be located at reesonable distances
from the cities served, The watersheds hava been chosen because of their
reistively small pollution loads, Probably the most heavily polluted is the
Decp River, which Is already being used by Randleman for Its water supply,
Alsa, such a plan ollows for discharging of wastes Into buffalo Creek at
Greensboro and points downstream on Reedy Fork and the Haw River without
affecting municipal water suppliés.

Some development for municipal yse has already been made of these water=-
sheds. EBurlington has two reservoirs on Stony Creek, Greensbore has two on
Reedy Fork, Reidsville has one on the Haw River, and High Point has o
the Deep River, "

The type of development recommended Is a series of large reservoirs on
sach stresm simllar to the one proposed by the Corps of Englneers at Randlemen
(the Rlndlamanldam would be & part of this recommandation). Generally, the
dam upstream would be used to maintain the water supply to the domstr;am
resarvoir which would be used for municipal supply. Exceptions to this
:ould bs for cities such as High Polnt and Reidsviile, where water would be
rawn from the upstream dams., ExIsting projects muld"certoinly be includ
in the overali project. -

These projects would be axcellently suited to recreational development;
the water quality would be goad, and the reservolrs would be ¢l '
ulation centers, | e
. As pointed out previously, such projects would exert some control on

oods. At least some of the reservoirs could be designed with a limlted
#mount of flood storage, to further reduce floods, In several tributary areas
P.L. 566 proje?ts would be applicable. These projects and flood storage

provision should be limited by economic justification

9
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Low=flow control would be satisfactory only to & limited extent on these

rasarvolrs, 1t seems preferable to hold good water supplies where they are
available near the cities. It is suggested that one or more dams, designed

nd recrsation plus limited flood contral, be located

for low-flow control &

In both the Haw and the Deep River basins downstream from the wataf supply

resarvoirs, Possible sites are Howard's Hi11 on the Deep River and on Reedy

Fork between Buffalo Creek and Haw River. These projects should have suffic-

jent capacity to maintaln adequate low flows not only on the llaw and Decp
Rlvers but also on the lower Cape Fear Rlver.
The Lower Cape Fear Basin

las (i.e.,

s are drawn primarily from ground suppl

$ince water supplie
pe Fear basin, the problems and

alls) end from the rivers in the lower Ca

by w
Primary emphasls for watar supply

solution here sre slightly diffarent.
should ba in maintalining low flows and in recharging the ground water reser—
voir, These could be accomplished most satisfactorily by locating one medium=
slzed dam each on the Upper and the Lower Little Rivers and on Rockfish Creek,
projects scattared

and these should be supplemented by a number of P.L. 566G

through the basin.
d control Is a natural result of such a project, since the

Here, floo
to recharge the ground

watar whicih would pormally cause floods would be used

water.

pam locations should be selected for optimum recreational development,

Although prospective sites far dams are relatively fewer {because of topograph;

than in the upper pasin, adequate sltes for these restricted requirements

’

can ba found.

10
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Lonclusion

This recommendation calls for constructlon of about seven large dams
simjlar to the proposed Randleman dam in the upper basin, and about three
smaller dams In the lower basin, plus @ number of P,i, 566 projects. Ho
rigld specification cen be made at this time concerning the actual number,
location and size of the dams. Detailed hydrologic, topagraphic and gecleglc
invastigations are necessary before thls information can be made avallable.

Such a project would ultimately cost about $50,000,000, Since much of
the emphasis is on municipal water supplies, a fair share of the cost should
be borne by the clities concerned, )

An agency should be es.tabll-shed with authorit/y to supervise unifled .
deslign, installation and operation of these reservoirs. [t should also make
racommendations for sultable P,L. 566 projects which would contribute to
overall devalopimant of the basln,

) Immediate action Shﬂl:lld be inftiated toward formation of such an agency.
Whiie action would depend upon thelr recommndation, the flrst steps in put=
ting this proposal into sction might be construction of the Randleman dam
{with adjustment in the water allocations made by the Corps of Enginsers),
and of a dam either on lleedy Fork or on the Haw River abovs Altamahaw.

It Is believed that this recosmendation provides for optimum use of the
viater resources of the Cape Fear River basin. By emphasis on water supply
snd recreation it would satlisfy the needs,both present and future, of the

majority of the people who llve in the basin,

11
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APPEMDIX A

PREDICTION OF FLOOD DAMAGE

The procaduras which the Corps of Engineers used to predict flood damage
may be considered in two steps;
{1) Relation batween flood damage In dollars and stage or discharge
of the river,
(2) Frequency of occurrence of eny given stage or discharge of the
river,

The information Is combined for predictlon of flood damage.

Relation between flood damage_in dollars and stage or discharge of the river

Complete analysis of this relation requires fleld surveys of the amount
of damage done by past floods, #ost of the work done.by the Corps was carrled
out in connection with the 1945 flood, Since such a survey takes a great
deal of time, no check has been made by thls author on the results. [t should
be noted that a great deal of the estimation is subjective, being based on
figures supplied by those who suffered lousses in the flood. Consequently,
it is easy for an agency to prove almost anything it wishes concerning damage,

The only checks available are the flood damage estimates of the U. 5.
Weather Dureau, f§t |s interesting to note that, according fo the "30J"' report
(3). tha Weather Gureay estimated damage caused by the 1904 flood as $2,000,000,
although the Corps estimated damage at $750,000,

For the years of major floods since that tlme, we note the following
comparison between [orps estimates adjusted to 1950 price levels for the
Lower Cape Fear baslin and unadjusted Weather Bureau astimates (i) for the
much larger Sgutn Atlantic region,

13
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Annual Damage Estimates, &

Corps of Englneers VWeather Bureasu

Yoar {Cape Fear basin)} (South Atlantic region)
1925 1,729,000 6,342,000

1929 1,594,000 10,195,000

1545 9,300,000 _ 1,007,000
Average 1,330,000 1,572,000

The discrepancy |s apparent, ioting thet the Heathar Buresu figures
wars made at current price-levels, the Corps estimates for 1924 and 1323
(obtainad by using thelr stage-damage relation with the messured fiood stages)
are aboutrone-tenth of tha total darna.ge in the Sc;uth Atlantic region. On the
othaer hand, their estimate far 1945 1s about nine times the Ueather Bureau
estimate for the South Atlantic region, which {s obviously unreasonable. Also
the annual damage astimate for the Cape Fear basin |s about three-fourths of
the annual damage estimate for the South Atlantlic region.

It may be polnted out that the Weather Gureau figures should be unblased,
It may also be mentioned that the Soll Conservation Ssrvice sstimated flood
darr.\agas L% less than those given by the Corps (1, App. 111 = 1,2).

In consideratl‘on of the Weatner Buresy estimates, it may be concluded
that the SC$ estimate is of the right order of magnitude. However, In the

following sectlon, the Corps estimates are used far direct comparison.

Frequency of occurrence of amlr gl_lven stage gr discharge of the river

A dotalled analysis of the frequency relatlons used In the report has
been undertalen, since the data are readlly available. The data are obtained
as stage heights and, since the original damage relation is In terms of stage,
frequency relations were calculated for stage heighfs.

Three stream gauges ars located on the Cape Fear River. There is a
recording gauge oparated by tha Geological Sufvey located at LHlAIngton.
Peak flood stagas are measured by this gauge. " Two other gauges, at Fayettevilie

and Elizabethtown (Lock ilo, 2), are non-recording gauges operated by the

14
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Heather Eurea :
. stations ml'y once
u Since dat‘ are ususl |y abtained at thess

dally, the re
cord does not necessarlly include the peak st
age for any flood,

In recent years
'l additional intermediate readings have been tak
a taken during

floods, b
» but even these are not necessarily peals

Sincs thesa two
non«recerding gau
ges are most importan
: t In flood dema
g6

evaluatlon it i ry
[ § hecessa that gOOd consistent peak stage estimates are
] si

made, Ve cannot
he adin bec the t
use inter Bdiﬂtﬂ read - Susa are no a‘lal]ablﬂ

or all f IQOdS. On tha otner nand use the re ulﬂr dail readings Ignolos
1 y YO t! & I

the knowl edge that Pﬂﬂg\ tﬂgﬂ re usual hl gh r. Loglkin over the aval lable
9
5 58 ]Y (-] mng

records. we flnd vary
tha ;! ' g g
t few of the intermediate stage readings exceed the
d!i'r recorded Stﬁgas b ra t foot a these wo |ac i
Y mora han one foo
ations, Thls is

8 reasonable conse
quence of the rather flat flood pealkks that occur B]Olig tha
|Ml c.m Fear R[Vﬂ'a

Therafore. the d
ata us in tha fol low I"Ialy are alnad taklllg
ed [ 4 ll'lg a sis abt b}'
the hish"t recordad dil”y stﬂgC far each fiood and addlng one foot., This
gcnﬁll!lv ¥ ve 3 of the actual flood record
should g‘ e overastimate
.

All floods we
re t ;
abulated over a certain base stage for eacl
V" gauge.

Such & rec
ord Is termed a partial-duration saries

e recar Q ¥ g
ttevil e, Eljzabatht and L in
1 r ds for Fa a vill iizab Wil IH ton ara plotted

on Iguras A l,A . )

. o2 J The
F » A 3 by a standard Geologlcll Sur vey procedure ( }
conespondlng fra ncy f En neers ara llso
] quenc Bstimtgs obtainad hY the COrPS of E QI
ple tted on these i
gures, Thesa fre -
f T f quency curves a
re obtalned f rom the dis

g8 equency curves and the s tage-d i schar |
char =fr r - g8 curves

(1 and 2),- . given by the Corps

i#oting that there
re appears to be some difference between the d
ata and the

frequancy esti
mates
» @ statistical avaluation of the sstimat
85 appears justi-

fied,
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the true frequency distributions for @
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e maka the null hypotiesis, Hg. that toe Corps frequency estimates are
11 floods at the thres gauges. e then

datermine the probability that the actual records could have cccurred under
the null hy"puthesls. 1f this probab'!lity is less than .05, i.e, ons chance

jeet the null nypothesis toat
stimate of the true flood frequency at

in twenty, we shall re the Corps Trequency asti-

mate for a given gauge |s a correct ¢

that ‘gauge.

Two statistical procedures may be used to test the aull hypothesis.

These are the Chl-square goadness of fit test and the Kalmogarov=5mi rnov test

(3}. “calculations are given in Tables A.l, A.2, and A.3 startlng 8t the

one-fear recurrence interval, since this Is toe lowest value for which Corps
frequency estimates are tabulated.

g In differences for the two ‘tests should be noted.

s astimates that @ flood stage of 27.2

One factor resultin

At E1izabethtown, for example, the Corp

fent is equaled ar exceadcd every year; for the record of 0 year dyration, -
tage of 27.2 feat was equaled or exceesd-

there should be 50 floods in which a =

ed, 1n fact, thers were 112 floods of this magn i tude.

The Chi-square test includes tiis difference. On the other hand, the

e number of floods oxpected
r of floods

o lmogoroy=5ml rnov test considers only the relativ

and obsarved over 8 élven stage and thus lgnores the total numbe

being considered. We conciude tnat, whereas tie lolmogaroy=5mirnov test Is

genera"ily considered more powarful than the Chi-square test, In thls case,

o differences in t.-otals, it Is less powerful.
%2 yalue exceeds the

because of th

tn al} three cases, we find that the calculated

rabulated Chi-square value at the .05 probabillty leval that was first assun=

e find, moreover, that in all three cases the

-square valua at the ,001 prob-

ad for tee tejection region.

calculated %2 value exceeds the tabulated ChI

" abillty level,
16
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Table A,l

Stotistical Analysls

Fayetteville
E 0 , T s
Stage Recurrence Exceedances Botiuated Cbssrved (0-F)" Expected Coserved l}"-’il
i . 1 Foet Interval in 73 yrs, [Lvenis Eventa T Sumation Sumatlon
- S S S N R | ' » 1.00 73.0
; \ SO S VO S SSuiae 3 6.6 10 L& w0 100 0
i - N Fion it ot T 40 1,10 66.4
pmmrp s —E — 6.1 17 19.5~ W90 LS07  L003
+ — ' ~_, : 41 1l.21 60.3
TEERETT 5ud 10 39 .B25 S48 0T
R — 42 1.3 54.9
A 4.9 10 5.3 751 655 0%
CEETT 48 43 L.46 50,0
Edg -+ - L9 1 e Jbes 562 W12
BMS R4 i 1,62 45,1
' i ‘ Ky 8.6 1% 6. .619 458 .16
ol - 46 2,00 36-5
¥ ; H 649 & ) 500 L0 AR
- C B 48 2.47 29.6
— 19 5.6 g L0 4B 252 o154
_;..._,. . R DO = 5Q 3,04 24,0
i e 4.7 8 23 329 176 151
52 2,78 19.3
——p 6.7 3 20 L0264 ,03  L161
g 55 5.8 12.6
: ) 6ok 4 o9 A7 075 098
- et 60 11,8 6.2
S-S A S 2.8 2 2 085 037 W08
T FTTTTTTTTETT M 65 2.7 3.4
i . kA 2 .6 047 0019 0028
B R e B = 51,6 [Fes| = <191
el
Chi squara Test
R ™| probability wnder H_ that X 2 Cbd square (13 duf.)
e Probability ¢ .05 025 . R L00L
] Chi squars 22,4 24,1 217 29.8 3.5
e Kolmogorov-Swmirnov Teat
b . S : ‘ Probsbility wder K that [F-S| . 2D (N= 107}
T [ : S S R H Probabllity 05 Le5 L3 +05 001
ooy peos ‘mug | A S D a3 Q63 57 4167 ,189
: i ;
) 2 9 e " g = 17
, ® »
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Table 4,3

Statiztical Analyais

il K i — Lillington
Statistical Analysis
s E 0
Elizabsthtown _ gzgge R;currence Lxeoedances Estimated Observed QD-E!‘e Expl;ct,ed gbss‘ a , =
aterval  in 37 yrs. Events Events E Swamation S eiivzn FE I
E 0 F 8 16
Stage Recurrence Exceedances Estimated Ubaerved .{.D-_Eﬁ SEWB:‘;‘_“} s%seizgg IF—Sl »? 1.00 37.0 .
Feet Intervel in 50 yrs, Events Events ~ E on ' 17 1.16 31.9 51 16 23.3 1,000 1.000 o
18 142 26.0 5.9 ST I 698 264
22 1.0 50,0 : 00 1.000 O '
) 6.1 14 102 1, . 9 .50 20,6 24 ? 2.4 703 W3 269
28 1.14 43 7.9 22 25.2 .78 .875 003 20 2.33 15.8 48 4 .1 557 264, 293
6,0 - . ’ ' ' )
29 .39 36,0 bl 16 Ui - JTED .t‘?'i’B .08 - 4,00 0.2 6.6 4 1,0 427 189 238
) .6 M . =} . .
30 1.69 96 5.6 B 15.8 592 536 056 2 o o 4a3 3 o249 13 ,13%
.08 2.0 - | ) ) ]
i 2 4.9 18 35,0  .480 L02 W08 49 37 am 057 o7
2 » -
=2 2.62 15.1 73 6 10.4 ,382 241 Jl =390 | F-5| = 293
3% 42 1.8 ok 7 L5 .23 S
% 6.8 Tt 20 3 2 18 06 12 Chi square Test
40 1.8 3.4 3.4 1 1.7 . .068 009 059 Pmba::g?gbility under H_ that x* Z Chi sguare (7 d.f.)
: - Fs|_ = .45 v 05 025,00,
¥ = 14t P8 ] €kl square L1 16,0 18.5 20.205 u:?’ !
Kolmogorov-Smirnoy Teat
Frobability und
Chi square Toat grobabili-t,y ¥ under H, that Ig;simx z D025 (N =053) s
4 S e . - 00
Probability under H_ that Iz > Chi square {9 d.1£.) ool 187 203 220 +238 .26%
Probabllity e 025 W01 23' 205 27,9
Chi square - 16,9 19.0 2.7 . . 19
Kolnogorov-Smirnov Tesat
Probability under H  that Lg—S\m?.. %25 & 31112) 005 001
grobability : .,128 . :140 W154 163 o184
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Table i.4
Fayetteville Flood Stages According to Chi-square test, we must therefore raject the null bypothe=
the test tells us that, glven the actual data, there

sis. Put another way,
he Corps frequency estimates for

flunber of gtoris A
v coumilated Fract
ton |s less than one chance im ona thousand that t

Stage
Feet 18609-1922 1923-1961 18899955 o5 Difference.
69 tha three gouges are correct.
68 1 . -0 .007 .007 gous
22, '8003 '%7 002 The results of the ko Iimogarov=5mi rnov test are slightly different. In
. » 007 002
215, '883 407 +003 all three cases, we find that the calculated difference exceeds the tabulated
. 007 ooz
23 ? 883 -021 012 difference at the .05 probability level that was first assumed for the re-
2 : -021 .012
61 009 .021 012 Jection region. For two gauges, Fayetteville and Lillington, the calculated
60 $ 9 .021 .12
gg 2 g% »021 012 difference exceeds the tabulated difference at the .001 probability level.
02 .021 : ~005
gg 'gﬁg 021 <005 for the Ellzabethtown gauge, the calculated difference is between the tabulat-
LN Rezak 005
25 2 '852 021 L 005 ed differences at the .025 and .0} probabllity levels.
4 . .03 L010
gg 1 '8‘;? -832 010 The difference In the two tests at Ellzabethtown is a conseguence of the
2 : -03 .00}
;é 3 'ggg -850 015 difference in number of floods mentioned previcusly. The Kelmogorov-5mimov
3 2 . 050 010
49 1 1 - 056 054 »022 test does not take thls Into account.
L8 5 7 095 071 L0024,
iz 1 ']1'23 . 079 L0529 Regardless, both statistical tests for all three geuges lead us to reject
3 2 : 079 067
ﬁ 4 4 %gg ) 093 L0880 tae nul) hypothesis that the Corps frequency estimates are correct estimates
.7 ’ 121 - 086
23 i % Ra7 129 1138 of flood fraquency.
42 6 4 -302 179 123
ié & 4 '2(532 '207 o147 \'e must tharefore find more reasonable estimates of flood freguency &t
4 1 * 4235 17
3 7 g <440 329 11 the three gauges. e first consider factors thet caused the Corps estimates
5 3 g -200 +350 .150
7 g 7 -32 AL L112 to be so far in error,
36 ¢ 10 -295 JLEL T
;z 7 11 '72‘;‘ 'gii .128 Table Al shows the number of floods occurring at Fayettavllle during
i 1z ek . 110
gg 1 13 'ggg -2900 .a58 the two periods, 1809-1922 and 1923-1951, The Kolmogorov-Smirnov test applied
7 11 . 192 LO61 i
n 10 _la 1'%"6 1-% L043 to these two records separately leads to the conclusion that the probabl ity
T * . .0
otal 16 140 Mased 1 is only .05 that they wars drawn from the same population. Ve know, howsver,
Tears 34 39 that they wers both drawn from the same population, 1.e. the flood record at

What we have shown, therefore, is that thera is & signiflcant

Folisog, 5 m
soporov-Smirnov Test Fayetteville,

Probability under H 1 i .
BN Pyt o thalg;sax. lefeagxsics 2D
D 2153 171 186

difference between the two periods,
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\'s note, also, that uss of tihe later period will result in much larger
damage estimates since over 75% of flood damage at Fayetteville is caused by
floods above a 60 foot stage.

The Corps used a large number of stream gauges to obtain regional fre-
quency estimates, which were used in aobtaining frequency estimates far the
individual gauges, The above mentlioned factor is significant wien it is
remembered that, of all the gauges used in the Cape Fear basin, enly the
gauges at Fayetteville and Elizabethtown have records prior to 1923, Thus,
tie later perlod, with its extreme frequency relations, has been weighted
many times over the earlier periocd,

Another factor that should be considared is the drainage area. Rlggs
(5} noted a tendency for the frequency relation to be Influenced by size of
drainage area. Vhile thls was judged to be not significant by rather stringent
statlstical tests, this does not mean that the factor can Be ignoved, as was

done by the Corps.

Another way In which the Corps' estimates are subject to error stems
from tneir method of analysis. The analysis is based on the assumption that
the logarithms of the discharges are narmally distributed. This Is deflnite-
ly not true in the lower Cape Fear basin, and the resulting calculations are
therefore In error,

The frequency distribution of floods in the lower Cape FeSr basin is
hlghly skewed, The Corps argues (1}, on the basis of experience In the dorth
Atlantlc states, that this is the result of two different distributions super-
imposed on each other, one the result of non=tropical storms, the other the
result of tropical storms. There are, however, too many tropical storms
whicii result in low flood stages in the Cape Fear basin to accept this idea

here. For example, two analyses were made of the Elizabethtown gauge, one
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using the 294 highest stagss. the other using the &7 highest stages. The
rasult of using the smaller nurbar of floods was to lower the frequency estim-

ates, although not significantly. If the larger storms did indeed belong to

a different distribution, the frequency estimates should have increased
slgnificantly.

Revlsed estimates of total nan-agricultural damege ave given in Table
A.5. As mentlioned previously, these values are based on the Corps' stage-
damnnga velations.

The Pearson Type )11 calculation procedure (G} is a standard method of
fitting skewed data to & mathematical curve, 1t was found that this method
gave an excellent fit at low stages but gave low estimates ;ompared to the
record at higher stages. Hence the damage estimates are lowar than those
obtained by the non-mathematical procedures. This fact, together with pre-

vious discussion, points to the strong possibility that an unusual number of

large storms have occurred in recent years and that the accepted estimates

discussed below arc therefore bissed upward.

' The curve labeled ''curve of bast fit! was obtalned simplyas a smooth
curve drawn by eye through the observed. data and esxtended through the 200Q-year
vecurtence Interval to obtain damage estimates, Since tiis curve takes into
account possible accurreﬁce of rare floods, it is here accepted a3s giving
better estimates than the actual record,

Damage estimates for both of the above methods were computed in exactly
the same manner as used by the Corps, using thelr stage-damage relation.

The actual record was alsa used to estimate damage. All floods large
enough to cause damage were considared. This procedure will lead to an estim=-
ate that is too large, since several floodsoccurring in one month do less
actual damage than the same floods at widely scattered Intervals. The Corps'
damage estimates assume separated floods, but in the ectual record there are

many months in which there are two OrF wore floods.
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teile ALS

Total Annval Non-agricultursl Damage, §

Calewlation Procedurs Reach Reach Reach Reach

1 2 7oA 3
Corps of Inglneers 95,700 267,900 532,800 10,100
Pearson Type III 31,700 60,100 80,400 - 6,000
"Curve of best fit" 49,000 97,100 159,000 10,200
Actual Record 37,000 79,500 103,200 13,200 °

Total

906,500
176,200
315,300
230,500

Lecation of flood d&maga reaches 18 shown in Figure A.4.
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Figurs A4
FLOOD OAMAGE REACHES
Lowar Cope Feor River
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P Testimony given in the Digest of Public Hearing (2) by Mr. John D
Darramore. Jr., Executive Vice President of the Fayetteville Arca industrial
evelopmfnt Corporation, gives calculation of total flood damage at §$15,344,579
over‘a 4o year perlod, or an average of $340,512. 0Of this total, $I2.9;3 SLQ
warti of damage resulted from the 190U and 1945 storms, It may also be n;t d
t a
1atltha four storms causing major domage were Included In tils ki year pariod
50 that the average for the 73 year period 18091951 would be ’
" considerably
c The esfnmate of total annual non-agricultural damage along the lower
lape Fear River usiqg the "*curve of best fit" is $3i5,300, While no equiv
. a=-
fnt pTocedure is available for ccmputiné agricultural damage, astimates i
the Joint Report (1) Indicate that it does not exceed 50% of the non-agrlc:l
:ural ?amage. Thus total annual agricultural demage along the lower Cape
ear River 1s estimated at not more than $157,700, and total annual i
estimated at no more than $473,000, e
Sider::T discussion above indicates that the total annual damage may be con-
y less than this estimate. The following points may be mentla
ned;

(1} The stron i
g possibilit
vnusually damaging. y that the recent flood record has been

(2) The ove i
restimate of the Corps of the stage-damage ralatio
(3) The o i "
verestimate of the agricultural damage given above
Consldering ti ‘
g the estimates of the Weather Bureau and the Soil Co
Service, together i e
with other factors
mentioned, it is
quite ilkely th
above estimate (54 i P
$473,000) is 50% high., Total annual flood damage al
ong the

lower Cape Fear R i
Yiver is therciore estimat
ed at tatween 315,000
,000 and $473,000,

and probably less than $439,000.
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APPERDIN [

£OST ALLOCATION

Toe Corps of Engineers i its Comprehensive Repart (2, Appendix 1V,
}5} allocates annual costs for the ilew Hope dam projects since the

pp. 14,
lew lope dam s designed as @ multiple purpose project, the costs must be
allocated to flood control, water quality control and cecreation. The follow-
ing allocation was mada in Dctober, 1931 by the Lorps.
Total financial cost §065,000
Allocations:
Flood control 553,000
ater quality control 75,000
Recreation 227,000
00 for flood

As of February, 1962 the Corps revised the ‘allocation to £551,0

control, $61,000 for water guality contral and §253,000 for recreation. The

aliccation was based malnly on the expected benefits assigned to each purpose,
and has no relaticn to the construction cO5t3 incurred by each purpase.
Apparently, if the flood tenefit is lowered, the flood control allocat-
ton is also lowared and the allocation to one OT more of the other purpeses
is correspondingly increased in order to keep total cost unchanged, Such a

procedure can obviously be used to justify almost anything.
Since the primary purpose for the construction of the Hew Hope dam 1s

flood contral, it seems rational first to consider tie cost of construction
for that purpose alome. According to thacomprehansivekeport {2), te annual

cost of such a project would be §740,000. 1t is felt that this is a more
renlistic estimate of the cost of flood control by the dew Hope dam than s

tne figure of about 4563 ,000,

An additional consideration is the fact that the cost of every squivs-
lent project in the sputheast has been considerably sbove the cost estinated

by the Corps.

26




100

FLOOD CONTROL—NEW HOQPE DAM

Ia conclusion
» we accept an estimate
of annual cost of
of flood control
by

ew | - 1 [
[ lope dam at ? oy y With tn 1t that %] P 1)’
th e Hop 4l $ L0, 004 e COomme t s robab a low

estimate,

ervation Service di 0t compute annual ¢
The Soil Cons t not P val
did ast of Y'Plan 4 in

the Joint Repor
t (l). The total cost ls estimated at sj’-l W00,000 in the
] ]

Joint Report, of wh ] i .
M hich $33,0UD,OU is allocated or leod control Usir g
5 rocedu | < s
sed Y b
P foar estimatin ;
the same re as u b the Corps r t ting annual 0% i
P ) 5 t the annua
cost of flood control by ""Plan 8" Is COlpUted at dpprox] Iately s].suo.oou;
Thi sti te T tgg uo lud fi 1 & + H b 1
nis e mate To an §'' includes ood control far the entire basin,
To male the estima ¢ comparable to 1 for v (]
te C P t "
that for the ilew Ho
pe dam, this cost must
F

be esti wated for the lower CBPB Fear Rivers alone. On the basis of ralatlve

benefit computation t!
t nual flo T P ' alon Ll
5, the an cost o lood control by lan § tol
g the

lower Cape F i i
ear River is estimated at approximately $9%0,000
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APPEMD IR €

WATER SUPPLY

The design of the dew liope dam Includes provision for maintanance of

Jow flow downstream. The statement is made by the Corps (2) that @ minimum

flow of 600 cfs will be maintained at Lillingten at all times, controlled by

the iew llope dam alone {the Randleman and Howard's Mill projects should fur=

ther incresase the minimum Flow). This Improvement in minimum flow should

provide additional water supply downstream 8s well as reducing the pollution

Jevel of the river.

An enalysis was made to determine the effect of such withdrawsls on

recreational value of the reservolr. The analysis was carried out for tha

12 years, 1949-1950, during which time a stream gawge was lncated'on the

Hew Hope River, The folldwing assumptions were mada

(1) Inflow to tha reservoir equals the sum of tha stream flows at the

ow River end the .ew Hope River straam gauges, which are both vl th-

in the resarvolr ares.
{2} A1) outflow is Included in stream flow at the Lillington gauge.

(3} Vater takes \ day to flow from the ilew ilope dam to Lillington.

(4) The storage rale of the raservoir is equal to the amount by which

Flow exceeds 600 cfs at Lillington, proviced the jnflow to the

reservoir is not less than the Lillington encass. Utherwise, the

starage rate equals the inflow.
{5) The discharge rate of the reservair may be controlled to maintain
a flow of 600 cfs at Lillington.

(6} There is maximum availabla storage in the reservoir of 72,000
acre-feat.
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To metch assumptions (3), (&) and {(5), the dam operator at New Hope would

have to lnow exactly what will happen the following day 3t Liilington. Since

this is impossible, in order to maintain minimum flow at Lilllington he would

have to discharge more water than |s estimated here.

pirect rainfall, evaporation and seepage have been ignored. 1t might

be noted that in dry years, the evaporation will exceed the rainfall during

the summer and fall,

During the 12-year period studied,the three driest years were 1331, 1953

and 1954, Table C.] gives the approximate levels and areas of tha reservoir.

Although the level would have been drawn down seriously during the late fall

months, the reductlon through the summer would not have been serious. Since

the summer level would he maintained above 208 feet during all years, it Is

concluded that the effect of water supply on racreation would not be lmportant,

What 1s important about this analysis is that, during these three years,

there would not have been sufficlent starage in the reservoir to maintain

a flow of 600 cfs at Lillington at all times.

The water supply deficits for the three years are as follows:

1951 6100 acre-ft. '
1953 L1600 acre=-ft.
1954 7900 acre-ft.

Remerbering that the total water supply storage planned s 72,000 acre-feet,

the deficit in 1953 is hignly significant. It should aiso be pointed ocut thst,

becausa of the assumptions invalved, these deflcits are consarvatively estimated

As the cities upstream on the Haw River conserve more water for their own

use, it is apparent that even less water whil be available for storage at the

vew Hope dam, Thus, it Is clear that the ilew Hope dam cannot possibly provide

the planned minimum flow without increasing the watar supply storage capaclty.

This would result in Increased cost for the project.
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Table C.1

M

Reneryail Leved, £t Recprvolr Arcad, agresd
Date 1-951 1953 1954 1951 1953 1954
Junc 1 211.5 jeatvd 212 gz00 9400 zt;(éz
[a) . i
Juiy 1 212 212 211 9400 , ':J;;g o
fygust 1 211.5 209.5 209 932?; . it
Soptenber 1 210.5 206.5 20645 500 o0 s
Qetober 1 203.5 203 200.5 54 o oo
dovenber 1 201,5 200 211.5 4700 o oo
December 1 200 200 212 4,300 43

yasimm Jow-flov reulation poal:
Elovation 212 fh.;
Surfnee area Y400 acTeS.

1 pioum low-flod reculation ookt
Flevation 200 .5

Surface area 4,300 seres.
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d An increase af 60,000 acre=ft, In the low-flow regulation pool might be
adecuate far tne specified low flow control, All other storage capaclties
remaining constant, the top of the flood storage pool would be raised about
twa feet, and approximately 2000 acres more would have to be purchased
’Anotner important point Is the depth at wilcii water will be drawn for
low=flow regulation. Present plans {2, Appendix IV = 2) call for invert

elevation of t i
he conduit at 136 feet. S$ince normal pool levels vary b
etween

:DO and 212 feet, and will tc around 212 feet most of the time, water will L
Tawn from deptns of between 30 and 40 feet, Such water will have a very | i
dissolved oxygen conteat, and will also probably nave an above n o
and manganese content. T
This prospect has been discussed in some detail in reports of both the
Public Health Service and the Fish and UWildlife Service (2). Discharged
water will Le unsatisfacyory under the present plan, Provision must :e made

for drawing wa i '
g t 1ous depths, which wou a to the cost of tae
ar from var ¢ 1d add .,

project.
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uExtreme high stages

would have a sorious adverse aff
bility of high flood pools would

shoreline, Possi
egus regard

(p. 5)

wpreliminary
that the probable

would generally render t
Inference may be drawe that cons
must be made before the reservoi

{p. 5)

The latter point is significant i

The possibilities
and industries loca
vhere higher water

ing site locations for some water=

studies

pollution factor withi
he TEServoir unsuitable for s

Ty doubtful that any sit
ished torth Larolina s5tate park
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than that which would ha

might be necessa
treatment Or add
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to protect the new uses,

furnish such trea
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arca should be recognized.
reatjon are created by con-
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Another pai i i
point deals witih the recreational utility of the reservoir, The

' llope sit ! i
e was’chosen deliberately for its flat topography. Small changes

dapth resul i
t in large changes in surface area, Of the normal pool area of

Vv acr
es, 5100 acres would be less than i2 feet deep, 310U acres would be

s ti o f
than O Tect deep, 2200 acres would be less than & feet deep, and 1200
»

es would b
e less than 2 feet deep. ilo recreational develapment would be

sible in
the upper end of the reservoir because the lake would often be too

away == as much as two miles,

The C
arps (2) expects to purchase all land up to the 240 foot elevatio
ion,

s 1 Y'bl ing=
ocking-out'®, Thls makes a total area of 33,000 acres which are

be purchase :
sed. Thus, there would be an area of 22,000 acres surrounding

- lake on which no privat dev would F hermore
hich i ¢ Qo B‘mecnt ul be POSS“J‘C urthe
] »

additional 9000 acres up to the 250 foot elevation would be subject to
woding. On this basis, It Is probable that the cntire recreational develep-
it of the reservoir would be public, .

It may be seen that the very factors that make the ilew Hope site desir-
2 for a flood contro} project == location on & main stream and flat topo-
aphy == make the site undesirable for recreational development. The fact

't most of the Industries In ape Fea L
the C r basin are concentrated on the

+ fLiver above i
the ilew Hope site make the situation even more unsatisfactory

-ausa of the pollution problem,
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Arex, N.G, March 19, 1963.
The Senaic Public Weorks Committee,
Subcommitice on Waler Resourccs, '
Washington, D.C.

Dear Sirs: It is certninly an honor to write to the Senators of the United
States. We hope you can help us with our problem.

We live in the vicinity of the New IIope Iam. Our nhearts are heavy with
burdens of the large daul. We do hope and pray that your comnitiee can help
ns, 4s we need your careful consideration. We live ou o tobuacco farm. Qur
home is at stake. Everything that we have is at siake. It is wonderful to know
that there is someone whio cares, as we feel that your committee does.

sentlemen, why ghould there be any question about which dams will be built.
We believe the small doms wounld serve everyone better and would be an overall
flood control project for the entive basin.

There is no one down ut Fayetteville who will bave to leave their homes anid
everything they have worked for. With all the sincerity in my heart I hope
that justice will be your decigion, Justice for ull the peopie.

In the United States, why do we have to worry and be on edge all the time
about losing our homes? Why ecan't we be hapby like other people? We are
living in the same world as those about us, Why does our lives have to be
shortened by this terrible thing? We are very discouraged and would appreciafe
anything that your committee can do for us. My family, husband, mother, father,
brothers, sisters, friends and nelghbors are very upset and heartbroken about
the building of the large New Hope Dam. Our land is very good tobaccoland,
timberiand, g:\rdenlﬂnd—fmit trees and apything can be grown on this valuable
land.

Why can't we live in a world where all people have the same rights? Why
should n decislon have to be made on the small or large dam when the small
damns are just us effective as the large one and no one would have to leave home
and their living? Qurt homes are all we have got.

e feel that you folks will stand up for justice and build the small dnms.

We appreciate your careful consideration for all the people whe lo0k to you
as the leaders of the United States.

Your friends in Jesus,
Mr. and Mrs, Huen STONE.-

RAND DALE FARM,
Randleman, N.O., March 25, 1963,

Hon, H, D, COOLEY,

Honge Agriculiure Commitice,
Tongorih House Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

Dear CONXGRESAMAN CooLEY : The enclosed petitions with signatures that rep-
resent 800 to 1,000 people in the Randleman area will convey to you and the
chunnittee, the extent of opposition that is building up against the construction
of a high dam at Randleman.

We hergwith express our sincere appreciation for your efforts against con-
struction of these high dams. and at the same time glving you our full support
for 4 more vigorous stand against the construction of any of the three proposed
high dams.

If at anyiime there is anything that we cau do to assist you, please do not
hesitate in letting me know.

Respectively,
Riciiakp EABLE JOHNSOF.
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We, the undersigned property owners in 1!113 Randleman-Sophia-Level Cross. Lindsay Adams, Route 1, Randleman, NG
Cedar Sguare-New Market areas of Randtrlph g.mmt_v, oppose the const_rnctinn of Mary Alice Adams, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
a high dam at Itandleman, N.C., und we likewise oppose the construction of any . I Davis, Route 1, Randlewman, X0

R. & Davis, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

other bigh dams which will affect the more than 6,000 acres in our vicinity. This
1lbert I. Davis, Route 1, Randleman, X.C.

area, which would be largely inundated and otherwise aflected, would virtually
destroy the dairy, poultry, and grain industries in northern Randolph Courity.

Dated, this 22d day of March 1963,

J. & White, Route 1, High Point, N.C,

Richard Earl Johnson, Route 1, Randieman, N.G.
Mrs. Earl ¥. Johnson, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Seth L. Spillman, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Joe Tom Robbins, Sophia, N.G.

J. T. Robhins, Jr., Sophia, N.C.

Don T. Wall, Sophia, N.C.

Mrs. Pearl Hayes, Solpla, N.C.

Mrs. Metta Iale, Sophia, N.C.

AL W, Farlow, Sophia, N.C.

Howard Rich, Sophla, N.C.

(. M. Small, Sophla, N.C.

C. L. Coggins, Sophia, N.C.

Joe L. Wall, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Mrs. Lois Kennedy, Box 29, Sohpia, N.C.

Mrs, Marshall Farlow, Box 36, Sophia, N.C.

¢, C. Small, Route 1, Sophis, N.C.

1v. C. Coltrans, Route 1, Sophla, N.C.

D. L. $heffield, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Henry Crotts, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Mr. and Mrs. Berry Self, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Mr. nond Mrs, Ropald Self, Route 1, Sophbia, N.C.
Mr. and Mrs. Glen Hunt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Eula 8. Coggins. Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

J. W. Cogzins Estate, Route 1, Sophia, N.C,

Ray Hunt, Route 1, Randteman, N.C.

Mr. and Mrs. George I'enn Lamb, Route 1, Randleman, X.C.

Mr. and Mrs. Roland Walter, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Mr. and Mrs. J. L. Short, Route 1, Ttandleman, N.C.
Mr. and Mrs. Grant Vail, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Mr. and Mrs. F. O. Pope, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
A . Lassiter, Route 1, Randieman, N.C.
John Hunt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Cora Hunt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
e and Mrs. J. A. Short, Randleman, N.C.
Mr. and Mrs. Willie Neal Coltrams, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Clara Adams Spiliman, Sophia, N.C.
R, B. Brown, Route 2, Randleman, N.C.
gadie V. Brown, Route 2, Randleman, N.C.
Richard Greenan, Route 2, Randleman, nN.C.
David R, Davis, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Edward Q. Davis, Route I, Randleman, N.C.
Fred Staley, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Ellen Beeson, oute 1, Randleman, N.C.
Ben K. Cox, R.F.D,, Randleman, N.C.
Franklin P, Cox, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Willis M. Cox, Route 1, Rapdleman, N.C.
Max Welborn, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Tulet Dixon, Route 1, Randieman, N.C.
¢ I.. Dixon, Route 3. High Polnt, N.C.
). 8. Davis, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
James R. Snead, 3108 Wayne Street, High 1’eint. N.C.
James H, Whitesell, 401 Liberty Road, High Toint, N.C.
Willizin C. Paschal, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Wesley J. I’'aschal, Archdale, N.C,
T. M. Cox, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
James R. Swiggett, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
G. Vance Steed, Route 1. Randleman, N.C.
Dilhert . Hinshaw, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
e FT e Theata 3 Wandleman, N O

D. Cleo Steed, Route 3, [ligh Point, N.C.
Wizabeth Steed, Route 3, High Point, IV
Floyd Steed, Ronte 3, High DPoiut, N.C.
Jesse C. Davis, Route 3, High Point, N.C.
Jess Lawrence, ltoute 3, High Peint, N.C.
X, 5. Eiwards.
Robert B. Edwards, Route 3, Iigh Point, N.C.
Jay 8. Hahn, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
I1. Harold Beeson, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Robert 8. Davis, Route 1, Randieman, N.C.
Robert S. Cashatt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Clifford 1lughes, Route 1. Randleman, N.C.
Melvin Hughes, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Toris . Cashalt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
ush Lamarr, Sophia, N.C.
Ray Hoilingsworth, Route 2, Randleman, N.C.
Daniel . Bulla, Sophia. N.C.
. G. Wall, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Mrs. Tassie J. Bulla, Sophia, N.C.
Arthur Brown, Route 1, Sophia, N.C,
Cleo Swaim, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
IImner B. Trogdon, Route 3, High Point, N.C.
Juanita Rich, Sophia, N.C.
TRufus Idavis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Iassel Hollingsworth, Sophia, N.C.
Hollie Beeson, Reute I, Sophia, N.C.
Bobby Lamarr, Sophia, N.C. -
Ira Swaim, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Howard M. Yonng, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Laura Young, Houte 1. Sophia, N.C.
L. W. Hollingsworth, Route 2, Randleman, N.C.
Tictty M. Ridge, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
IZonalid Self, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
I*atricia Self, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.
Tlossie C. Bristow, Sophia, N.C.
Tawcille T, TYickett, Sophia, N.C.
Azel Millekan, Sophia, N.C,
(olbert Beeson, Sophia, N.C.
I. R. Hollingsworth, Sophia, N.C.
Dave Davis, Saphia, N.C.
Inez Davis, Sophia, N.C,
Doun Elder, Sophia, N.C.
T.eola Green, Sophia, N.C.
Mrs. JJ. Hartley, Sophia, N.C.
Thelma Adams, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Lacy V. Adams, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Charles Frazier, Route 1, Rundleman, N.C.
. T, Frazee, Randleman. N.C.
Clande Sartin, Route I, Raudleman, N.C,
Everett L. Caughsou, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Mr. and Mrs, J. R, Highfill, Houte 1, Randleman, N.C.
A. F. Ilanuner, Route 1. Randleman, N.C.
T. A, Hodgin, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
B. I'. Webster, Route 1. Randleman, N.C.
C. B. Highfill, Roule 1, Randleman. NX.C.
Gerry C, Hodgin, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Harvey Adawms, Route 1, Raudleman, N.C.
J. G Hedgin, Retite 1, Randleman, K.C.
ALr. and Mrs. Ray M. Hyatt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Mrs. Aunie Jolinson, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

Anustin 1. Davis, Route 8, 11igh Peint, N.C.
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Mrs. Betty Iivatt, Route &, Greensboro, N.C.
Mr. Joe Hyatt, Route 8, Greenshoro, N.C.
George Stanton, Route 1, Randlewan, N.C.
Wwinnie Stanton, Route 1, Randieman, N.C.
1. I’. Whitesell, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
A. L. Crotts, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Herschel N, Hockett, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Emmett C. Spencer, Route 1, Box 014, Randleman, N.C.
Fxie Sartin, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

L. 7. Clodfelter, Route 1, Randieman, N.C.
Colon Farlow, Sophia, N.C.
willie 8. Hockett, Route I, Randleman, N.C.
Elwood 5. Hockett, itoule 1, Randleman, N.C.
Janice F. Iockett, Route 1. Randleman, N.C.

II. Needham Hockett, Roufe 1, Randleman, N.C.
Marie L. Hockett, Route 1, Handleman, NG
W. E. Farlow, Route 1, Box 1G4, Randlemnan, x.C.
B. J. Lawrence, Box 166, Randleman, N.C.

Tiny W. Mofitt, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

1. J. Small, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

George T. Cox, Roule 1. Randleman, N.C.

Steve Chappell, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
George Dallrel, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Willie Lee Hoover, Route 1, Rmullefxmn, N.G,
M. L. Small, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

Clyde Small, Route 1. Randleinan, N.C.

Guy Small, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

Ersie W. Small, Route 1, Rundleman, N.C.

W. . 8mall, Route 1, Randieman, N.C.

Walter L. ITunt, Route 1. Randieman, N.C.
Mabel Odom, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

Bitty Matthews, Route 1, Randlemar, N.C.

¢, J. Iarris, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

'aul B. Gray. Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

Clair Presnell, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.
Mattie Bussen, Route 1, andleman, ¥.C.

w. Howard Toonem, Jr., Route 3, Tandleman, N.C.
~. . 8peen, Jr., Route 1, Randleman, N.C. .
. 8. Hodgin, Route 1, Box 81, Randleman, I\G
Kenneth and Emily agh, ftoute 1, Sophia, N.C.
J. W. Tamey, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Mrs. Roy C. Pearce, oute 1, Sophia, N.C.

Jim Davis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Hessie N. Davis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

David M. Davis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Farlowe Davis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Fay T. Davis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

[. D. Robbins, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Alma B. Robbins, Route 1, sophin, N.C.

Irene R. Browder, Route 1, Sophia, K.C.

1V, 1. Robbins, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Marie F. obbins, Route 1, sSophia, N.C.

Fred Brenda, Itoute 1, “ophia, N.C.

vera A. Davis, Route 1, Ramlleman, N.C.

Gwen Davis, Houte 1, Randiemnan, N.C.

Mryrtle D. Hollingsworth, Route 2. Randleman, N.C.
I. A, Davis, Route 1, Sophia, N.C.

Ruford Holland, Route 1. Sopbin, N.C.

Phillip Hill, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

willie G. IIam, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

¢t C. Stubs, Jr., Route 1, Randieman, N.C.
Jean IH. Johnson, Route 1, Randleman, N.C.

Mr.CooLey. With that, I will just ask if there is anybody else here
nt and, if so, I would like for

who wants permission to file a stateme
them to indicate that.
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Senator JorpaN. We will file this statement at this place in the
record.
(‘The statement referred to s as follows:)
Arex, N.C,
March 14, 1963.

Fertile New Hope Valley is rather funny—wonderful flelds, magnificent trees,
nourishing frults, berries, nuts, milk, and honey-—a heaven for man and animals.
When I prepare to take my mule cut to plow tomorrow, if I don't eat breakfast
before daylight, a hen will lay me an egg before breakfast.

The proponents of the New Hope Dam say that basically we are all Americans
and the few must yleld to the many. I agree when logic is kept in the correct
perspective. Muost schoolchildren would say, naturally, let's build a big dam
and go boating.  Scarcely a child would say no.

The U.8. Government i3 as much concerned for 150 dlsplaced families as for
several thousand families in normal life.

I plead for dams in the Cape Fear River Basin that will benefit a1l and not
eject families from their homes.

My Government has always been gzood to me.

Long live the United States.

Long live New Hope Valley.

DernNIs N. BUNKER.

Arrx N.C.

I’'m a resident of New Hope Valley.

The DEngineers have recommended one large dam. The Soll Conservation
Service have recommended 232 small dams. Erch is designed to accomplish the
same purpoese—ilood control, water conservation, and recreation,

Big dams inundate vast areas of our best land and provide only a temporary
structure with a life expectancy of 50 years, at best only 100,

Big dams are inhospitable to wildlife because of siltation which chokes out
spawning beds and destroys aquatic vegetation of variable sghorelines,

Little dams wouldn’t take our homes and greater benefits would be realized
throughout the entire basin, including irrigation, industrial, and municipal uses,
low flow regulation, fish, wildlife, as well as recreation. Another feature of
small dams is that the land on which they are built 1s generally owned by two
or ihree persens. If you want to get permission o use the lake you only have
to go over and knock on your neighbor's door,

Through the Soil Conservation distriets, the science of sell and water
conservation is being brought to the farmer's frontgate, and the gate won't be
locked, for the farmer will know he is n part of something he has helped
initiate.

The population in the United States inereased over 2 million last year, which
means we also should have conservation of soil. Congress should revise legis-
lation effecting river basin development under Soil Conservation practices.
If the Government can finance electric power facilities in river basin develop-
ment, it should be able to finance conservation features. If the Government
can pay for land for big dams, it should be able to pay for land fer little dams.
Congress ought to remove these obstacles,

If the 232 small dams are built, benefits would be realized throughout the
entire basin. We would have fiood control, conservation of soil, conservation
of water resources, conservation of forests, and conservation of human values.

Please build small dams throughout the basin. Small dams would help all
of us and we could keep our homes. I would be glad to give land for small
dams. Not muech flooding since 1945 as some of the farmers have built farm
ponds.

Mzs. . N. BUNKEE.

Mr. Coorey. We will file those statements, and with the chairman’s
permission we will file those other statements as early as circum-
stances will permit.

Senator Jorpan. Thank you very much. We will be glad to hear
any of your witnesses who want to be lieard at this time.

Mr. Scott, we are delighted to have you, as the Congressman pointed
out.
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o Mri._ Scott is a son of the former distinguished Senator from North
Saro %na., former member of this Commitiee, former Governor, and
one of our -dlstmgl_ushed citizens, and we are delighted to have him
before us this morning,

STATEMENT OF ROBERT W. SCOTT, MASTER, NORTH CAROLINA
STATE GRANGE

M. Scorr. As Congressman C'ooley said, T will file, with your per-
mission, a formal statement later which will set out in detail and in
essence, perhaps in more detail than what we stated in the conunittee
hearing yesterday before the House.

I just would like to make a couple of brief points at this time, how-

ever, on the position of the grange. I winted to be clear that of the

two plans now under consideration known as plan A and plan B, the

grange definitely favors the one submitted by 1 i
ran; : : sul v the Soil Conservation
:I(;ld v :)(-fet(}n R}'mt.,l B, {Jeéause it }Jest. ]hts the policy of the State grange
: he National Grange, for that matter, ¢ i ‘1ver basi
et pment, ae, natter, concerning river basin

Tt should be clearly understood that we believe that the system of
.l';)m:[.ll and intermediate reservoirs must be constructed throughout the
asin in order to develop fully the total soil and water resources of

the basin, and we strongly urge that thisbe done.

I would like to say we have no quarrel as to what ageney or wlho
handles this program. We believe, too, once these small and inter-
mediate reservoirs are constructed that there would be no real eco-
nomic justification for the construction of the single large rescr(voir at
New Hope Dam site. Of course this, I think, would require some
economie studies, but that is our belief at time time.

1 appreciate the opportunity of i ' i

\ ate t v of making this brief statement :

we will file a formal statement later, with your permissio. et und
(The statement referred toisas follows:)

TugE NoRTH CAROLINA BTATE GRANGE,

" ‘
Hon. B. EvERETT JOIDAS, Grecnshorn, N.C., March 29, 1963.

New Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEak SENATOR JORDAN: Attached is the statew i
. N : b E , gtatewent which I told your com-
ml‘f\t'??hﬂ;%t the grange would ﬁl(la regarding the Cape Fear River Busni pl‘O[.'.'I'ﬂllll
. ur permission we would like thig to be mad ord, '
A, ade a part of the record.
Ropert W, SCOTT,

Enclosure. Master.

STATEMENT FILED BY THE NOXTH CAROLINA STATE GRANGE

In previous hearings held by congressional committees regarding

of 'Eh.e Cape lf‘ear River Basin, the North Carolina Stote ggmndge Eil;]:vsﬁ)t[:n]i‘eil:;
p?smon ns being oppused to the construction of a single large reservoir, known ag
New Hope Dam, ¢n the Ilaw River in North Carolina. Instead, the g’range BUI;-
ported the plan suggested by the Beil Congervation Service which called for the
construetlop of 232 small and intermediate wize reservoirs throughout the basin
This pomt‘ion was tnken on the basis that it was 2 choice of either a largé

ﬂﬂ;[l‘lhol' n series of stlinnll and intermediate dams. ' )

e grange position is based on the following statement voti
de}ggntes of our organization at its 1061 ntmu%.l cmrnteui‘.iogdi(::];;!{()loll)llier tlt\]TeC‘ oting
. 'If“he Stu&c'_s:ru‘ngc recomends the adoption of plan B of the jolni: n;:pn')rt of
T [ L e Wil Cemearveniion &ervies for flood control on the
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Cape Fear River. This provides for construction of 2 geries of tributary structures
which wil offer more benefits over a wider ared and equal flood control below
afoncure than n single dam on Haw River at the mouth of New Hope Creel.”

This posltion was reaffirmed by the delegates at the 1962 grange convention in
Kinston, N.C., ns follows:

W recommend continueil efforts of support the development of the Cape Fear
River Basin by the swall dam method as was presented by the Spil Conservation
dervice. Support of legislation proposing that the sinall dam plan be enacted is
also recomimendled,”

Thus, Lhe grange position remains that we favor the construction of the small
and intermediate dams instead of n single large dam.

In recent weeks, o new proposal pas been made that the tweo plans be com-
bined to the effect that the single large dam would be supplemented by the small
dams throughout the bayin,

1f this proposal is adopted, we favor {he construction flrst of the gmall-and
intermediate dams supgested by the Soll Conservation Service. When this i
done, the enlire river busin will receive flood control benefits as well a8 the
henefits of soil conservation, widely dispersed supplles of industrial and munici-
pal water, irrigation water, and many additional recreational arens.

Further, the grange helieves that once the small and intermediate reservoirs
are built, there would be no economic justification for the construction of the
single large daum, gince flood conirol would have already been provided by the
other plan.

By the same token, if the large dam is constructed first, the economic justifi-
eation for building the gmall dams would, in our opimion, be largely removed.
We would be greatly concerned that the small dams would peveT be built onee
the large dam was constructed.

Hven Iif the Congress, in its wisdom, declared its intent to build the small
dams later, the grange would question whether such would be a wise expendl-
ture of public funds; that is, providing for two major flood control projects in
a single river basin.

Senator Jordan of North Carolina is to be commended for his efforts to seek
a solution to the problem. His proposal to combine the two plans would pro-
vide for the small dams throughout the river basin which the grange has
advocated.

But we raise the question of the wisdom of implementing both plans from
the economic standpoint when we are firmly convinced that the small dam

* plan will meet the total needs of river basin development. The construction of

the small dams will do everything, and more, than the large dam.

Wwe would like to see the Congress enact legislation which would permit the
construction of the spall and intermediate dams. We do not care which agency
of Government has ihe responsibility of implementing the plan. We do think
that this program shouid be provided for in ihis session of Copgress so that

progress can begin right away.
We feel that construction of the large dam should be delayed until the small
dams are completed and then lake another look at the needs of the basin to

determine if the large dam is necessary.

We will conclude by stuting that the grange continues to strongly endorse the
construction of the small and intermediate dams and we will rontinue to oppose
construction of the large dan untll we see enacted into law provisions to imple-

ment the small dam plan.

Senator Jorpan. Thank youvery much.

Mr. Cooley, would one week be ample time for all your statements
to be provided ¢

Mr. CooLeY. Yes, sir, we will have the statements in 1 week.

Qenator Jorpan. Thank you.

Robert has land on Haw River and he lives on it and I have been
plagued with some of the floods on Haw River, and I know a great
deal about that problem there.

Mr. Cooley, did you have any other witnesses that you want to pre
sent ?

Mr, Coorry. No, sir.

Qenator Jornan. Colonel Marshall, if you will come back up te
the stand
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Mr., Coorey. Mr. Chairman, 1 would like permission for these wit-
pesses who will file statements to include i these stalements some
recommendations and communications which they have received 1n
connection with the problem.

Senator Jounan. Oh, yes, certainly, that will be lperfectly all right.
Colonel Marshall, will you come up to the stand, please, sir, an
think we can proceed with some of the questions that might be asked

at this time of the Corps of lingineers.

STATEMENT OF COL. ROBERT C. MARSHALL—Resumed

Senator Joroax. Colonel Marshall, there is a question that I would
like to ask you, and I think possibly you can answer, which s a ques-
tion that iz asked by a great many people, and particularly those
people who will be affected by water—that is, people who will lose
their homes due to water being backed up over their land and farms
and homes, and the same thing applies to cliurehes and schools, and 50
forth, In the area there scems to be somne confusion about this.

Will you please tell this group, and for the record, just what Fro—
cedure the Army follows, the Corps of Engineers, in moving these
people, paying for their property ot whatever procedure you go
through ¢ _

Colonel Marsuar, Mr. Chairman, yesterday in my testimony I
indicated, and I regret T didn't distinguish betweern 110 people an
110 fumilies—I think there, as a father of eight children, 1 can male
such a distinguishment. 1t is 110 families, according to the joint
report, who would be displaced by this construction.

Other testimony presented to the House committee yesterday indi-
cated 150 families.

In any event, the pumbers are not significant. The Corps of Kngi-
neers is fully aware of the digplucement problems. We find they are
necessary, but certainly regrettable. 1t is the policy of the corps to
attempt to fully compensate in acordance with the law for the loss of
property. . .

If this project 18 authorized during the preconstruction planning
phase, a real estate design memorandum will be prepared which will
indicate in detail what taking of land will be required.

When this detailed study and analysis has been made, a public
meeting will be held to fully inform interested residents of the recom-
mendations of this study.

Residents will be informed whether their land will be taken or not.
Subsequently, appralsers will attempt to determine the value of the
Jand and the just compensation therefor. Individual owners will be
contacted and owners will be apprised of the value assigned to their
property. These appraisals are made by competent Government or
non-Grovernment appraisers.

Should the property owner disngree with the fair market value
established by this appraisal, action may be taken by the individual
owner. He may appeal through the courts for a different finding.
Up to 90 percent of the fair market value of the property will be made
available to the individual property OWRers during this period of
contention.
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Perhaps to make that more clear, we will deposit with the court
sufficient funds which the court may release to the owners for those
cases, in those cases, where the lawsuit is involved.

In addition to the fair market value prices for the property, dislo-
cation costs of up to 25 percent of the fair market value can be
provided lo the owners. '

1111 the case of community properties, comparable arrangements are
made.

1t is our policy in determining what property should be taken to
use sound real estate practices, to minimize severances, to attempt to
take whole properties, not parts of properties, to negotiate to the best
of our ability, and with, we hope, goo will, to arrive at an equitable
agreed-upon arrangement with the individual or community OwWners.

Senator JorpaN. Colonel, in the case of a church that is located in
the affected area, what is the corps’ poliey in regard to a church or
a schoolhouse?

Colonel MarsuaLL. In the case of o municipally owned or govern-
mentally owned facility, they would be generally reconstructed 1n a
new location, if they hiad to be taken. '

’ Seénator Jorpan. And you would pay for the site of the new loca-
jon

Colonel MARsIIALL, Yes, SIT. And comparably with churches or
other necessary essential features we provide equal facilities. I can-
not be more specifie, sir. I don’t pretend to be a real estate expert,
but this is to the best of our knowledge.

Senator Jorpax. But it is the policy of the Corps of Engineers to
puy all resulting damages for people who are displaced in moving,
relocating, or anything that causes them to suffer losses. It is the po%—
icy of the corpsto reimburse them fully and adequately and if they are
not satisfied with the appraisal by whoever the Army picks out, they
do have access to the courts, to o jury in their own county to be heard
in cases like that?

Clolonel MarsHALL. That is correct, gir.

Senator Jorpaw. Colonel, there is one other thing which 1 think
would be of interest. It would be to me, I am sure, and to some of
the other people here. Now, the New Hope Dam is ready for con-
struction; in fact, as you know, money has already been anthorized
tostart construction—I mean appropriated—if we can get the authori-
%‘tm“é What is the staius of the Howards Mill and the Randleman

ams? :

Colonel MARSITALL. Hownrds Mill and Randleman would require
additional surveys. In order to produce a study of the New Hope
type, we estimate it would take approximately 18 months from the
{ime moueys are made available to come up with & comparable survey
report for Randleman and Howards Mill,

Senator Jorpan. Now, there is another question that T would like to
have answered, and Lam certain a good many other people would also.
Ts it possible or is it feasible to build the Randleman Dam and the
Howards Mill Dam withoul building the New Hope Dam?

Clolonel MansriatL. It is feasible; yes, sir.

Senator JorpaN. But under the existin » Jaw, is it possible to get the
cost-benefit that would, you think, pass tﬁe House or the Senate?
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Colonel Marsuart, Yes, sir.  The benefit-cost ratio for Howards
Mill and Randleman would exceed the normal 1.0 to 1 parity benefit-
cost ratio. We have not studied Randleman and Howards Mill as a
separate inerement, so I cannot report at this time as to what the pre-
cise benefit-cost ratio would be.

It is our view, however, based on our studies of the basin to date,
that they would have a favorable benefit-cost ratio. :

Senator Joroan. If T understand your report correctly, that is based
on the building of the New ITope Dam.

I believe you said that 80 percent of the flood control would be con-
trolled by the New Hope Dam, only 20 percent would be controlled by
the Howards Mill and the Randleman Dam. So these two would not
meet the necessary criteria to solve the problem by themselves.

Colonel MarsuaLL, They would not be anywhere near as effective
as the New Hope project. They would not reduce the stages at Fay-
etteville to the same extent.

If you built Randleman and Howards Mill without New Iope,
flood stage reduction at Fayetteville is something like 214 feet com-
pared to flood stage reduction of 934 feet with New Hope by itself.

They don’t provide, they would not provide the same low flow aug-
mentation. We say 600 cubic feet per second could be guaranteed by
New Hope during low flow periods, critically low flow periods, where-
as Randleman and Howards Mill would only produce 200 cubic feet
per second.

But while their benefits then would be reduced, so their costs equally
are somewhat less, The total cost according to preliminary figures
of Randleman and Howards Mill is something in the order of $8 mil-
lion as compared to the $2514 million for New Hope.

So while the benefits o down, so do the costs, and consequently the
benefit-cost ratio, we feel, would be favorable.

Senator Jorpaw. But you couldn’t get the low stream flow guarantee
vear in and year out nor could you get the complete flood protection
as envisioned by the three. In other words, they would supplement
the New ITope Idam to bring about the fulfillment

Colonel MagsirarLr. The three projects are certainly more effective,
than just one or two as an alternative. Certainly all three working
in conjunction would produce o more effective prevention of flood
damages. The amount of flood control storage, as an example in
New Hope, is 541,000 acre-feet. The amount. of flood control storage
that would be available, according to preliminary estimates, is only
184,000 acre-feet for Randleman and Howards Mill. They have one-
third the amount of flood control storage, they have much less stage
reduction at Fayetteville from floods.

They cost about one-third as much.

While these are preliminary firures that you cannot, isolate benefits
and costs, benefits go down, so do the costs.

Senator Joroan, Thaunk you very much.

Does anyone wish to usk the colonel any questions?

Colonel, T appreciate it very much. T believe that would answer all
the questions 1 Lad, and there seems no one else who wants to ask any.

Mr. Brown, would you come up, please, sit?

Mr. Brown, we are glad to have you back. There may be some

anewt tane thaf coime of the witnecsoe wanld Tilen ta acle T halipve Ar
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and about 2 years to develop the study and come up with a recom-
mendation as to the small dams in this area ?

STATEMENT OF CARIL B. BROWN—Resumed

Mr. BrowN, Yes, sir; that is correct. That is what the Department
of Agriculture would need, approximately, to do its part of carrying
out a joint investigation. -
. Senator Jordun, T'o make o thorough study of this, a joint study, or
Just an independent study ?

_Mr. Browy, We would recommend a joint study under the provi-
sions of Public Law 87-639. We believe this joint study should be
carried out to review, Mr. Chairman, the needs and justification for
the program of upstream development along with Howards Mill and
Randleman. Tf a further study is to be earried out, as Colone] Mar-
shall indicated, which would take 18 months he stated, with respect to
those two reservoirs, we believe that should be combined with a study
of the upstream development to determine the total needs. .

There is no question but what the developments of the upstreamn
watershed program would have an impact on and that those two
reservoirs would be closely related to what was justified in the way
of smaller dam development.

Senator Jorban. In other words, we are 2 years away from starting
anything if we don’t go ahead to the proposed plan ‘for New Hope
and it would be possible to start the New Hope if it got the authoriza-
tion and at the same time start a survey to complete the basin as indi-
cated by the SCS and the Army Corps of Engineers?

Mr. Browr, From our standpoint we would be able to move into
action on a joint survey very soon after funds were made available
for that purpose, yes, sir.

Senator Joxnpan. Thank you very much,

Does anyone wish to ask Mr. Brown a question ?

I appreciate very much your being with us, and Mr. Dailey, one of
our good citizens from North Carolina. We are mighty glad to have
all these witnesses who came up hero to testify today.

As indicated awhile ago, those statements that anybody wants to
make or wants to have included in the record, if they get it in to the
Committee on Public Works of the Senate durine next week, it will
be included in the record. ° ’ '

I appreciate very much again your being here. This concludes

our hearing.

(Whereupon, at 12:10 p.m., the ¢ i : jec
call g Ereupotl, 3 p-m., the committee recessed, subject to the

(Additional statements received are us follows :)

Hon, B. EVERETT JORDAN, Asetono, N.C, March 13, 1963.

Sc{riam Oﬂ‘r‘,ci: Building, Washington, D.07.
Aayer John G. Bunch and Commissioner Russell O Walk

L s s 3 er will represer

Li@,\ of Ashel.mro at Chairmaan Charles A. Buckley’s House Publice WorIks ;ill)fzotlills
Ru.ttee hearing on Thnrsda.}'. They will submit & resolution passed by the
(‘;l;':hg‘m B(I:;l_rd nI;{Cmnmisﬂmners in favor of plan A of the Corps of Engi.neerﬁ
) enr Hiver Basin plan, A copy of this resolution wi ¥
You for your information and congideration, will be forwarded to

T L
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B. EVERETT JORDAR, Li.uiveroN, N.C., Mareh 13, 1963, .

U.iﬁ'). Scuc\rfr, Washington, 1.0,
Diaw Mr. Jornan ; We wholehear ros 3 Y
Will }"{,El Please express our \191:1Kt:lttlfénl-‘10;‘:£].:{ljll(: ‘Ll)lﬁat‘\t'}" H”‘lm Dl_llll project.
s He ¢ committeas?
J. AL Sexter, Mayor.
I"uED SEXTON,
AT Wi,
LAy JONNBON,
HouERT REDFERN,
o Frapk LEwIs,
Lillington, N.C., Commirsioncrs.

Crry o [LANDLEMAN,

Hon. B. Bverert JORDAN, Randicman, N.C., April 4, 1962,

U.8. Benate, Washington, D.C.

DEAR SIR: ring :
o ;l'jf;ﬁ();tf.c;ilra\‘_.fln,. 415; A eopy of a resolutlon which was presenled and
ador . wting of the conueil of the eity of Rundlem: (
e 1065, 3 wlleman, held Tuesday,
Clord gh;-r-rm Jo ALLmEn,
' . Clerk, City of Randleman, N.C
Rlit:er\?:tlljlmlt; 1Inoved the ndoplion ot the following resolution :
i« k]m,‘n; .m-; [?h]?.i;cl (:rf :lllﬂcfmou of l]}v L:ir_\' of Ramdlensnn is fawmiliar with what
N an i} fl‘(‘. Corps of Engineers which proposes a three-da o
ol tion connectlon with the proposed flood control project vove he. Eun-
e‘ur e e project vovering the Caje
Viereas it is the opininm of the
n . : . . 1e buard of aldermen of the ¢ity »
vﬂtt't“:\?a[t];?u Lnrtmn as plan A of .t he Corps of Engineers is‘:li‘u ‘l'nrvtlt'{;i'lmliunntn
Whereas itc?-:‘tll-:'l ;11}(1.rnnsvr\'nlmu in the area nnder consideration ln:lltlll ¢
t pi:ﬁl kA willl e opinion of ﬂll’,"-h(nlrll of aldermen of the ity of I{ulm]leul 11
that plan & '[ul-omnte greater industrind development in Hu;. Iiedmont 'II‘;“l
e ]m::;lhizn‘(ld];'r:tnnte lgrentvl' recreation and tourist tacilitios -H‘\v;l‘ll
d x ] EL a i ) o - . ' . 1T £ T
its provide « aply for the area arowul the ¢ity of Randleman: Tie
Itesolved, That the board
, { § of aldermen of lhe ¢ity
e : of e ¢ity of Randlewar { %
fo);sﬁrea::lngéxpp‘ct)rts the preliminary proposed pinn A of the Cnrlmn (]:fhlf‘.:lefli?; “']'
for, Rnndlc::ll:ll(flon ?f three dans 'tu e located at New Hope. I'Im\-:ul'(l;'ﬁq BQI("ilh
il Tandic ftl:rthg: ‘tl;]ﬂlttc['-l cg{:lser\';lttllon and flood control on the Cape Foal: Ri\!ex"
Basin, | t at ¢ py of this resaluti -] i
mt]e;'estmlsltn said prelininary plan and proposnl o be made avajlable fo barties
James Steed seconded the motion, a o being
e e oL, m, and npon being put to a vote the wotion

Senator B. EvERTT JORDAN, Ravtetr, N.C, March L, 1963.

Senate Office Building,
Wuashington, 1.0

C()Iu.:l]tr:' '1‘\';111:';3‘ (')f. Fhef.re.snlutiun seng tul you by the mayors’ association of Wale
mntro.l ol fl(s 11;1 favor of the ﬂpnm-mlos of water resources developnent and
o the:ﬁ .in th); ;qx:_l“;l:f, g[:lp:: }'lcntr gnd Neuxe River projects and wonhd likc to
: H e that Congress will approve 3 r
pletion of both the Cape Fear and Xeuse River prnject.i.l ve and speed fhe com-
) L KarL G. ITunsox. Jr
President, Rateigh Chamber of Campieree, Hrrh‘irﬂr-‘l\' (N

City or RaLkicny, N.C,

ITon. 3. KVERETT JORDAN, Mareh 12, 1963,

Washington, D.C.

DEAR S : ‘he

Asam-il:ltii:?t:.'()%\;1{};2%(1):::(1"0;?;1 fsncopyof o rc-_snlutinn adapted Ly the Mayors'

A o ¥ g monthly meeting last night, Marele 11, at the

ﬁ.,‘TIaP‘.c,l\i‘f‘;i.f'?.:?nl;f??i-u‘:iDn is in line with our telephone conversation. DBut, as I
' n ran an the phione, we did not take a stand as to the n;l\';m-
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tages of the go-called Big Dam nrainst many smaller ones, We o not feel quali-

fied to express an opinion on this issue, but our main purpose was to try to show
thot we are in no way opposing the development of the Cape Fear.

1 o hope the resolution meets with your approvnl and will end the ruwnors
that there ix opposition to the Cape Fear due to a belief that it will hinder the

progress of the Neuse, Ou the contrary, we realize that there ig no conflict he-

tween these fwo projects. . .
Incidently, the mentbership of the Mayors' Ausovintion of Wake County consists

nf the mayors and mayor pro tems of Apex, Cary, Faguay Springs, Garner,
Kuightilale, Alorrisvilie, Raleigh, Ttolesville, Wake Forest, Wendell, and Zebulon.
Again thauking you for your telephone call and letter of 1the Sth instant and with
liighest regards and best wishes, I am,
Sincerely,

1. G, EnLoE, Hayor.

Enclosure.
RESOLUTION OF THE AfAvORs' ABSOCIATION OF WAKE COUNTY

vhiereas, the citizens of Wake County’s cities and towns are greatly jnterested
jn the prompt and proper development of water resources iu both the Cape Fear
and the Neuse River Dasins, and

Whereas Waoke lles primarily in the Neuse River Basin, thus making the U.8-
Tngineers’ projects for the Neuse of vital concern to our citizens; nevertheless
plans for the Cupe Fear, which will also benefit Wake, are of interest although
1+  lesser degree than the Neuse; and

wWhereas there shonld he no conflict or competitinn between the Cape Fear and
the Nelse projects, and none are recognized at this time: Now, therefore, be it

Resotved by the Mayors Asgociation of Wake County, That during the present
hegrings on the Cape Tenr development we feel we should make our pusition clear
to the House and Genate comniittees that we heartily favor the principles of watet
TESUUTCCS develapment atsl controt ns set forth in the Cape Fear and Neuse River
projects and express no objection to approval of developuent for the Cape Fear;
and be it further

Resolved, That we also express to the committee out carnest hope that this
Congress will approve and speed the completion of both the Cape Fear and

the Neuse River projecis as are necessary and proper.
Tir Mavous' ABBOCIATIOR OF WaKE COUNTY,

By Bex Hveock, Pregident.

——

RESOLUTION

Wherenas the board of commissioners of the town of Asheboro wish to insure
an adequate supply of water for domestic and industrial use in a growing cow-
munity, and .

Wherens the long-range planning recommendation of eur engineers favor 8
water supply source to the north, particularly Deep River which runs through
the city of Randleman, and

Whereas plan A of the Army Corps of Engineers for the Cape Fear River
Pasin proposcs construction of & dam and reservoir on the Deep River at Randle-
man, and

Wheteas the town of Asheboro would have water rights reserved for use by the
municipality thus {nsuring us of an adequate supply of water for many years tor
come - Now, therefore, be it

Resolved Uy the Board of Commissioncrs of the Town of Asheboro, That (1)
the I'ublic Works Committee of the House of TRepresentatives and the Senate of
thie United States be requested to ive favorable congiderntion to plan A of the
Corps of Engineers Cape Fear River Basio plan, (2) the Congress of the United
States be requested to act Tavorably on plan A of the Corps of Engineers Cape
Tear River Basln plan; (3) approval by Congress of plan A would benefit the
town of Asheboro by providing the municipality with an adequate suppHy of water
to meet our future needs.

Tassed unaninwonsly thlx 12th day of Mareh 1963,

Altest:
Joux C. Buxcu, Mayor.

CrarLes . HUGHES, Town Clurk.
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Crty oF THOMABYILLE,
Thomasville, N.C., April 19, 1962.
IIon. B. EvERETT JORDAN,
/.8, Senator,
Senate Office Building, Washinglon, D.C.

DEAR SIR: Enclosed is a resolution passed by the city conneil of the city of
Thomasville at their cegular moeeting of April 16, 1962, concerning water couscr-
vation and flood control in the Cape Tear River Bosin. The resphution 18 self-
explanatory and indicates the sincere interest that the city eoyneil has in this
matter.

Your consideration of this resolution will be very much appreciated.

Very truly yourd,
Evan NORTON,
City Manager
Enclosure.

To: Hon. Sauwt Jf. Ervin, Jr., and Ifon. B. Feerclt Jordan, 1.8, Senators; Hon.
4. Paul Kitchin and Hon. Hareld D. Cooley, U.S. Congressmci;

At n regular meeting of the eity couneil of the ity of Thomasville on the 16th
day of April 1962, 7 :30 p.n., the two proposals concerning the water conservation
and flood control in the Cape Fear River Basin was discussed by the councll:

The city council, after much thought and discussion of the matter, i of the
opinion that while the city of Thomasvilie and if® residents would not be directly
affected by the plan Known a8 plan A of the Corps of Engineers, which proposes
the construction of three dams, we feel that the city and its citizens, as well as
the other cities and towns in the Piedinont, would be indirectly nffected by the
plan. We certainly think that plan A would <o the most good and beneflt not
only for the ared directly affected put alse the entire Iiedmont section of
North Carolina.

It is our sincere opinion that spid plan would promote greater industrial de-
velopment in the gtate of North Carolinn and the Tiedmont area and provile
increased recreation, tourist trade and fishing facilities as well as provide a
possible water supply for a large area gqurrounding the proposed dam wites.

1t is alse the opinion of the conneil that the snidl proposed plan A of the Corps
of Fngineers would Lest serve the projected necds of the gurrounding areas af-
fected by the proposed dams and ingure to their benefit in the overall, long-range
contemplated planning of this area; Deit therefore

Resolved, That the city council of the city of Thomasville hereb¥ endorses
and supports the preliminary proposed plan A of the Corps of Engineers for
the eonstruction of three dams to be locuted at New Hope, Randleman, unl
TIowards Mill for water conservation and fined contrul on the Cape Fear River
Basin, and furtber that a copy of this resplution be made available to all parties
interested in said preliminary propwsal plan; that a copy of this vesclution be
forwarded to the two 1.8, Senators from ~orth Carolina, Hon. gam J. Brvin
Jr., and B. Everett Jordan, and also to Hon A. Iaul Kitehin and Hon. Harold
D. Cooley, Congressmen from the Bighth and Fourth Dstricts of xorth Carolina.

The above resulution was unanimously adopted on motion of Mr, Wilson,
seconded by Mr., Johnson.

This the 16¢h day of Aypril, 1962,

Gronece L. HURDLEY, Muyor.
va Jones, City Clerk.
NoweTii CAROLINA,
Davideon County:

I, Eva Jones, vity clerk of the city of Thomasville, do hereby certify that the
foregoing resolution is a true and correct copy of i resolution coneerning the
water conservation and flood control in the Cape Fear Rtiver Basin which was
duly passed by the city council of the city of Thomasville at a regvlar meeting
held on the 16th day of April 1962, and which appears in the minute hook of the
spid city council of the city of Thomasville.

This the 19th day of April 1062,

Eva Jones, City Clerk.

e e e e
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LEs CounTty, N.C.,
Banford, March 20, 1962,
Hon. I3, EYERETT JORDAN,
7.8, Scnate,
Wuashington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR JORDBAN : Knclosed please find certified copy of resolution with
respect to resoryoir projects in the Cape Fear River Basin, which was passed
Ly the Board of County Commissioners of Lee County on the 24 day of
January 1962,

Yours truly,
KENNETH R, TI0YLE,
Clerk.

12nclosure.

TREsoLUTION YWITII RESPECT TO TIE ProrosEDd RESERVOIR I"'ROJECTS 1IN THE CAFPE
FEAR RIVER BaASIN

Wherens the 1.8, Army Engineers have filed a rTeport of their findings and
recommendations for the develapment and conservation of water resmirees in
the Cape Fear River Basin; and

Whereas the report proposes o reservoir project at the New Mope site on
ibe Ilaw River; anil

Whereas the Board of County Commissioners of Lee County favor the con-
struction of said dam a8 being in the public interest ; Now therefore, be it

Resolved by the Rourd of County Commissioners of Lee County ai follows:
That they urge amud recommend that the New Hope project on the ITaw River
pe authorized for construction by the Federal Governwent in the interest of
flond control, water-qualily control, and recreation.

CERTIFICATE

The foregoitify resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners
of the County of lec at o meeting on the 2d duy of January 1062, and appears
in the minuies of said board.
Witness wy hand and official seal, this the 20th day of March 1962,
Kenxeril . IIoYLE,
Clerk, Board of Crommigsioncrs, connty of Lec.

wake CouNty BOARD OF (‘oM MIBLONERSE,
Raleigh, N.C., AMay 21, 1962.

Hon. B, KVERETT Jounan,
Senute Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR JORDAN : I appreciate your gending me & copy of your statement
bhefore the gubeommittee on T*ublic Works Appropriations on May 15, 1962
1 appreciate sincerely the work you are doing anid the support you are giving
to the Cape Fear River project and your suppoct of the large daw as the vital
part of this prograo. e hope that the proposed dam at New Ilope in the cape
Fear River Basin ean sooll pecome @ reality and I'm sure it will be with your
continued effort anil sapport.

The people in this territory with whom we are acquainted are certainly back
of you in this proposal.

Respectfully yours,
Bex W. Haleir,
Chairmtan.
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CounTy oF MOORE, N.G,
Carthage, N.C., January G, 1962,
sENATOR B. EVERETT JORPAN
Washington, D.C.

Dear SExaton Jowpaw: We, the county comuiisgioners of Moore County,
woild like to Fo on record ag being in favor of the plans being made for the dam
at Howard's Mill in Moore County.

Yours truly.
1. B. REYNOLDS,
Chairman, Moore County Commissioners.

RESOLUTION DPASSED AT SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TanNpoLril County DBoawp OF
CoMMISEIONERS, MARCIT 12, 1963

That whereas. Randolph County will be affected by the Cape Fear River flond
enntrol projects; and

Wherens, there presently appears to he two separate and distinet plans for con-
trol of floodwaters of the Cape Fear Basin, und afler an {nvegtigation into the
matter it appears to the Randolph County Board of Commissioncrs that it
would be for the best interest of all of the people of Randelph County that the
Corps of Engineers’ plans for three latge dams loeated in Chatham, Moore, and
Jtandolph Counties would be preferable to the plan for buiiding a series of
«mall dams in the arca and would better {it the peeds of the people of Randolph
County and surrounding areas; and

Whereas it appears that the building of a large dam ot Randlewan, N.C.,
would supply a vital need for controlling the floodwaters of Deep River that have
in the past causcd serious damage to the area in Randolph County and would,
in addition thereto, provide a large and adequate waler supply for industrial and
recreational purposes in the area ; and

Whereas. it appears to said poard that the securing of land, the condemning
of property, and the eosts involved in building the hundreds of small dams
ueeded in the small dam plan would be jmpracticsl, if not impossible, woulkidl
place an unduoe hardship on the people in the ared, and would not be for the
best interest of the people of Randolph County and the adjoining areas. Now,
therefore, by unanimous ‘

Regolution, The Randelph County Board of Commissioners do hereby
endorse and recommend the Corps of Tingineers’ plans for large dams in regard
to Cape Fear flood control projects, and oppose the plan for buiiding a series
of small dams throughout the areua.

The above is hereby certified to be a true and correet copy of a resoclution
duly passed and recorded in the minntes of the Randolph County Board of Com-
misisoners, specinl meeting, March 12, 1963.

ARNNIE SHAW,
Clerk of the Rundolph County Bourd of Commisgioncrs.

Kiwanis CLub oF GAPE FEAR,
Fuayetieville, N.C., March I8, 1562,
Hon. B. EVERETT JORDAT,
Senate Office Builiding,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR JORDAN: The members of the Kiwanis Club of Cape Fear, 52
in number, are vitally interested in the fulfillment of the plan for harnessing the
Cape Fear River, a8 proposed by the U.4. Corps of Engineers, with three basic
reservoirs provided by dmns af New ILope, loward's Mill, and Randleman.

Trom all appearances, Cougressmnn IIurold Cooley, in endorsing the extremely
preliminary proposal submitted by the Soll cumservation Berviee, I8 congidering
the welfare of less than 500 people oyer that of over 3 million,

We ate at n complete loss to understand this apparent disregard for an obviouy
solution to a problem so important to the economy of the 18 counties comprising
the watershed for the Cape Fear River.

We stand ready to tend our assistance and support to this most worthwhile
cuuse if you will but advise us where our efforts might be of the most value.

Yours most sincerely,
Mernirt . 1IARRISON,
Secrclary.
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PiTrepone COaMBER oF COMMERCE, - °

Pittgboro, N.C., September 1,1961. -
Hon. B. IvERETT JORDAN, ‘ .
Senate Qffice Building, Washington, D.C.

DeAR SeNATOR JorpANW : Ina peoll taken recently among members of this chamber
of conunerce, the resuit shows that the members are 4 to 1 in favor of the
bullding of the large dam on IIaw River in eastern Chatbam County. We ap-
jreciate your support of this project and we hope you wili do everything you
can to initiate and expedite the work. - :

We thank you very much for the able job of repregentation you are doing
and you have our best wishes. .

Sincerely yours,
GEoRGE T. VINCENT,
Secrelory.

RANDLEMAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE :

: Randleman, N.C., April 4,1062.

Hon. B. EVERETT JORDAN, . . ' -
U.8. Senate, Woshington, D.d.

Dmak MER. JORDAN' The City Council of the ity of Randleman adopted a
resolgtion "approving the plan of the Corps of Engineers known as plan A
which covers the construction of & geries of dams at Randleman, New Hope
und Howards Mill.

1n the interest of flood control on the lower Cape Fear, and in partlcular
water conservation in the upper Areas, our group wholeheartedly endorses the
petion taken by our ity council and urge you to use your efforts 1n behalf of
the people you represent to obtaln approval of this plan.

Yours very truly,

~

RoperT H. ALLRFD,

Sreeg Orry, N.C., March 13, 1963.
Sonator EVERETT JORDAN,
New Senate Office Building, Washington, D.O.:
Tweo hundred acres my 1and be flooded New Hope Dam, but urging this project
be approved. Dost Ohatham residents for Eugineers recommendation.
: R. GLeNN HANCOCE,
Hancocx Lumeer Co.,
Bonlee, N.O.

] Ricomonp Va., February 24, 1963.
In re proposed New Iope Dam, Chatham County, N.C.
Hon. EVERETT JORDAN,
U.8. Senate, Washington, D.C.

gz I am a native of Chatham County, N.C., and have numerous relatives
regiding in Chatham and Lee Counties. I own 184 acres of land along the
western side of Haw River, being a part of my grandfather’s farm which, ipei-
dentally, my family settled on in the year 1730, coming there with a great many
of our nelghbors from Pennsylvania, mostly Quakers. My mather dled when I
was o small boy so I wns sent to Texas to be raised by my uncle; who, like a
great many other Confederate veterans had found it advisable to migrate after
Appomattox.

The Government built & floed control dam in northeast Texas, just a few years
ago In an aren that had never developed and I visited there last summer and it
1g difficult for one to belleve what he sees. Recreation centers had been built
at abandoned towns and the whole area seems pProgsperous and “golng places,”
I visited the Kerr Lnke ot Clarkeville, Va., this week and the area there has
experienced the same thing.

There is ne argument that the dam ig needed for flood control in the Cape
Fear, but the changes it would make on the local area would be remarkable for
recreational us well as for industrial development.

I have tallted to my relatives, Thomas, Harringtens, Dalrymple, and Scotts in
Chuatham and Lee and have found them to be unanimously in favor of the dam.
They advise me that the people in Williains Township are divided in their
opinivn in the matter, but the lenders from that section have been able to influence
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Congressman Cooley, oT vice versa. We cannot understand why Congressman
Cooley is 5o adamant in his objection to the project.

I would like to improve 1y property and bring my fnomily back to North Caro-
lina te live, and am financially able to do so, but my wife and children will not
cooperate with me because they claim that Chatham County bas gone to seed,
etc., and there is nothing there for them to do, which is true. The proposed lake
would change all that.

I appreciate your efforts in the past in thig matter and look forward to you
and your great associates to win for this project and not have it thwarted by
the ill-advised prejudices of just onc man.
‘ Sincerely yours, :

EpWARD ¥, GUNTEB.

siLer Crry, N.G,
March 13, 1963.

Yenntor DVERETT JORDAN,
New House Office Building, Washington, D.C.:
Strongly request approval of New IIope Dam In Chatham County. Our
Chatham people want this project. :
Hawgocr Poorrny Co.,
B. M. HANCOCK,
Bear Oreck, N.O.

Moxcuse, N.C., dpril 10, 1962,
Mayor BUTLER,
ity of Fayetteville,
Fayetteville, N.C.

Deag Sir: Through a mutual friepd I understand that you, along with
others, are preparing to meet with our misguided Representative, the Honoralbe
Harold D. Cooley, in a public forum debate with regard to the proposed New
Iope Dam. Mr. Cooley seems to be trying to put across to the public that
Chatham County does not want the dam. This, in my oplnion, is not the true
picture as he is representing a small minority group which is not indicative of
the county as a whole. I believe that if the question were to be put to o vote
that the total county would be a least 75 percent for it, -

I am speaking as a would-be displaced person. My farm and home, and
the same of my father and mother, would be covered by waler or isolated it
the dam is buiit. We feel that we would get paid for property used and that
the remaining part would greatly lncrease in value. I am in a position to know
that property values have already increased in anticipation of this project.

This is something that will affect thousands for years to come and we cannot
understand why Mr. Cooley would try te block such a measure that means so
much to so many. We believe this measure will go through with or without
Mr. Cooley’s support but we wish he could “see the light” then it would be
a sure thing.

Trusting that the necessary congressional support will be fortheoming and
that we can have the big dam, I am, :

Yours very truly,
CHARLES 8. POE.

—— s

MoNcURE PROMOTION AL ORGANIZATION,
‘ Muncure N.C., April 10, 1962.
Mayor BUTLER,
Afayor of the City of Fayetteville,
Fayeiteville, N.C.

DEAR Mayor BUTLER: We appreciate very much the work your city is doing
jn behalf of the New Hope Dam project. We would like to go on record as
favoring this project as we feel that it is a big and important thing for cur
county and State and especially for our immediate township (New River) which
we feel is 973 percent for the dam.

We think our Representative, IIomn. Harold D. Cooley, is selling the county
short in this matter as he is representing a small minority group and has not
pothered to find out just how many in the county as a whole are cager for
the big dam.

Wo are in a position to know thnt with the exeeption of area to be covered
by water and the politleians of the county that there are no other proups in the
prvinty 1t dn not fvor thia project. We enu understand the oppasition of the
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would-be displaced persons, but we cannot understand why it would be blocked
by Mr. Cooley or our local peliticiana.
Trusting that the forum to be held next Sunday will help rather than deter
the project, we remain,
. Yours very truly,

Q. M, CoverT,
President.

. 8§, CRUTCHFIELD.
Recretary.

PrrTenoro, N.C., March 5, 19G2.
Senator B. VERETT JORDAN, '
Senator From North Caroline,
Washington, D.C.

Dean Senator: First, I fully support the corps’ proposal for a large dam at
New Hope. I feel that it will be an asset to Chatham County. 1 am a native
of Chatham County and feel the need for something that will benefit us, or in
the future our children. o

1 hope the project will be accepted and fipally the dam will be built.

. Secondly, I am asking for a book, if possible, on forest pests of both diseases
and insects, or information on where to get literature on the same.
, Thank you very much, You have my support.
Yours truly,
(areroLr, E. BUBNETTE.

Prrrssoro, N.C., March 8, 1962,
Senator B. EVERETT JORDANW
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DeaR SExATOR; We thank you for your work in behalf of the Haw River Dam
which will bring great wealth to the citizens of Chatham County. It is my
opinion that three-fourths of the citizens areln favor of this dam.

With best wishes,

Yours sincercly,
Tiomas A, THOMPSOK.

Mowcrusge MoTor Co., INc,
Moncure, N.C., April 9, 1962,

MavoR BUTLER
Mayear of the City of Fayetlcville,

Fayettevills, N.C.

Dear Sin: I live in Chatham County about 2 miles from the proposed New
Hope Dam project. Our town ig located in the township of IIaw River which
wonld be the loeation of the dam. To my knowledge I do not know of anyone
1n this towuship that does not favor the project.

Mr. Ceoley would have the public believe that Chatham County does not want
the dam, but this 1s not true. He is representing a small minority group com-
posed of the individuals wheo would be displaced by the water. He has enlisted
{he support of our eounty officials which is sowething a lot of ws can't under-
stand.

. T know that the weould-be displaced citizens bave 2 legitimate right to fight
the meusure, but in this group it ig not 100 percent. In our township there are
three families that would be floodedl from their homes, but the three of them
are favoring the dam. They feel that they will be pald for the property used,
and that what is left will have an increased value. I do know that property
volues have already increased around here in anticipation of this project which
we believe will still go through, .

Thanking you and your city for the fight you are waging on this matter that
£0 vitally concerns us all, I remain,

Yours very truly,
N T, SaM CRUTCHFIELD.
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" afoncuns Moron Co,, INc.,

. Moncure; N.C., Felruary 19, 1962,
Henator B. EVERETT JORDAN, ’ .
Washington, D.C.

Dear SENATOR: I would like to be placed on your mailing list to recelve any
pcrt_inent.informéltion relative to the New Ilope Dam 1':}'oject.

Our town is locuted immediately below the damsite and the people In Haw
River Township are 1 believe unanimous for the passage of the bill favoring
the big dam. )

Please do all you can for this projeet as we helieve it would boost the economy
of Chutham County more than anylhing that might happen to our area.

Yours very truly,
T. 54M_ORUTCIIFIELD.

DurIAM, N.C., Februery 19, 1963,
Senator D. EVERETT JORDAN, ‘
Washington, D.O. )
Re Cape Fear River project heartily concur with Sena_tor Jordan that
Corps of Engineers high dam is only way to get immediate action on Cape Fear

and obtain recreation size jake in research triangle area. Triangle arca badly-

needs large lake for recreation as ex-Tennessee Valley people know. ‘High dam
and lake would bring considerable recreation money into this area in addition
to flood control advantnges. . .
CueM StuaNp RESEARCH CENTER, Ine.

Tig STANDARD SuprLY Co., INo,
Raleigh, N.C., Mareh 18, 1963,
Senator B. EVERETT JORDAN,
Scnate Office Building,
Washington, 1.C. _

PDeasr SENATOR JoRDAN: I 0m writing in behalf of this corporation, its officers,
directars, and stockholders, to express OuUr approval of the New Hope Dan

ajact as proposed b the Army Engineers.
pr(')Jur corrﬁ)ml::ion hn}.:; 78 ncres of land in Chatham Coun}y 1p ithe New HI-Iope'
Valley, with a tolraccd allotment of 16.4 acres. 1f the take line is at the 245-foot
contour, it appears that we will lose approximntely 280 acres, or almost exactly

half of the property. ,
Gnielow:ver, wepstr?mgly favor the “big dam concept” 8§ get forth by the Engi-
neers for the following reasons: )

(1) We believe that economically our remaining land will be much more .va}ua-
ble than the entire acreage is at present, since we contemplate developing it into
large estate type lots which will be extremely desirable and valuable due to
their proximity to the lake, Certainly, as many as 15_0 of these type lots could
be developed from the remaining 392 ncres, with valuations {for Chathp.m County
tax PuUrposes) probably running into millions, after the homes are built, As we
understamd it, we would he allowed to move our allotments to other farns, so

agriculturally nothing would be lost.
thif%)lg\rv(é further feel thi;xt the dam is much needed‘for fload contro_l and for
sewerage control in the entire basin, to the great benefit of a large portion of the
population of North Carolina. L. .

(3) Also, of course, water conservation is now not only a loeal or statewide:
problem, hut is rapidly assuming great national [m‘d even world s_si;_miﬁcnnce.

(4) The expenditure of 5250 million, in this relatively poor sectl?n of the State,
ghonld have 4 Yery heneficial influence on the economy of tl?e- entire region.

(3) The boating, fishing, and other recreational opportunities afforded by this
lake will uo doubt be tremendous.

Thank y¥ou for your attention in this matter, and I hope You can come t_.o atr
early conclugion. lveryone ig becoming tired and frustrated with the geemingly
interminable delays.

lially yours, .
Cordially ¥o Joun A. WiLLIaMy, Jr., Pregident.
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C. Wiin PowELL INSURANCE AGENCY,

Ghapel Hill, N.C., January 25, 1962,
Senator B. BVERETT JOUDAN,

Senate Office Building,
Washington, DO,

 Dear SENaTog Jorpan: I am enclosing a resolution from Chaper rIill-Carr-
bore Merchants Association-Chamber of Comimerce supporting the New Hope
Dam. I hope to obtain ene also from the Chapel Hill Beard of Aldermen.
_Algo, I am in contact with the aniversity and Dr. Henry Jordan in Cedar Falls.
Warm regards. .
C. WaIp PoweLL, JT.
IEnclosure.
RESOLUTION

From: Chapel Hill-Carrboro Merchants Associntion-Chamber of Commerce.
To: U.8. Corps of Iingineers, Washington, D.C.
Wherens we realize the need for New Hope-Moncure Dam on the Cape Fear
River Basin beenuse of the followling :
1. Need for flood control.
2 WNeed for recreation which the New Hope permanent pool would provide.
3. Wildlife reserves.
4, Water conservation,
4. An amount of soil conservation.

We therefore request that the Corps of Engineers proceed to copstruct the
Moncure-New Hope Dam.

Wo further request that the U.8. Corps of Engineers determine If & need exists
for intermediate dams that eannot be constructed under the provisions of Public
Law 566 (Soil Conservation Department small dam law)} and that actlon be
taken to construet such dams where the need exists,

And further that the soll conservation service be requested to put into opera-
tion Public Law 566, projects when initiated by local interests, for their recom-
mendation for 212 small dnws in the Cape Fear River Basin.

_ Resolved by the Chapel Iill-Carrboro Merchants Associatlon and Chamber
of Commerce this Oth day of January 1962. :
' ' S1ow D. JENNINGS,
Presidend.
Jane WHITEFIELD,
Secretary.

Q. M. CoveeT TruckINg Co,,

Moncure, N.C., Maerch 2, 1563,
Hon. B. EVERETT JORDAN,

U.5. Senator from North Ceroling.

DeAr Sir: Under separate cover I am mailing you pictures of the flood
September 1945, tuken from Haw River bridge on U.8, Highway No. 1, three-
quarters of a mile helow proposed damsite. Ioping they will be of assistance
to you in regard to the 110-foot dam.

The penple in Chatham County below the damsite are with you 100 percent.

Very truly yours,

Or18 M. CovERT.

CrrAareL HirL, N.C,, Ociaber 1, 1262,
Senator EVERETT JORDAN,

U.8, 8cnate, Washington, D.C,

DEar SENATOR JouuaN: Your fine actions regarding the New Hope Dam are
gincerely appreciated by myself, my family, and by more than 90 percent of the
people I have talked to lately.

It would appear that.the propoments of the high dam are quiet, but the op-
ponents are making o lot of noise.

I sincerely belleve that most of the folks in Chatham County favor the high
dam but are not outspoken since they do not wish to be discourtecus to the
folks that will be inundated.
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Qnce the d;xm is a faet, most of them will forget the arguments—»—much like
Buggs Island Luke on the Carolina-Virginia line. .
Again, on behalf of a Tamily of about a6 and a voting Tamily of about 14, I wish
to thank you for your efforts toward the ostablishment of a high dam.
Thank you,
STANLEY PBELE, Attorney at Law.
Er.oEw Moror Co.,
Riter Oity, §.C,, Sepiember 19, 1962.

TIon. ILaroLD D. COOLET,
Houge of Lcpresentatived, Washington, D.C.

DrARr Six: I have been Tolowing the progress of the proposed big dam on t_he
upper Cape Tear River to be lorated in our county and I certainly wish to enlist
your support for the big dam. .

One of the grealest assets to any scction of the country 18 a large supply of
fresh raw water and with the close proximity of the industrial triangle and also
the cities of Raleigh, Durham, Burlington, Chapel Hill to this apparently almost
unlimited supply of water it s certuinly o shame to allow this most yaluable
asset to flow into the ocean.

Therc is noe way of telling how much this greal basin of water would be
worth to Iiedmont, N.C.

1 have digeussed similar projects with residents in other areas and i{hey
advised that projects of this kind have been the greatest gingle developmend
that have ever bencfited their respective areds In addition the majority of the
people in this section are 100 perceut for the big dam.

Please allow me to request your 100 pereent gupport for thig water storage,
flool countrol, and great recreation possibilities for our country and Piedont
North Carolina.

Yours very truly,
IIARLAND H. ELnER.

MONGURE, N.C., 4f arch G, 1963,

Dear SenaToR: 1 have read with pleasure your remarks te the Bepafe on the
Cape lear Ttiver Basin, and I wish to congratulate you for Lringing this
matter to life again.

As I am a citizen of Chatham County, N.C., and a Jandowner on the west side
of Huw Uiver where the proposed damsite is supposed to be located, T would
like to offer a suggestion or tWo.

As you are well aware there has becn a lot of opposition to the building
of a high dam at the mouth of Wew Hope Creck because it would cover 50 much
valuable land and 1 think thlg is one Teason the work or report hos been held
up for so loDg. For the past several yeals 1 have had various delegations vigit
my farm and ask a lot of questions a3 to damages to Crops apd soil erosion
and as to size of dam, ete. Now in regard to how I stand on this matter: I
want to make it very elear that I awm 100 percent for this project of duam which
ought to bave been built 5O years ago. I have seen floods 80O pad on or in Haw
River just below the proposed Jamsite carry away freshly planted crops of
corn and wheat and washing soil away as deep us the 1and had been broken or
plowed,

1 would like to say T am 100 percent in favor of a big high dam as & simall dam
will nut do the job, of course they might do some good but will not do the whole
job.

I am speaking from experience from what I have scch and experienced
from a small dam of Cape Fear TPower Plant belonging to Carolina Power

& Light Co., of Raleigh. N.C. Sinece this dam was built in 1908 and later
repaired and raised higher, and at the present time they are repairing this
game dam, and ever since this dam was firsl built every time there comes o flood
in the Haw and Deep Rivers, it has eqused the floodwaters to spread over
more land and does not stop the crosion of the soil. Small dams will not do
the job and would be o waste of money to build small dams on either Ilaw or
Deep River. 1t is true f high dam at New ITope on 1Iaw River would cover
a 1ot of land and too it would make one of the finest lakes and furaish more
water than 100 smull dams geattered up and dowl {he river which would, in the
long run, cause mMore flooding than cver.

e

e ———
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I trus;'t you will take time to read {his letter and if T can furnish you with
further information I will gladly do go. I mm not looking for a job, I am now in
my 82d year and I trast I may live to pee the dam built and if it is built I shall
name it “the Jordan Dam,”

T wish to remain, '

Yours very truly,
Q. C. Pog,
Ex Register Deeds, Chatham County.

[From the Raleigh News and Observer, Mar. 13, 1562]

The proposal by Senator J ordan to add small dams upstream from the much-
needed New IHope Dam in the development of the Cape Fear River Basin offers
an excellent opportunity fora compromise of divergent views.

Moreover, the proposal is sound from the stondpoint of overall developirent of
the river basin,

Necessary now, however, is immediate action on the entire program. Devel-
opwnent of the Cape Fear River Busin has been too long delayed by petty opposition
g(': ‘Elhe Corps of Eugineers plan, a plap recommended after many long years of

udy.

1t s time to got on with the jhof developing the basin so that the {ull potential
of thiy greut reglon can be realized.

{From Wington-Salem Journal, Jan. 28, 19631
OBSTRUCTION 0N THE CAPE FEam

Representative IIarold Cooley’s request for an indefinite deiay in House Public
Worka Committee hearings on the proposed New Hope Dam looks suspiciously
1C1ke the ohstructionary moves he made in this matter during the last session ot

ONETESY,

Mr. Cooley has opposed the Army Corps of Engineers proposal to build & large
dam at New Iope since it was first advocated. He hag advanced an alternative
proposal, said to be feasible by the Soil Conservation Service, which calls for 23:
amallc.r dirt dams on tributary streams. But since an elaborate small-dam con
servation program of this sort, as Senator Jordan has pointed out, would requir
many years to complete and would net be adequate, both the State's Senators A
all the eastern North Carolina RRepresentatives except Mr. Cooley have givel
strong support to the New Iope project. His principal reason for fighting 1
apparently is that waters from the proposed dam would inundate some valuabl
f:x%u]and i{lhone county (Chatham) inhis district. '

.m'ing ¢ past session of Congress the House committee made the h
avmlub@e for the New Hope Dam, but Mr. Cooley blocked final autﬁorizatﬁ?i
the project on the ground that ne action should be taken before a public hearin
wns‘held. At the time he said be would favor a public hearing early in thi
session of Congress. Now he contends that he needs more information from th
Sml' Conservation Service and refers te o report by Prof. Kdward H. Wise
of State College which shows, he says, that focdwaters in the basin could &
controlled by as few a3 seven dams.

. No one, of course, can object to a congressional commitlee baving the fulle:
information m:mlable before approving 4 program of this scope. But since bot
the Army Engnpeers and the Soil Conservation Bervice bhave made studies of b
Cape Tear Basin there seems to be no reason why this information should not t
ggél]lgﬂr)lléawatonnhearlg hf}ftring. Is lt:xhe presentation of such data all Mr. Coole
, or hag he thrown in t ! i
soeks Do O elay action? e State College professor's report to dive

There probably is o need for a greater measure of cooperation betw
Army Engineers and the Soil Consgervation Service in ﬂcodpcontrol. Th?ﬁ;rg
dams constricted by the Army Engineers are definitely needed for flood contr
and reserve water supply purposes. The smaller dams and other conservatis
methods of the Soil Conservation Service are also needed in many areas. So t
two programs sh_ould complement rather than replace each other. Dut :
adamant Qbstruchonary attitude on Mr. Cooley’s part could postpone indefinite
the Cape Fear Basin's chance to get the benefits of either program.
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v [From the Ralelgh News and Observer, Jan. 28, 10631
‘ wWny? ‘

Congressman Harold Cooley's latest maneuver against the New Hope Dam
project is as unwarranted as it is disappeinting. It can only be taken to mean
that Cooley is, either unreasonable in his desire to kill this project or intends
to toy with itin a manner unbecoming to his role as “dean of the North Carolina
delegation” in Congress is well as detrimental to the Htate’s advance.

‘After managing last Friday to put off hcarings on the New Hope program
scheduled for February 8, Congressman Cooley was gueted as saying his action
apertainly was not a dilatory move on my part” becanse more time for preparation
for the hearing is needed.

The [act ls, however, that overyone directly involved in this matter had had
more than enpugh time to prepare for the February hearings set up by 2 House
Tublic Works Subcommittee, put now hlocked by Cooley. Indeed, there is
sufficient reason to helicve that ample hearings and debate on this matter have
already been held. Cooley himself atiended hearings on the matter in Chaltham
County where the Corps of Kngineers proposes to build a dam to control flooding
and conserve water in the Cape Tear River Basin.

The unfeasible, almost inconceivahle plan of 232 small dirt dams whiclh Coolcy
says he prefers is simply no substitute for the well-considered, practical and
already long-delayed New llope program recommendled by the T 8, Corps of
Enginecrs. If Congressmal Cooley has some other motive for opposing the New
Hope project, he ought to tell the people of North Carolina what it is.

[From the Greenstoro Daily Fews, Feb. 16, 19621
TyME OF DECISION

Senator B. Everett Jordan, endorsing plans for the New Hope Dam project
as part of the Cape Fear River Basin development, made & pasic point which
needs to be hammered home to State and local leaders.

Benator Jordan tock cognizance of the division of recommendations and
opinion, The Army Engineers have proposed the program which includes the
New IHope Dam, slong with aeveral other pmaller dams, including one at
Randleman.

The Seil Conservation Service, on the other hand, has endorsed a program
to build 232 smaller dams on tributarles leading into the Cape Fear.

It is wise and proper that argpuments for both these programs be heard and
weighed. That opportunity will presumably be offered in a public hearing at
Pittshore Friday and then before congressional committees and the Congress
itself.
© Bxplaining his decizion, Senator Jordan stresses thot “we have a choice of
doing this or waiting many years, perhaps generations, to otherwise harmess
the Cape Fear. * * * The tinle has colne when we in North Carolina must make
some hasic decision about the course we should follow in developing our water
resources—ior the needs we nhave now and for the known needs we will have
in the fulure.”

That is indeed true. The Naily News is pledged to conservation of goil and
water resgurces alike. We are confident that the dual causes, which actually
become onpe in their puablic interest and concern, can be served by agreement.
Surely they will not be rerved by proienged arguments or & disagrecment which
might hold up indefinitely or block getion which has nlready dragged ulong for
years since the Cape Fear Basin developnent was Senator Scott's drepin.

The stakes are tremendons and the needs great. And with realization of these
facts. North Carolinians ghould get together on o plan that will specd a long-
overdue and still far from attained development ou it way. Wasted soil and
tumbling waters exact a more costiy toll with enach passing day.
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{From the Wwiimingtor Star, Heb. 15, 1862]
Cuolck Is CLEAR ENOUGH

In his endorsement of the Cape Fear River Basin flood control project a3
recominended by the 11.8. Army Corps of Engineers, Senator B, Everett Jordan
touched upon a point that should be recognized by all persons interested in this
proposal. ’ :

Tt is simply that if this recommendation iz not carried out, the region will
have to wait many years, perhaps generations, to otherwise harpess the Cape
Fenr with a development program and flood control system.

The urgency of such a program has been well illustrated over the years, yct
delays have developed over diflerences hetween the recommendations of the
Tngineers and the woil Conservation Service, which agencies have conducted
studies and surveys of the river basin.

Those differences may yet further delay the activation of such & project, but
it enough suppert can be gained among the people and the congressional dele-
gation, we may not have to wait years, or generations, to see this important
worls started.

‘Phe support of Senator Jordan is welcomed, But against this ir Ttepresenta-
tive Cooley's support for the Soil Conservation “ervice's plan. He will bring
two subcommittees to Pittsboro tomorrow to hold hearings on the project.
TPerhaps, after these have been conducted, Representative Cooley, tog, will take
the.sume realistic view as that taken by Senator Jordan, Governor Sanford, and
many others in both public and private life, :

The important thing is to get the project gtarted. ‘That is the choice, or

aceept the alternative of walting many years, perhaps generations. Frankly,
we (¢ not see how there could be any debate over which choice to make.

[From the Winston-Salem Journal, Feb. 17, 1862]

TrE CASE FOR THE NEW Hore DaM

Senator B. Dverett Jordan makes out & zood case for the New Hope Dam
-project of the Army Engineers. This proposed project is one of two which have
been offered by Federnl agencies for the development of the water resources of
the Cape Fear River Basin. The Soil Conservation Service has proposed a broad
flood contrel and congervation program featuring & system of 232 small dams

.on basin streams.

The two proposals thus revive the old controversy on whether conservation of

‘natpral water resources can be more effectively attained by building & few

relatively large river dams or by puilding a far more elaborate system of small

.doms on river tributaries tied in with other soil and water conservation projects.

There is o possibility, as Senator Jordan concedes, that over the long pull of
the decades a network of gmall dams would be more desirable from the stand-

-point of stream pollution control, industrial, and municipal water supply, recrea-

tion and irrigation. But, asg the denator points out. the Hoil Conservation Serv-
ice program would require basic changes in the Federal law, and involve the
enactment of o special aet by the State general assembly to ereate a Riate agency
to acquire the necessary land, easements and rights-of-way. In all probability
also, several years of enmineering work and planning would be necessary before

.even a start could be maie on the project.

All these factors, plus the guestion of whether the more elaborate amall dam
system wonld actunlly be more peneficial to the basin in the long run, are in-
valved in the SCS proposal. 1n endorsing the Army plan, Sepator Jordan points
to the need for enrly action in furthering the development of North Carolina’s
~water regourees, and expresses the opinion that “it would take many years, even
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generations, to bring te completion a gystem of 232 dams envigioned by the-
#oil Conservation gervice,” Viewed in the light of the time involved in bringing
about changes in State and Federal laws, obtaining land and casements for
seores of small watersheds and completing the necessary projects, this seems.
to be a reasonable assumption. .

Meanwhile, the industrinlization of North Carolina continues to go forward
rapidly, thus steadlly creating new water supply and stream control problems.
Can the State, under these circnmsiances, afford to wult many years, or ns
Senator Jordan s8nys, evell generations, to develop the water resources of the
Cape Fear and other river basins?

The arguments oo both sides, of course, deserve the earcful study of Congress
and the North Carolina public. But in this study sight should not be lost of
the fact that the Army Engineers' Now IHope Dam preject would make possible an
early water resource developinent which otherwise might not be brought about
for decades. No new legislation is necded and Congress can act quickly on the
Army project. The Army plan alsoe envisages the cstablishment, as needed, of
both large and small dams for water conservation and sltrenm control.

The State has become increasingly water conscious in recent years. Out of
this consciousness has grown the stream pollution control program, the creation
of a State water board, and the intensified efforts resulting in the construction
of the Wilkesboro Dam on the Yadkin River. This same consciousness and
concorn can help speed water resource developments im other areas of the State.
It njlmuld assute wide support for Senalor Jordan's stand on the New Hope Dam
project.

[From the Ralelgh News and Observer, Teb, 15, 19627
A Crucran CIoice

Sepator B, Everett Jordan is serving the best interests of North Carolina in
joining Governor Sanford in an effort to obtain congressional approval of the
Cape Fear Valley Dam project recommended recently by the U.8. Army Corps of’
Fnglneers.

Although the Senator only yesterday gave formal endorsement in Washington:
to the Engineers’ latest proposal, he has been congistent in his efforts to
follow up plans initiated by the lnte Kerr Scott to harness the Cape Fear River
for the benetit of all the people of North Carolina.

Obviously it will he a tragic blow to hopes for the future development of North
Carolina if this project is allowed to go down the drain in a fight that appears
{n be shaping up between its advocates and those who support the Soil Conservi-
tion Service's alternate proposal.

TUnder the Engineers’ proposals, a big dam to cost about $25 million would bhe
huilt at New Hope where the New Hope and Iaw Rivers join to form the Cape:
Fear. Two smaller dams wonld be built in the basin to provide adequate
control of waterflow, This project could be begun under existing law within
mnths.

Ou the other band, no less than 232 small dams wonld be constructed under the
Soil Conservation Service’s impractical proposal. The main argument for this
proposal seems to be that it will allow for flexihility, permitting the shifting
of the proposed multitude of little dams from one site to another when someone
or some interest opposed the flooding of their land. Actually, this flexibility
would very likely bog this eptire matter down in endless hageling that would’
doom the project for yenars if not generations to come. It would require new
legislation in Congress and local initiative for each of the multitude of dams in-
volved, an initiative that can hardly be eonceived, much less expected.

It is unfortunate that any people will have to be displaced from their homes
or farms in the Fagincers’ proposal. However, this project—advunced in
gimilar form in previous vears—has already been seaied down to affect ouly about
110 families, less than a third of those who would have been digplaced previously
under propasals by the Tngineers, And the future economic development of the:
whole State of North Carolina is tied up in this matter.
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The choice between the Engineers’ proposals and those of the Seil Conserva-
tion Service basically boils down to a choice between economic progress and &
better 1ife for thousands of North Carelinians or the countinued economic siagna-
tion of a great region of North Carolina. The entire North Carolina congres-
sional delegation ought to join Governor Sanford and Senator Jordan in support
of the econoinic progress of their State. :

————

[I'rom the Fayetteville Observer, Jaao, 17, 1962]
Srop TRE FLooDs : BY WHATEVER MEANB

It moes without saying that the people in the Fayefteville area are more than
a litlle disappeinted at the hostllity displayed by Representative 1nrold D.
Couley toward the construction of the proposed New Hope Dam to prevent floexds
in the Cape Fear Itiver.

Cooley asg chalrman of the House Agriculture Committee conld be expected to
favor the 212 little dan eontrol method proposed by the U.8. Soil Conservatlon
Service over the high dan and big lake method favored by the U8, Army Corps
of Engineers.

Additionally be represents Chatham County in Congress and therefore logically
has an open ear to the protests of the citizens of Chatham who do not want their
farms and homes covered by the water which would Le impounded by the New
Hope Dam. .

At the same time Cooley ig u sensible man and one not caleulited to permit
either-prejudice or solf-interest to stand in the way of & project which wonld be
of inestimable benefit to many residents of his home State, even if those residents
were not of his own congressiomal district.

Yor that reason it would be very unwise for the residents of the Fayetteville
area, and other areas along the banks of the Cape Fear River to write off the
project as predoomed lecause of Cooley's present lack of enthusiasm for it.

Rather there is a definite challenge here for the area organization supporting
the fleod control project to plan now to present its case in its best light before
the Agriculture Committee hearing which Cooley has secheduled for February 16
at Pittsboro.

We may have our own definite opinions on which system would best protect us
from disastrous Cape Fear River floods, but if we wani Cooley and his committee
to have open minds, we likewise should go jnto the comwittee hearings in a spirit
of open-minded helpfulness.

Qur particular stake in the project ig not what kind of flocd control should
be employed as long a8 whatever kind of control is decided upon iz effective
control,

We, in the Fayetteville ared, definitely are looking for an end rather than a

ICANS.

[TFrom the Houthern Pines Pllot, Jan. 4, 1962]
CaPE FEsR RIVER BABIN Dam Prosecrs ENDORSHD py CounNTY COMMISSIONERS

A letter will go from the Moore County ecoinmissioners to U.B. Senator B.
Tverett Jordan, expressing the Moore hoard's approval of the recently announced
proposed Cape Fear River Basin Dam proposals.

The action was taken on motion of Comibissioner John M. Currie on Tuesday.
IIc recalled that he had represented this county at a Fayetteville meeting some
years ago when the Cape Fear proposal was in the early planning stages.

The recently announced plan calls for dams on the Ilaw River, a few miles
north of Moncure; on Ticep River at Tiowards Mill in Moore, less than a mile
gouth of the Randolph County line, almast due north of Robbing; and a third
dam on Neep River, further north in Randolph.

Haw River and Deep River converge near Moneure to form the Cape Fear.

The dam on the Haw River, if the project receives congressional approval,
would be the first to be buiit. The Howards Mill Dam would create i con-
siderably smaller, hut yet large, lake. most of which would be Randolph County.

Tlowever, Commissioner Currie pointed out, the Fowards Mill Dam would
produce several benelite for Moore, inciuding improved water supply in the
arel, nearby recreational opportunities and ilood prevention.
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Mr. Currie recalled a 1945 flood that washed out dams at ITowards Mill and
Glendon, foreing costly replacements. Control of flool waters by the Howards
Afill Dam and the other Deep River Dam in Randolph County would do much
to prevent flood damage all nlong the course of Deep River in Moore, he said.

Deep River flows from west to east across nbout two thirds of the extreme
upper (northern} portion of Moare County, with many twists and bends, in-
cluding the famous “horseshoe” bend from which the historic “IIouse in the
Horseshoe” takes its name. The house was the scene of a sgkirmish in the
Amnerican Revolution.

Adding to the county’s water supply by formation of the lake north of Howards
Afill might help attract industry, too, Mr. Currle noted.

There was unanimous agrecment among hoard members on hig proposal to
write S8enator Jordan, the Tar Heel senator wlio has been most active on hehalf
of the Cape Fear basin project.

[From the Sanford ITerald, Feb, 17, 19621
FcoNoMIC PROORESS OR STAGNATION

Flood control in the Cape Feur Basin and the ecanamic growth of North Caro-
lina are threatened by the caniroversy arising over whether to build a big dam
or o muititiude of small dams to harness the Cape Fear River.

Listening to the testimony of many of those favorlng a series of 232 small dams
as proposed by the Soil Conservation Service we had a feellng that much of the
opposition was based on sentlment with the idea that if they adopt this plan it
will be a couple of generations hefore they get it acress and we won't be here
and have to worry about it.

On the other hand, a propoesal by the U.8. Army Corps of Bngincers to build
a big dam at New Hope where the New Hope and Haw Rivers join and two
amaller dams is an immedinte possibility. If approved by Congress, work eould
be started within months, The Seoil Conszervation Service’s proposal, which
hasn't been developed to the extent that the Engineer’s plan has, would mean
endless haggling, new legislation in Congress and in the North Carolinn General
Assembly and a entbusiasm for the project in all of the 232 areas where the
dams would be located, We doubt whether that much enthusiasm ecould be
generated for the little dams.

Senator Everett Jordan and Governor Sanford both have heartily endorsed
the New Hope Dam proposal. Congressman Harold Cooley, in whose Fourth
Diatriet the dam would be located, has to play politics over this matter a8 hie has
to think of electlon day. People in west Chatham county are more in favor of
the blg dam than those in the enstern section of the big county. Cooley should
remember west Chatham has a larger population than the eastern section.

The big dam proposal offers a quick move for progress and a better life for
tuousands of North Carolinians. The muliitude dam proposal means stagnation
as it becomes embroiled in conrt actions.

Lee County, which apparently failed to have a delegation at the well-advertised
Pittsboro hearing, has a big stuke in the New Hope dam. This dam will cost
about %25 million—a large part of which will be spent in this area. Also the
water backed up by the dam will offer fine recreational opportunities.

‘We hope reason will prevail over sentiment.

[Editorial from the the Wilmington Morning Star, Mar. 11, 1063]
COMBATING “MISINFORMATIOR"

The spread of what Senator B. Everett Jordan describes as “miginformation”
concerning the large reservoir proposal for flood control in the Cape Fear River
Tasin needs to be put to rest, and it can be done jn a new proposal put forward
by the junior Senator from North Carelino.

what ls happening is that opponents of the high dam plan have been sayving
that sneh a reservoir at New Hope would rule out development of the upper
tributaries through smailer dams. Phis “misinformation” hasg caused some rity
and county governments to take stands opposing tlie high dam, but they have
rescinded such aetion, once they have been correctly informed.
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This happened to the Reidsville city council, the Alamance county board of
commissicners, and the Durham city council. They all reversed earlier deci-
glons against the dam, when they had obtained all the information needed for
a right decigion.

Senator Jordan has attributed the misinformation to Soil Copservation Serv-
ice supervisors who, he said, are located in the area that would be effected by
the project. .

To counteract this misipformation, Senator Jordan also proposes that the SCS
and the U.8. Army Corps of Kugineers immediately begin a joint survey and
gtudy for the development of smuall dams and reservoirs on the upper tributaries
of the basin, at the sume time construction starts on the New Hope dam., Thig
study and survey would show that development of the upper tributaries will not
be affected by the large Teservoir.

If these two agencies can work together on the Upper Cape Fear River Basin,
eitios und counties will not be victimized by the misinformation that has been
making the rounds, There is no room for more delaying tactics by the opposi-
tion. 'The large reservoir plan should be started as soon as possible.

Harxerr County PALM BUREAU,
Iillington, N.C., March 25, 1963.
Hon. B. EVERETT JORDAR,
.8, Senate, Washingion, D.0.

Dear Mz, Jorpan : The board of directors of the Harnett County Farm Bureau
have gone on record in support of the building of the big dam on New Hope
Tteservoir in connection with flood con trol. ‘

Sincerely, :
CarsoN GREGORY, President..

[From the Greenshore Daily News, Mar. 13, 1963]
RivEr BasIN PPLaNS DOVETAIL

Reading between the lines in Wwashington dispatches, wo get the idea that a
compromise may be in the offing to break the deadlock on the Cape Fear River
Basin development, as it embraces the controversial New Hepe high dam,

Yenator D. LKvertt Jordan, who has led the fight for the New Hope Dam with
support of other members of the Tar Ieel congressional delegation, minus Hep-
resentative Iarold D. Cooley, has suggested, on the eve of hearings later this.
week, that the Army Engineers’ recommendations and the Seoil Conservation
Service program be merged. While that proposal may not satisfy the chalrman
of the House Agriculture Committee who has moved from one reason to another
in his high dam opposition, it at lenst answers the objection of the Siate grange
whose master, Robert Scoil, bas advocated the small dom plan because “eon-
struction of a single, large dam at New Hope would provide flood control from
that downslream only. There would be no flood control or water-retaining
facilities in the upper reaches of the basin where the most people are located.”

Under Senator Jordan's latest suggestion, the New IHope high dam would be
constructed to assure flood contral downstream and, to sowe degree upstream,
and impounl & lurge volume of water which could be used for recreational and.
many olRer PUrposes as s0on as contamination is ended in the upper tributaries
of the Haw, Then he would have siall dams in the basin's upper reaches to
make doubly sure of the purposes whichh Grange Master Scott emphasizes,

Although costs of the combined project have not been given, they will doubtless
come later. Meanwhile the New Hope Dam project, which would require years
for completion, can inove along. A veteran soil conservationist, whose knowl-
edre, judgment, and cxperience we rate highly, declared some time ago that the
two plans ghould be wmerged. The Army Tngineers take over at a certain point,
gonerally somewhers around the fall iine, of a river basin development, he
explained, and the Soil Conservation's swall dams apply to the smaller streams
and tributaries in the basin’s upper reaches. There should be cooperation rather
than division and controversy which delay or block not one Lrogram bt both.,

Senator Jordan’s suggestion makes sense. 80, let's on with it. -
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[From the High Polot BEoterprise, Mar, 15, 19631
New Iore DaxM SuarEs A8 OrrosIiTIoN FApes

A compromise plan by which House Agriculture Committee Chairman Harold
D. Cooley proposed to proceed with the Randieman and Howards Mill Dams in
the Cape Fear flowd control preject while holding in abeyance the New Hope Dam
to sce if it is needed is either o delaying or o facesaving device,

TPor the New 1lope Dam is vital to the project.

Congressman GCooley knows that, which may account for his seeking 4 way
out.of the indefensible position he got himself into by blocking last year under-
taking of a water congervalion, flood coutrol, und area recreationgl develop-
ment too important for the Piedmont and the Cuape Wear Basin generally to
be denied.

A powerful case for the New Hepe Dam project wasg made by witnesses at
vesterday's hearing. Governor Sanford headed a delegation of some interested
Nor_th Carqlinians who went to Washington in a determined effort to break the
logjaun which has tied up too long that needed Lmprovement which Army BEngi-
neers have backed strongly eonly to be thwarted by Congressman Cooley’s
opposition. ’

Wh.un the Soil Conservation Service, which had been represented ag preferring
a series of small reservoirs to the big one at New Hope, made clear it did 110?:
oppose the <am, Cooley’'s case collapsed under him, His proposal of a mecting
of the Soil .Conscrvatﬁml technicinns and Arny Engineers in an effort to effect
a compronlise was soapped up prowptly.

It .well coul_d be that Congressinen Cooley recognizes the futility of further
battling a preject so vital to present and fmture welfare of a State which must
look to that basin for water supply and which needs get about clearing stream
pollution that ruust make it 8 hody of uzable water and not a cesspool,

Appurent collapse of opposition should serve to get that reclumation project
on its way after oo much delay already.

[From the Kalelgh News and Observer, Mar. 16, 1963]
CooLEY's OEBYPOOL

Harold Cooley has, of course, every right to make his one man campai
Ll}e const.r_uction of the bhig New llope Dam for development gf tl:}]emég[?eggggglt'
River _Basm which is supported by Governor Sanford, other Congressmen and
many interested eitizens. DBut this continuing talk by Cocley to the effect that
a h\g.dum would create a cesspool is nensense which does no credit to Cooley's
intelligence amd amounts to an attack by hitn on the intelligence of others.

Lvery scn§ib1e person knows that the Governor, both U.8. Senators and the
Nortl} Caroling Congressmen supporting ihe project are not working to create
1 glganti_c cesspool,” the water of which could not be used by man or fsh
ertﬂinly it is u refiection on the Corps of Kngincers, which has designed mam;
similar projects, to suggest that what Lhey propose is a cesspool. And now the
Soil Conservation Service, whose multiple smail dam idea Cooley has favored
snys it is not opposed to the New 1lope Dant project. ’

) Harold Cooley i practically left alone with his imaginary cesspool, It's about
time he jumped in it so far as this project is concerned.

[From the Ralelgh Newa nnd Obrerver, Mar, 28, 1063]

SURILLY RISING QUEATION

1t is becoming increasingly difficult to understand the violence of Cengressman
Harold Cooley with repard to the proposed New Hope Dam. And his views
gbout it seonrs loss and less lmportant as his volce grows more and more shrill
in opposition which seems Lo express on alpost personal frenzy.

Doth North Carolina Senaters and other North Carolina Congressmen inter-
ested in this matter favor this development. It has been recommended by the
1.8. Corps of Engineers. The Soil Conservation Service, which offered an
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of many small dams which Cooley favors, Bow s2¥8 that it
.does not oppose the plan of the Enpincers. And this expression goes pretty far
for the Seoil. Conservation Service which must go before Cooley’s House Agri-
cuitural Committee for its appropriations. .
Those citizens who recently appeared at o hearing 1o Washington on the ques
tion predominantly favored the New Hope Dam. There is increasing realizatiol

that not enly is the dam needed for Cape Fear River control but to provid

water which will be ensential to the development of such growing communitie

as Ttalelgh, Durkam, Chapel Hill, the Research Triangle. .
Yet Cooley bas let loose another intemperate blast describing the New Hop
Dam as “probably the biggest, boondoggle the House and Senate Public Work
. Commiltecs ever had to congider, benefiting the fewest people for the money ex
peniled,” This comes on tep of his recent gtatement that the Army Engineer
plad would create nathing but a cesspool unfit for fish or men.

Moderately expressed vlews by Hareld Cooley would be received with respec

by many North Carolinians. Also they know that Cooley has great power du
to his seplorlly and position in the Copgress. His almost one-man hue and cr
might kill any nceded water development in this area. And that could gerious]
delay many phases of growih in this area.

Increasingly, as the Congresstuan grows more and move frantic in oppositio
he raises the choice between Cooley or development. Mr. Cooley is a valuad
man to North Carolina in the Coongress. And this dam is a more and 1no
. evident essemtial to North Carolipa’s progress. It would be unfortunate if tl
. Congressman lifted this matter to a choice between Cooley and the construectio

Many might prefer the high dam to the strident Congressman.

-alternate design

[From the Winston-Salem Sentinel, Mar. 14, 19631

FLoobS AVERTER—YADKIRN TowN8 SAVED BY KERR BcoTT Dam
{By Gene Whitman}

Tho new Kerr Seott Dam, in its first test yesterday, saved the North Wilk
“boro-Klkin sectlon of the Tadkin River Valley from what might have been d
. astrous floods.

< Tt alsa spyed {he North Wilkesboro watler supply—an extra benefit which was
anticipated when the $8 million flood control dam went into operation 3 mi
north of Wilkeshoro last year.

North Wilkeshoro gets water from the Heddies River, & tributary of the Y
“kin. Debris from foods clogged the sereens and, at B a.m. Tuesday, waterwo

elngineers discovered the pumps had shut down,

With the town's 1,500,000 gallons of reserve water dwindling rapidly, iod

tries were asked to cut consumpiion, but no general alarm was broadcast. ©
giant Holly Farms Toultry Industries, largest chicken processors in the wo

- shut down for one shift,
At 9 a.1n., the alerted U.8. Corps of Engineers began closing the huge gate:

Kerr Scott Dam. By noon, the flow in the Yadkin River below the dam bad b

. completely shut off.
RIVER DRALNS

The Reddies River, permitted to drain ata speed never before possible, qui
- subsided encugh for waterworks engineers {o clear the screens and restore oyl
“tinns, 13y early Wednesday, the piant was producing its pormal 120,000 gal
. an hour.

The gates ot the dam remained closed until ¢ am. Wednesday, Then
were opened to restore a pormal riverflow. They were open 6ig feet to
permitting the reservoir level to drop slowly, as floods subsided.

At the height of the test, the flood waters impounded in the reservoir
- pushed the water level up 15.7 feet.

This was only a smnil part of what the dam ean do, The wnter level il
reservelr ean rise 45 feet hefore water begins flowing over the spillway, ot
: o the solid rock of a mountajntop. :
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i During the floods this week, the river level nt North Wilkesboro below the dam
j was held just below flood stage. U.B. Tnginecers estimnted that, without the

L]

i

i

|

s ar e

dam, flooding certainly would have oceurred in the Wilkesboro-Eiking scction of
the Yadkin Valley.
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WaKE CoUuNTY YouNe DEMOCRATIC CLUR, E
Raleigh, N.C., March 27, 1963. '
Senntor B. EvERETT JORDAN.
Senalc Ofice Building,
Washington, D.C.
Dieant SENAToR Joinan ¢ Enclosed is a copy of 2 resolution unanimously adopted
by the Wake County Young Democratic Club, ’
T trust that you will give it due conalderation.
With kindest regards, I am,
Sincerely yours,

{
i
|
i

Bopwarp K. HoLLOWELL, Secretary.

L F J LEscnuTioN oF WAKE COUNTY YoUNG DEMOCRATIO Cr.up, Maron 21, 1962 l

Wherenas the Corps of Army Engincers have proposed to control floods and
p conserve the water resources of the Cape Fear River Basin by building a series l
: of large dams in the upper reaches of the Cape Fear River; and
& Wherens the proposed dam which would be of most pencfit to Wake County
. would be kuown a8 the New IHope Dan ; and )
Whereas the water contained by the New Hope Dam would be of unlimited
value to the citizens of Wake County and to the municipalitics containing a large
number of these citizens in the sewrch carried on by those municipalities for new
industry; and
Whereas the industrial growth seo vitally needed to give employment to the
. unewployed in Wake County will be linked directly to the water resources avail-
: able to new industry, and to water-based recreation ; and
Whereas the Research Triangle area which now appears as a vital segment
of the economic growth of Walke County is already experiencing water difficulties;
and
Whereas the rapid growth of the Research Trinngle area would be greatly
enhanced by the construction of the New Hope Dam and by the waters con-
{uined therein : Now, therefore, be it
Resolved, That the Young Tremacratic Club of Wake County go on record
ss of this date endorsing to the Tullest the plans approved by the Corps of Army
Fugineers for the development of the Cape Fear River Basin and the construe- i
tion of the New Hope Dt and beit further i
\ Resolved, That a copy of this resolution be sent to the U.S. Senators from LM
North Carolina and to Congressman IIarold I». Cooley. EE
Done at & meeting of the Wake County Young Democratic Club in Raleigh
this 21st day of March 1963.

~r

.?I'“‘-t_'- Lk

GEORGE M. STEPILENS, JT.,
President of Wake Couniy Young Nemocratic Club.
Attest:
EbwARD 1%, HOLLOWELL,
Sceretary of Wake County Young Democratic Club.
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